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Disclosure Regarding Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report and the documents incorporated by reference in it include forward-looking statements 
that involve numerous risks and uncertainties.  Forward-looking statements in this report, including without 
limitation, statements relating to our plans, strategies, objectives, expectations, intentions and adequacy of 
resources, are made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Reform Act of 1995.  Forward-
looking statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology, such as “anticipate,” “believe,” 
“could,”  “estimate,” “expect,”  “intend,”  “may,” “plan,”  “predict,”  “project,”  “should,” “will,” or other similar 
terms or phrases (including their use in the negative), or by discussions of strategies, plans or intentions.  Various 
factors could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated by these forward-looking statements, 
including:

• general economic conditions, including, among others, unemployment, major bank failures and unsettled 
capital markets, sovereign debt uncertainty, the impact of the United States’ military involvement in the 
Middle East and elsewhere, future acts of terrorism, the threat or outbreak of a pandemic disease affecting 
the travel industry, rising fuel costs and increased transportation security precautions;

• our overall debt levels and our ability to refinance or obtain new financing and service debt;
• our inability to retain earnings;
• our liquidity and capital expenditures;
• our ability to complete hotel dispositions at acceptable prices and to pursue our growth strategy and 

acquisition activities; and
• competitive conditions in the lodging industry.

Certain risks and uncertainties are described in greater detail under “Risk Factors” in Item 1A or in our 
other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

In addition, these forward-looking statements are necessarily dependent upon assumptions and estimates 
that may prove to be incorrect. Accordingly, while we believe that the plans, intentions and expectations reflected in 
these forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot assure that these plans, intentions or expectations will 
be achieved.  The forward-looking statements included in this report, and all subsequent written and oral forward-
looking statements attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf, are expressly qualified in their entirety by the 
risk factors and cautionary statements discussed in our filings under the Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934.  We undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statements to reflect future 
events or circumstances.

The prospective financial information related to anticipated operating performance included in this Annual 
Report has been prepared by, and is the responsibility of, our management.  PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, or PwC, 
has neither examined nor compiled the accompanying prospective financial information and, accordingly, PwC 
does not express an opinion or any other form of assurance with respect thereto.  The PwC report included in this 
Annual Report relates to our historical financial information.  It does not extend to the prospective financial 
information and should not be read to do so.
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PART I
Item 1.     Business

FelCor Lodging Trust Incorporated (NYSE:FCH), or FelCor, is a Maryland corporation operating as a real 
estate investment trust, or REIT.  We are the sole general partner of, and the owner of a greater than 99% 
partnership interest in, FelCor Lodging Limited Partnership, or FelCor LP, through which we held ownership 
interests in 82 hotels with approximately 24,000 rooms at December 31, 2010.  At December 31, 2010, we had an 
aggregate of 97,166,583 shares and units outstanding, consisting of 96,881,858 shares of FelCor common stock and 
284,725 units of FelCor LP limited partnership interest not owned by FelCor.  When used in this report, “we,” “us” 
and “our” refer to FelCor and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise indicated.

Our business is conducted in one reportable segment: hospitality.  During 2010, we derived 97% of our 
revenues from hotels located within the United States, with the balance derived from our Canadian hotels.

We are committed to enhancing stockholder value and delivering superior returns on invested capital by 
assembling a diversified portfolio of high-quality hotels located in major markets and resort locations that have 
dynamic demand generators and high barriers to entry. At the same time, we seek to improve cash flow and real 
estate value through disciplined portfolio management, unique asset management and smart allocation of capital. 

In 2006, we developed a long-term strategic plan with an intense focus on portfolio management.  As a 
result, our portfolio composition (e.g., segment, brand and location) continues to evolve radically through asset 
sales, acquisitions and capital investment.  Today, our portfolio consists primarily of upper-upscale hotels and 
resorts located in more than 30 major markets that are flagged under global brands. We remain focused on 
improving our portfolio quality, diversification, future growth rates and creating a sound and flexible balance sheet.  
In 2010, we acquired the Fairmont Copley Plaza in Boston and initiated a second phase of asset sales, in which we 
intend to sell our interests in as many as 35 hotels.  Currently we are marketing actively 14 hotels for sale.  See 
"Developments in 2010."

Of the 82 hotels in which we had an ownership interest at December 31, 2010, we owned a 100% interest in 
64 hotels, a 90% interest in entities owning three hotels, an 82% interest in an entity owning one hotel, a 60% 
interest in an entity owning one hotel and 50% interests in entities owning 13 hotels.  We consolidate our real estate 
interests in the 69 hotels in which we held majority interests, and we record the real estate interests of the 13 hotels 
in which we held 50% interests using the equity method.  At December 31, 2010, 81 of our 82 hotels were leased to 
our operating lessees, and one 50%-owned hotel was operated without a lease.  We held majority interests and had 
direct or indirect controlling interests in all our operating lessees.  Because we own controlling interests in these 
lessees, we consolidate our interests in these hotels (which we refer to as our Consolidated Hotels) and reflect those 
hotels' operating revenues and expenses in our statements of operations.  

Our Consolidated Hotels were located in the United States (79 hotels in 22 states) and Canada (two hotels 
in Ontario), with concentrations in major markets and resort areas.  Our hotel portfolio consists primarily of upper-
upscale hotels and resorts, which are flagged under global brands such as Doubletree, Embassy Suites Hotels,  
Fairmont, Hilton, Marriott, Renaissance, Sheraton, Westin and Holiday Inn.

Additional information relating to our hotels and our business, including the charters of our Executive 
Committee, Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee, Compensation Committee and Audit Committee; 
our corporate governance guidelines; and our code of business conduct and ethics can be found on our Web site at 
www.felcor.com.  Information relating to our hotels and our business can also be found in the Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements located elsewhere in this report.  Our annual, quarterly and current reports, and amendments to 
these reports, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, under the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, or Exchange Act, are made available on our Web site, free of charge, under the “SEC Filings” tab on our 
“Investor Relations” page, as soon as practicable following their filing.  The public may read and copy any 
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materials we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 
20549.  The public may also obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC
at 1-800-SEC-0330.  The SEC also maintains a Web site that contains reports, proxy and information statements, 
and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC at www.sec.gov.

Developments in 2010 

Initiated Second Phase of Our Strategic Disposition Program.  As part of our long-term strategic plan to 
enhance stockholder value and achieve or exceed targeted returns on invested capital, we sell and acquire hotels to 
improve our overall portfolio quality, enhance diversification and improve growth rates.  In 2010, we acquired the 
Fairmont Copley Plaza in Boston and initiated a second phase of asset sales.

Selling underperforming and nonstrategic hotels creates capacity that allows us to reduce concentration 
risk, reduce leverage, invest in higher yielding redevelopment opportunities at our remaining hotels and/or acquire 
hotels in our target markets.  In addition, selling non-strategic hotels reduces our future capital expenditure 
requirements and enables management to focus on “core” long-term investments.  We reviewed each hotel in our 
portfolio in terms of projected performance, future capital expenditure requirements and market dynamics and 
concentration risk.  Based on this analysis, we intend to sell our interests in 35 hotels (29 of which we consolidate 
the real estate interest, and six of which are owned by unconsolidated joint ventures) that no longer meet our 
investment criteria.  As a consequence, the hold periods for the hotels we consolidate were shortened, and we were 
required to test those assets for impairment as they were approved to be marketed for sale. We recorded a $152.7 
million impairment charge in 2010 related to 16 of these hotels.  We will bring these hotels to market at the 
appropriate time and will only sell hotels when we receive satisfactory pricing.

Refinanced Term Loan.  In May 2010, we obtained a new $212 million loan, secured by nine hotels, that 
matures in 2015.  This loan bears interest at LIBOR (subject to a 3.0% floor) plus 5.1%.  The proceeds were used to 
repay $210 million in loans that were secured by 11 hotels and scheduled to mature in May 2010.  The terms and 
interest rate of this financing are significantly more favorable than the refinanced debt, and we unencumbered two 
previously mortgaged hotels in the process.  

Deed-in-Lieu Transfers.  Two loans (totaling $32 million) matured in May 2010.   The cash flows for the 
hotels that secured those loans did not cover debt service and we determined the hotels' fair values to be less than 
the loan amounts.  We stopped funding the shortfalls in December 2009.  We were unable to negotiate an acceptable 
debt modification or reduction that favored our stockholders, and we transferred these hotels to the lenders in full 
satisfaction of the related debt.  

Equity Offering.  In June 2010, we completed a public offering of 31,625,000 shares of our common stock 
at $5.50 per share.  The net proceeds from the offering, after underwriting discounts, were approximately 
$166 million.  We used these proceeds, together with cash on hand, to repay $177 million of secured debt for 
$130 million, representing a 27% discount, and for our $98.5 million acquisition of the Fairmont Copley Plaza in 
Boston.

 
The United States Lodging Industry

The Industry.  The United States lodging industry consists of private and public entities that operate in a 
diversified market with fragmented ownership under a variety of brand names. The lodging industry has several key 
participants:

Owners — own hotels and typically enter into agreements for independent third parties to manage hotels.  
Hotels may be branded and operated under the managers' brands or branded under franchise agreements and 
operated by franchisors or by independent managers.  Hotels may also be operated independently (unaffiliated with 
any brands) by an independent manager. 
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Owner/Managers — own hotels and operate them with their own management teams. They may brand their 
hotels under franchise agreements, or operate them independently under their own brands.  As a REIT, we are 
restricted from operating and managing hotels.

Franchisors — own a brand or brands and strive to grow their revenues by expanding the number of hotels 
and brands in their franchise system. Franchisors provide hotels with brand recognition, marketing support and 
centralized reservation systems.

 Brand/Managers — own a brand, or brands, and also operate hotels, for themselves and for other owners.

Independent Managers — manage hotels for themselves and/or other owners, but are not affiliated with a 
brand.

The hotel manager is responsible for day-to-day hotel operations, including employment of hotel staff, 
determining room rates, developing sales and marketing plans, preparing operating budgets and preparing hotel-
level financial reports for the owner.  Hotel managers typically receive fees based on the revenues and profitability 
of the hotel.

We own branded hotels, mainly in the upper-upscale segment, that are managed predominately by brand/
managers.  We do not operate or manage our hotels.  Our hotels are located in desirable locations in major markets 
and resort locations and are diversified by market, brand and customer mix.  We believe that our competitive 
advantages (diverse locations, alignment with global brands, owning enough hotels of a particular brand to 
influence brand strategy, superior management team and our asset management philosophy) provide us with the 
strengths to provide above average growth.

The lodging industry is highly competitive.  There are many brands and products from which customers may 
choose.   The industry caters to a diverse customer base, including transient customers (both leisure and corporate), 
groups (both leisure and corporate) and long-term, or contract, customers.   Average rates charged by the hotels are 
dependent on the customer mix and supply and demand in the market.  The relationship between the supply of and 
demand for hotel rooms is cyclical and affects our industry significantly. Certain markets have low barriers to entry 
(inexpensive land, favorable zoning, etc.), making it easier to build new hotels.  Lodging demand growth typically 
relates to the vitality of the overall economy in addition to local market factors that stimulate travel to specific 
destinations.  Economic indicators such as gross domestic product (GDP), business investment and employment 
levels are among the primary indicators of lodging demand.

Recent Events. Industry occupancy began to rebound in late 2009, led by increases in corporate travel 
following the end of the recent profound recession. Lodging fundamentals improved throughout 2010, as demand 
grew steadily while supply growth moderated. Revenue per available room, or RevPAR, began to grow in March 
2010 and consistently improved through the year, indicating a sustainable recovery.  However, occupancy levels 
remained below historical averages, and visibility of future demand trends was limited, as corporations continued to 
conserve cash, and GDP growth was moderate.  Most industry analysts and experts are projecting continued overall 
growth for the U.S. lodging industry in 2011 and 2012, reflecting higher demand levels, improved pricing and 
supply growth that is projected to be below historical averages. Actual and projected performance, including 
RevPAR, occupancy and average daily rate, or ADR, varies - often substantially - by geographic markets and sub-
markets.  Projections typically assume no major external events, such as an act of terrorism or natural disaster, will 
occur or affect the U.S. economy or the travel and lodging industries.  

Smith Travel Research, or STR, a leading provider of hospitality industry data, reported that 2010 RevPAR 
increased 5.5%.  This follows a 16.7% RevPAR decline in 2009 - the worst year-over-year results since STR began 
tracking industry data in 1989.  Demand increased 7.7% in 2010, reflecting improving industry-wide performance, 
including increased corporate and leisure travel.  Supply (new hotel rooms) grew only 2.0% in 2010.  Increased 
demand, partially offset by limited supply growth, produced a 5.7% increase in industry occupancy. Industry 
improvement is widespread and all but one of the largest 25 markets (as defined by STR) reported increased 
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occupancy in 2010.  Increased corporate demand, and a corresponding shift in customer mix toward premium 
customers, improved pricing in the second half of 2010, but for the full year, ADR declined 0.1%.   

 
PKF Hospitality Research, or PKF, (a leading provider of hospitality industry data) projects that lodging 

fundamentals will continue to improve in 2011, with demand increasing 5.3% and supply growing only 1.0%.  
Supply growth remains constrained by limited development financing.  STR reported that rooms under construction 
fell 75% to approximately 52,000 in December 2010, compared to 212,000 in December 2007.  As a result, with 
improving demand, hotel occupancy in 2011 should increase 4.2%, compared to 2010.  As occupancy increases, 
hotels should have the opportunity to improve ADR further, and ADR growth should be a more significant factor in 
RevPAR growth.  PKF projects industry ADR will increase by 4.6% in 2011, contributing to a projected 9.0% 
RevPAR increase.  However, 2011 industry RevPAR is still expected to be below the ten-year average.  PKF also 
projects that pricing power will strengthen through 2012, as occupancies return to historical levels, contributing to a 
projected 9.9% gain in industry RevPAR.

Hotel Classifications. STR classifies hotel chains into six distinct product categories: Luxury, Upper-
Upscale, Upscale, Upper-Midscale, Midscale, and Economy. We own hotels in the Luxury segment (Fairmont), 
Upper-Upscale segment (Doubletree, Embassy Suites Hotels, Hilton, Marriott, Renaissance, Sheraton and Westin) 
and Upper-Midscale segment (Holiday Inn). Approximately 82% of our 2010 Hotel EBITDA was derived from 
Upper-Upscale hotels (Hotel EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure that is reconciled and further discussed in 
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations-Non-GAAP Financial 
Measures”).

STR also categorizes hotels based upon their relative market positions, as measured by ADR, as Luxury, 
Upscale, Midprice, Economy and Budget.  The following table contains information with respect to average 
occupancy (determined by dividing occupied rooms by available rooms), ADR and RevPAR for 80 of our 
Consolidated Hotels (excludes Fairmont Copley Plaza acquired in August 2010), all Upscale U.S. hotels, all 
Midprice U.S. hotels and all U.S. hotels, as reported by STR, for the periods indicated:

 

Number of FelCor Hotels
Occupancy:
  FelCor hotels(a) 
  All Upscale U.S. hotels(b)

  All Midprice U.S. hotels(c)

All U.S. hotels
ADR:
  FelCor hotels(a) 
  All Upscale U.S. hotels(b)

  All Midprice U.S. hotels(c)

All U.S. hotels
RevPAR:
  FelCor hotels(a) 
  All Upscale U.S. hotels(b)

  All Midprice U.S. hotels(c)

All U.S. hotels

Year Ended December 31,
2010

80
 

70.5%
58.9
53.8
57.6

$ 121.47
106.44
78.33
98.08

$ 85.58
62.71
42.16
56.47

2009
83

 
66.2%
56.4
51.9
55.1

$ 123.23
106.66
78.12
97.51

$ 81.62
60.12
40.58
53.71

2008
85

 
70.9%
62.0
57.6
60.4

$ 136.32
115.96
84.21

106.55

$ 96.67
71.83
48.48
64.37

2007
83

 
70.4%
64.8
60.4
63.2

$ 134.21
113.56
82.18

103.64

$ 94.48
73.61
49.68
65.50

2006
83

 
72.6%
65.5
61.0
63.4

$ 125.98
107.37
78.12
97.31

$ 91.45
70.31
47.66
61.69

(a) Information is based on historical presentations.
(b) This category includes hotels in the “upscale price level,” defined as hotels with ADRs in the 70th to 85th 

percentiles in their respective markets.
(c) This category includes hotels in the “midprice level,” defined as hotels with ADRs in the 40th to 70th 

percentiles in their respective markets.
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Business Strategy

We are committed to enhancing stockholder value and delivering superior returns on invested capital by 
assembling a diversified portfolio of high-quality hotels located in major markets and resort locations that have 
dynamic demand generators and high barriers to entry. At the same time, we seek to improve cash flow and real 
estate value through disciplined portfolio management, unique asset management and smart allocation of capital. 

In 2006, we developed a long-term strategic plan with an intense focus on portfolio management.  As a 
result, our portfolio composition (e.g., segment, brand and location) continues to evolve radically through asset 
sales, acquisitions and capital investment.  Between late 2005 and 2007, we disposed of 45 non-strategic hotels, 
primarily limited service and midscale hotels located in secondary and tertiary markets and markets with low 
barriers to entry. Today, our portfolio consists primarily of upper-upscale hotels and resorts located in more than 30 
major markets that are flagged under global brands.  In 2010, we acquired the Fairmont Copley Plaza in Boston and 
initiated a second phase of asset sales, in which we expect to sell our interests in as many as 35 hotels. Currently, 
we are marketing 14 hotels for sale.  

We remain focused on improving our portfolio quality, diversification, future growth rates and creating a 
sound and flexible balance sheet. With these objectives in mind, the following areas are critically important:

Asset Management

We seek to maximize revenue, market share, hotel operating margins and cash flow at every hotel. We 
employ an aggressive asset management philosophy that entails a hands-on approach. Our asset managers, all of 
whom have extensive hotel operating experience, have thorough knowledge of the markets where our hotels 
operate, and overall demand dynamics, which enables them to work closely with our hotel managers.  In addition, 
our strong, long-term relationships with the major hotel companies that operate our hotels enable us to work more 
effectively with them. We press our hotel managers to implement best practices in expense and revenue 
management and work closely with them to monitor and review hotel operations and align cost structures with 
current business.  For example, reduction in departmental expenses per occupied room from 2008 to 2010 resulted 
in 2010 savings of over $20 million.  Most of these per occupied room savings are permanent. We strive to 
influence brand strategy on marketing and revenue enhancement programs. We also consider value-added 
enhancements at our hotels, such as maximizing use of public areas, implementing new restaurant concepts, 
changing management of food and beverage operations and uncovering new revenue sources. 

Renovations and Redevelopment

We take a long-term approach to capital spending. Our plan involves efficiently maintaining our properties 
and limiting future fluctuations of expenditures while maximizing return on investment.  We completed a multi-
year, portfolio-wide renovation program in 2008 which enhanced the competitive position and value of our hotels.  
Through this process, we invested more than $450 million and achieved the expected returns on our investment. For 
example, market share (one of the industry's primary performance measures) for our portfolio increased almost 3% 
during 2008 and 1.4% during 2009.  These gains relate mostly to the success of the renovation program, but also 
reflect the change in our asset management approach.  

We consider expansion or redevelopment opportunities at our properties that offer attractive returns.  Most 
recently, we completed the comprehensive redevelopment of the San Francisco Marriott Union Square (formerly, a 
Crowne Plaza).  The market share index for this hotel increased to 115% in 2010 from 80% in 2007 (prior to 
renovations commencing).  Other recent projects include a new 35,000 square foot convention center adjacent to 
our Hilton Myrtle Beach Oceanfront Resort, additional meeting space at the Doubletree Guest Suites in Dana Point, 
California and new spa and food and beverage facilities at the Embassy Suites Deerfield Beach Resort & Spa. We 
are seeking approval and entitlements for additional redevelopment projects at multiple hotels; however, we will 
only implement those projects that ultimately satisfy our stringent capital investment criteria. 
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As part of our long-term capital plan, we anticipate renovating between six and eight core hotels each year.  
In 2011, we will start renovations at six hotels, in addition to the more than $20 million redevelopment project at 
the Fairmont Copley Plaza that will refresh the property and implement various value-enhancing initiatives.

Portfolio Management

As part of our long-term strategic plan to enhance stockholder value and achieve or exceed targeted returns 
on invested capital, we sell and acquire hotels to improve our overall portfolio quality, enhance diversification and 
improve growth rates.  Selling non-strategic hotels creates capacity to reduce our debt, pay accrued preferred 
dividends, invest capital in re-development opportunities at our remaining hotels and/or acquire hotels in our target 
markets, in each case consistent with our long-term strategy and internal underwriting standards.  In addition, 
selling non-strategic hotels reduces our future capital expenditures and enables management to focus on “core” 
long-term investments.   In that regard, in 2010 we reviewed each hotel in our portfolio in terms of projected 
performance, future capital expenditure requirements and market dynamics and concentration risk.  Based on this 
analysis, we developed a plan to sell our interests in 35 hotels (29 of which we consolidate the real estate interest 
and six of which are owned by unconsolidated joint ventures) that no longer meet our investment criteria.  We will 
bring these hotels to market at the appropriate time and will sell hotels only when we receive satisfactory pricing.

External Growth

We consider acquisitions that are accretive to long-term stockholder value, improve the overall quality of 
our portfolio, further diversify our portfolio by market, customer type and brand and improve future hotel EBITDA 
growth.  We limit our acquisitions to high quality hotels in major urban and resort markets with high barriers to 
entry and high growth potential, as typified by our 2010 purchase of the iconic Fairmont Copley Plaza located in 
Boston's Back Bay neighborhood (at $98.5 million, significantly less than replacement cost).  We take a highly 
disciplined approach to analyzing any potential acquisition, which must meet strict criteria. We seek hotels that are 
priced at a significant discount to replacement cost with investment returns that exceed our weighted average cost 
of capital. We also consider whether a hotel will benefit from application of our competitive strengths, and whether 
a hotel offers redevelopment opportunities that can further enhance our return on investment. 

Balance Sheet Strategy

We are committed to strengthening our balance sheet and reducing leverage. A healthy balance sheet 
provides the necessary flexibility and capacity to withstand lodging cycles, and provide capacity for appropriate 
acquisitions. We expect to reduce our leverage significantly and restructure our balance sheet through improved 
hotel operations and proceeds from future hotel sales, which we will use to repay and refinance our remaining debt. 
We will continue to look for additional opportunities to reduce overall debt levels and our average interest rate, 
increase our flexibility and ensure adequate long-term liquidity on an economically sound basis.

By mid-2010, we had successfully refinanced all of our near-term debt and eliminated all of our maturity 
issues in the face of a global recession and constrained capital markets. We refinanced or resolved $1.5 billion of 
debt through the end of 2010 and extended our weighted average debt maturity to the first quarter of 2014.  
Recently, we repaid two loans, totaling $177 million, for $130 million (a 27% discount), that were scheduled to 
mature in 2012 and opportunistically bought back $40 million of senior notes that mature this year.  We also 
increased our cash on-hand to provide added liquidity and at December 31, 2010 had more than $200 million of 
unrestricted cash. 
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Strategic Relationships

We benefit from our brand/manager alliances with Hilton Worldwide (Embassy Suites Hotels, Doubletree 
and Hilton), Starwood Hotels & Resorts Worldwide, Inc. (Sheraton and Westin), Marriott International, Inc. 
(Renaissance and Marriott), Fairmont Hotels & Resorts and InterContinental Hotels Group PLC (Holiday 
Inn).  These relationships enable us to work effectively with our managers to maximize margins and operating cash 
flow from our hotels.

• Hilton Worldwide (www.hiltonworldwide.com) is recognized internationally as a preeminent hospitality 
company.  Hilton owns, manages or franchises more than 3,600 hotels in 81 countries.  Its portfolio 
includes many of the world’s best-known and most highly regarded hotel brands, including Waldorf 
Astoria, Conrad, Hilton, Doubletree, Embassy Suites, Hilton Garden Inn, Hampton Inn, Homewood Suites, 
Home2 Suites, and Hilton Grand Vacations.  At December 31, 2010, 53 of our Consolidated Hotels were 
managed by Hilton subsidiaries.  Hilton is a 50% partner in joint ventures with us that own 11 hotels and 
manage residential condominiums.  Hilton also holds 10% equity interests in certain of our consolidated 
subsidiaries that own three hotels.

• Starwood Hotels & Resorts Worldwide, Inc. (www.starwoodhotels.com) is one of the leading hotel and 
leisure companies in the world with 1,000 properties in 100 countries. With internationally renowned 
brands, Starwood is a fully integrated owner, operator and franchisor of hotels and resorts including, 
St. Regis, The Luxury Collection, W, Westin, Le Méridien, Sheraton, Four Points, Element and 
Aloft.  Subsidiaries of Starwood managed eight of our Consolidated Hotels at December 31, 
2010.  Starwood indirectly owns 40% of one of our Consolidated Hotels.

• Marriott International, Inc. (www.marriott.com) is a leading lodging company with over 3,400 lodging 
properties worldwide.  Its portfolio includes 17 lodging and vacation resort ownership brands, including 
Ritz Carlton, Marriott, Renaissance, JW Marriott, Courtyard by Marriott, Fairfield Inn by Marriott and 
Residence Inn by Marriott.  At December 31, 2010, three of our Consolidated Hotels were managed by 
Marriott subsidiaries.

• Fairmont Hotels & Resorts (www.fairmont.com) is a leading luxury global hotel company, with a collection 
of 56 distinctive hotels.  At December 31, 2010, a Fairmont subsidiary managed the Fairmont Copley Plaza 
in Boston.

• InterContinental Hotels Group PLC (www.ichotelsgroup.com) of the United Kingdom is one of the world’s 
largest hotel companies by number of rooms.  IHG owns, manages, leases or franchises, through various 
subsidiaries, more than 4,500 hotels and over 650,000 guest rooms in 100 countries.  IHG owns a portfolio 
of well recognized and respected hotel brands, including InterContinental Hotels & Resorts, Crowne Plaza 
Hotels & Resorts, Holiday Inn, Holiday Inn Express, Hotel Indigo, Staybridge Suites and Candlewood 
Suites.  IHG also manages the world’s largest hotel loyalty program, Priority Club Rewards.  At 
December 31, 2010,  IHG subsidiaries managed 15 of our Consolidated Hotels.

Competition

The lodging industry is highly competitive. Each of our hotels is located in a developed area that includes 
other hotel properties and competes for guests primarily with other full service and limited service hotels in its 
immediate vicinity and secondarily with other hotel properties in its geographic market. We believe that location, 
brand recognition, the quality of the hotel, the services provided, and price are the principal competitive factors 
affecting our hotels.

10



Environmental Matters

Under various federal, state and local environmental laws, ordinances and regulations, a current or previous 
owner of real property may be liable for the removal or remediation of hazardous or toxic substances on, under or in 
a property.  These laws may impose liability whether or not the owner or operator knew of, or was responsible for, 
the presence of such hazardous or toxic substances.  In addition, certain environmental laws and common law 
principles could be used to impose liability for release of asbestos-containing materials, and third parties may seek 
recovery from owners or operators of real property for personal injury associated with exposure to related asbestos-
containing materials.  Environmental laws also may impose restrictions on the manner in which property may be 
used or businesses may be operated, and these restrictions may require corrective or other expenditures.  In 
connection with our current or prior ownership of hotels or other real estate, we may be potentially liable for 
various environmental costs or liabilities.

We customarily obtain a Phase I environmental survey from an independent environmental consultant 
before acquiring a hotel. The principal purpose of a Phase I survey is to identify indications of potential 
environmental contamination and, secondarily, to assess, to a limited extent, the potential for environmental 
regulatory compliance liabilities. The Phase I surveys of our hotels were designed to meet the requirements of the 
then current industry standards governing Phase I surveys, and consistent with those requirements, none of the 
surveys involved testing of groundwater, soil or air. Accordingly, they do not represent evaluations of conditions at 
the studied sites that would be revealed only through such testing.  In addition, Phase I assessments of 
environmental regulatory compliance issues is general in scope and not a detailed determination of a hotel’s 
environmental compliance. Similarly, Phase I reports do not involve comprehensive analysis of potential offsite 
liability. Our Phase I reports have not revealed any environmental liability that we believe would have a material 
adverse effect on our business, assets or results of operations, nor are we aware of any such liability. Nevertheless, it 
is possible that these reports do not reveal or accurately assess all material environmental conditions and that there 
are material environmental conditions of which we are unaware.

We believe that our hotels are in compliance, in all material respects, with all federal, state, local and 
foreign laws and regulations regarding hazardous substances and other environmental matters, the violation of 
which could have a material adverse effect on us. We have not been notified by any governmental authority or 
private party of any noncompliance, liability or claim relating to hazardous or toxic substances or other 
environmental matters in connection with any of our current or former properties that we believe would have a 
material adverse effect on our business, assets or results of operations.  However, obligations for compliance with 
environmental laws that arise or are discovered in the future may adversely affect our financial condition.

Tax Status

We elected to be treated as a REIT under the federal income tax laws. As a REIT, we generally are not 
subject to federal income taxation at the corporate level on taxable income that is distributed to our stockholders. 
We may, however, be subject to certain state and local taxes on our income and property and to federal income and 
excise taxes on our undistributed taxable income.  Our taxable REIT subsidiaries, or TRSs, formed to lease our 
hotels are subject to federal, state and local income taxes.  A REIT is subject to a number of organizational and 
operational requirements, including a requirement that it currently distribute at least 90% of its annual taxable 
income to its stockholders.  If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year for which the statute of limitations 
remains open, we will be subject to federal income taxes at regular corporate rates (including any applicable 
alternative minimum tax) for such taxable year and may not qualify as a REIT for four subsequent years.  In 
connection with our election to be treated as a REIT, our charter imposes restrictions on the ownership and transfer 
of shares of our common stock. FelCor LP expects to make distributions on its units sufficient to enable us to meet 
our distribution obligations as a REIT.  At December 31, 2010, we had a federal income tax loss carryforward of 
$169.4 million, and our TRSs had a federal income tax loss carryforward of $329.2 million.
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Employees

At December 31, 2010, we had 68 full-time employees.  No one employed in the day-to-day operation of 
our hotels is our employee.  All are employed by the management companies that operate our hotels on our behalf.

Item 1A.  Risk Factors

Certain statements and analyses contained in this report, in our 2010 Annual Report to Stockholders, or 
that may in the future be made by, or be attributable to, us, may constitute "forward-looking statements" within 
the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, and can be identified by the use of forward-
looking terminology such as "may," "will," "expect," "anticipate," "estimate" or "continue" or the negative thereof 
or other variations thereon or comparable terminology.  All of such forward-looking statements are based upon 
present expectations and assumptions that may or may not actually occur.  The following factors constitute 
cautionary statements identifying important factors, including material risks and uncertainties that could cause 
actual results to differ materially from those reflected in such forward-looking statements or in our historical 
results. Each of the following factors, among others, could adversely affect our ability to meet the current 
expectations of management.

We depend on external sources of capital  for future growth and we may be unable to access capital when 
necessary.

As a REIT, our ability to reduce our debt and finance our growth must largely be funded by external 
sources of capital because we are required to distribute to our stockholders at least 90% of our taxable income 
(other than net capital gains) including, in some cases, taxable income we recognize for federal income tax 
purposes but with regard to which we do not receive corresponding cash.  Our ability to obtain the external capital 
we require could be limited by a number of factors, many of which are outside our control, including general 
market conditions, unfavorable market perception of our future prospects, lower current and/or estimated future 
earnings, excessive cash distributions or a lower market price for our common stock.  

Our ability to access additional capital also may be limited by the terms of our existing indebtedness, 
which, under certain circumstances, restrict our incurrence of debt and the payment of distributions.  Any of these 
factors, individually or in combination, could prevent us from being able to obtain the external capital we require 
on terms that are acceptable to us, or at all.  Failing to obtain necessary external capital could have a material 
adverse effect on our ability to finance our future growth.

Our ability to pay dividends may be limited or prohibited by the terms of our indebtedness or preferred stock.

We currently are party to agreements and instruments that can restrict or prevent the payment of dividends 
on our common and preferred stock (except as necessary to retain REIT status). Under the agreements governing 
our 10% senior secured notes (our “Senior Notes”), dividend payments are permitted only to the extent that, at the 
time of the distribution, we can satisfy certain financial thresholds (concerning leverage, fixed charges and 
unsecured interest expense) and meet other requirements. Under the terms of our outstanding preferred stock, we 
are not permitted to pay dividends on our common stock unless all accrued preferred dividends have been paid.  
At December 31, 2010, we had $76.3 million of unpaid accrued preferred dividends. Until we pay accrued but 
unpaid preferred dividends, or we fail to pay future dividends on our preferred stock for any reason, including to 
comply with the terms of our Senior Notes, our preferred dividends will continue to accrue, and we will be 
prohibited from paying any common dividends until all such accrued but unpaid preferred dividends have been 
paid.
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We may be unable to sell non-strategic hotels when anticipated, or at all, or sell them for satisfactory pricing.

As part of our long-term strategic plan, we plan to sell non-strategic hotels and use the proceeds to reduce 
our leverage, pay accrued preferred dividends, invest in our portfolio and/or acquire hotels that fit our long-term 
strategy.  The current hotel transaction market is at an early stage relative to the economic cycle.  While the initial 
phase of our asset sales (2005 - 2007) took place in a particularly robust transaction market and overall economy, 
the current and ongoing transaction market is not as robust, we may be unable to sell hotels at acceptable prices, 
or at all.  Our ability to sell hotels is at least partially dependent on potential buyers obtaining financing.  If 
adequate financing is not available or is only available at undesirable terms, we may be unable to sell hotels or 
sell them for desired pricing.  If we are unable to sell non-strategic hotels or sell them for desired pricing, it could 
affect our ability to repay and refinance debt and slow the execution of our strategic plan.  If we sell a mortgaged 
hotel for less than the outstanding debt balance, we would be required to use cash to make up the shortfall or 
substitute an unencumbered hotel as collateral, which would restrict future flexibility when refinancing debt or 
restrict us from using cash for other purposes.

Compliance with, or failure to comply with, our financial covenants may adversely affect our financial position 
and results of operations.

The agreements governing our Senior Notes require that we satisfy total leverage, secured leverage and 
interest coverage tests in order, among other things, to: (i) incur additional indebtedness except to refinance 
maturing debt with replacement debt, as defined under our indentures; (ii) pay dividends in excess of the 
minimum distributions required to maintain our REIT status; (iii) repurchase capital stock; or (iv) merge.  These 
restrictions may adversely affect our ability to finance our operations or engage in other business activities that 
may be in our best interest.

Various political, economic, social or business risks, uncertainties and events beyond our control could 
affect our ability to comply with these covenants and financial thresholds.  Failure to comply with any of the 
covenants in our existing or future financing agreements could result in a default under those agreements and 
under other agreements containing cross-default provisions.  A default could permit lenders to accelerate the 
maturity of  obligations under these agreements and to foreclose upon any collateral securing those 
obligations.  Under these circumstances, we might not have sufficient funds or other resources to satisfy all of our 
obligations.  In addition, the limitations imposed by financing agreements on our ability to incur additional debt 
and to take other actions could significantly impair our ability to obtain other financing.  We cannot assure you 
that we will be granted waivers or amendments to these agreements if for any reason we are unable to comply 
with these agreements or that we will be able to refinance our debt on terms acceptable to us, or at all.

Certain of our subsidiaries have been formed as special purpose entities, or SPEs.  These SPEs have 
incurred mortgage debt secured by the assets of those SPEs, which debt is non-recourse to us, except in 
connection with certain customary recourse "carve-outs," including fraud, misapplication of funds, etc., in which 
case, this debt could become fully recourse to us.

We have substantial financial leverage.

At December 31, 2010, our consolidated debt ($1.5 billion) represented approximately 60% of our total 
enterprise value.  Declining revenues and cash flow may adversely affect our public debt ratings and may limit 
our access to additional debt.  Historically, we have incurred debt for  acquisitions and to fund our renovation, 
redevelopment and rebranding programs.  If our access to additional debt is limited, that could adversely affect 
our ability to fund these programs or acquire hotels in the future.
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Our financial leverage could have important consequences.  For example, it could:

• limit our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, renovation, redevelopment and 
rebranding plans, acquisitions, debt service requirements and other purposes;

• limit our ability to refinance existing debt;
• limit our ability to pay dividends, invest in unconsolidated joint ventures, etc.;
• require us to agree to additional restrictions and limitations on our business operations and capital 

structure to obtain financing;
• increase our vulnerability to adverse economic and industry conditions, and to interest rate fluctuations;
• require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to payments on our debt, 

thereby reducing funds available for capital expenditures, future business opportunities, paying dividends 
or other purposes;

• limit our flexibility to make, or react to, changes in our business and our industry; and
• place us at a competitive disadvantage, compared to our competitors that have less debt.

Our debt agreements will allow us to incur additional debt that, if incurred, could exacerbate the other risks 
described herein.

We may be able to incur substantial debt in the future.  Although the instruments governing our 
indebtedness contain restrictions on the incurrence of additional debt, these restrictions are subject to a number of 
qualifications and exceptions and, under certain circumstances, debt incurred in compliance with these restrictions 
could be substantial.  If we add incremental debt, the leverage-related risks described above would intensify.

We have substantial variable rate debt.

At December 31, 2010 approximately 45% of our consolidated outstanding debt had variable interest 
rates.  If variable interest rates were to increase significantly, the added expense could have a material adverse 
impact on our earnings and financial condition.

We are subject to the risks of real estate ownership, which could increase our costs of operations.

General Risks.  Our investment in hotels is subject to the numerous risks generally associated with 
owning real estate, including among others:

• adverse changes in general or local economic or real estate market conditions;
• changes in zoning laws;
• increases in lodging supply or competition;
• decreases in demand;
• changes in traffic patterns and neighborhood characteristics;
• increases in assessed property taxes from changes in valuation or real estate tax rates;
• increases in the cost of our property insurance;
• the potential for uninsured or underinsured property losses;
• costly governmental regulations and fiscal policies;
• changes in tax laws;
• our ability to acquire hotel properties at prices consistent with our investment criteria;
• our ability to fund capital expenditures at our hotels to maintain or enhance their competitive position; 

and
• other circumstances beyond our control.

Moreover, real estate investments are substantially illiquid, and we may not be able to adjust our portfolio 
in a timely manner to respond to changes in economic and other conditions.
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Compliance with environmental laws may adversely affect our financial condition.  Owners of real estate 
are subject to numerous federal, state, local and foreign environmental laws and regulations.  Under these laws 
and regulations, a current or former owner of real estate may be liable for the costs of remediating hazardous 
substances found on its property, whether or not they were responsible for its presence.  In addition, if an owner of 
real property arranges for the disposal of hazardous substances at another site, it may also be liable for the costs of 
remediating the disposal site, even if it did not own or operate the disposal site.  Such liability may be imposed 
without regard to fault or the legality of a party’s conduct and may, in certain circumstances, be joint and 
several.  A property owner may also be liable to third parties for personal injuries or property damage sustained as 
a result of its release of hazardous or toxic substances, including asbestos-containing materials, into the 
environment.  Environmental laws and regulations may require us to incur substantial expenses and limit the use 
of our properties.  We could have substantial liability for a failure to comply with applicable environmental laws 
and regulations, which may be enforced by the government or, in certain instances, by private parties.  The 
existence of hazardous substances on a property can also adversely affect the value of, and the owner’s ability to 
use, sell or borrow against the property.

We cannot provide assurances that future or amended laws or regulations, or more stringent 
interpretations or enforcement of existing environmental requirements, will not impose any material 
environmental liability, or that the environmental condition or liability relating to our hotels will not be affected 
by new information or changed circumstances, by the condition of properties in the vicinity of such hotels, such 
as the presence of leaking underground storage tanks, or by the actions of unrelated third parties.

Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act may adversely affect our financial condition.  Under 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (the "ADA"), all public accommodations, including hotels, are 
required to meet certain federal requirements for access and use by disabled persons.  Various state and local 
jurisdictions have also adopted requirements relating to the accessibility of buildings to disabled persons.  We 
believe that our hotels substantially comply with the requirements of the ADA and other applicable laws.  
However, we could be liable for both governmental fines and payments to private parties if it were determined 
that our hotels are not in compliance with these laws.  If we were required to make unanticipated major 
modifications to our hotels to comply with the requirements of the ADA and other similar laws, it could materially 
adversely affect our ability to make distributions to our stockholders and to satisfy our other obligations.

Lodging industry-related risks may adversely affect our business.

We are subject to the risks inherent to hotel operations.  We have ownership interests in the operating 
lessees of our hotels; consequently, we are subject to the risk of fluctuating hotel operating expenses at our hotels, 
including, but not limited to:

• wage and benefit costs, including hotels that employ unionized labor;
• repair and maintenance expenses;
• gas and electricity costs;
• insurance costs, including health, general liability and workers compensation; and
• other operating expenses.

In addition, we are subject to the risks of a decline in Hotel EBITDA margins, which occur when hotel 
operating expenses increase disproportionately to revenues or fail to shrink at least as fast as revenues 
decline.  These operating expenses and Hotel EBITDA margins are controlled by our independent managers over 
whom we have limited control.
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Investing in hotel assets involves special risks.  We have invested in hotel-related assets, and our hotels 
are subject to all of the risks common to the hotel industry.  These risks could adversely affect hotel occupancy 
and the rates that can be charged for hotel rooms, and generally include:

• adverse effects of declines in general and local economic activity;
• competition from other hotels;
• construction of more hotel rooms in a particular area than needed to meet demand;
• increases in energy costs and other travel expenses;
• other events, such as terrorist acts or war, that reduce business and leisure travel;
• fluctuations in our revenue caused by the seasonal nature of the hotel industry;
• an outbreak of a pandemic disease affecting the travel industry;
• a downturn in the hotel industry; and
• risks generally associated with the ownership of hotels and real estate, as discussed herein.

We could face increased competition.  Each of our hotels competes with other hotels in its geographic 
area.  A number of additional hotel rooms have been, or may be, built in a number of the geographic areas in 
which our hotels are located, which could adversely affect both occupancy and rates in those markets.  A 
significant increase in the supply of upscale and upper upscale hotel rooms, if demand fails to increase at least 
proportionately, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We face reduced coverages and increased costs of insurance.  Our property insurance has a $100,000 “all- 
risk” deductible, and a 5% deductible (insured value) for named windstorm and California earthquake 
coverage.  Substantial uninsured or not fully-insured losses would have a material adverse impact on our 
operating results, cash flows and financial condition.  Catastrophic losses, such as the losses caused by hurricanes 
in 2005, could make the cost of insuring against these types of losses prohibitively expensive or difficult to 
find.  In an effort to limit the cost of insurance, we purchase catastrophic insurance coverage based on probable 
maximum losses based on 250-year events and have only purchased terrorism insurance to the extent required by 
our lenders or franchisors.  We have established a self-insured retention of $250,000 per occurrence for general 
liability insurance with regard to 54 of our hotels.  The remainder of our hotels participate in general liability 
programs sponsored by our managers, with no deductible.

We could have property losses not covered by insurance.  Our property policies provide that all of the 
claims from each of our properties resulting from a particular insurable event must be combined together for 
purposes of evaluating whether the aggregate limits and sub-limits contained in our policies have been 
exceeded.  Therefore, if an insurable event occurs that affects more than one of our hotels, the claims from each 
affected hotel will be added together to determine whether the aggregate limit or sub-limits, depending on the type 
of claim, have been reached, and each affected hotel may only receive a proportional share of the amount of 
insurance proceeds provided for under the policy if the total value of the loss exceeds the aggregate limits 
available.  We may incur losses in excess of insured limits and, as a result, we may be even less likely to receive 
sufficient coverage for risks that affect multiple properties such as earthquakes or catastrophic terrorist 
acts.  There are risks such as war, catastrophic terrorist acts, nuclear, biological, chemical, or radiological attacks, 
and some environmental hazards that may be deemed to fall completely outside the general coverage limits of our 
policies or may be uninsurable or may be too expensive to justify insuring against.

We may also encounter disputes concerning whether an insurance provider will pay a particular claim that 
we believe is covered under our policy.  Should a loss in excess of insured limits or an uninsured loss occur or 
should we be unsuccessful in obtaining coverage from an insurance carrier, we could lose all, or a portion of, the 
capital we have invested in a property, as well as the anticipated future revenue from the hotel.  In that event, we 
might nevertheless remain obligated for any mortgage debt or other financial obligations related to the property.
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We obtain terrorism insurance to the extent required by lenders or franchisors as a part of our all-risk 
property insurance program, as well as our general liability and directors’ and officers’ coverages.  However, our 
all-risk policies have limitations such as per occurrence limits and sub-limits which might have to be shared 
proportionally across participating hotels under certain loss scenarios.  Also, all-risk insurers only have to provide 
terrorism coverage to the extent mandated by the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, or TRIA, for “certified” acts of 
terrorism - namely those which are committed on behalf of non-United States persons or interests.  Furthermore, 
we do not have full replacement coverage at all of our properties for acts of terrorism committed on behalf of 
United States persons or interests (“non-certified” events) as our coverage for such incidents is subject to sub-
limits and/or annual aggregate limits.  In addition, property damage related to war and to nuclear, biological and 
chemical incidents is excluded under our policies.  While TRIA will reimburse insurers for losses resulting from 
nuclear, biological and chemical perils, TRIA does not require insurers to offer coverage for these perils and, to 
date, insurers are not willing to provide this coverage, even with government reinsurance.  Additionally, there is a 
possibility that Congress will not renew TRIA in the future, which would eliminate the federal subsidy for 
terrorism losses.  As a result of the above, there remains uncertainty regarding the extent and adequacy of 
terrorism coverage that will be available to protect our interests in the event of future terrorist attacks that impact 
our properties.

We have geographic concentrations that may create risks from regional or local economic, seismic or 
weather conditions.  At December 31, 2010, approximately 48% of our hotel rooms were located in, and 47% of 
our 2010 Hotel EBITDA was generated from, three states:  California, Florida and Texas.  Additionally, at 
December 31, 2010, we had concentrations in six major metropolitan areas, the San Francisco Bay area, Atlanta, 
South Florida, Boston, Dallas and the Los Angeles area, which together represented approximately 35% of our 
Hotel EBITDA for the year ended December 31, 2010.  Therefore, adverse economic, seismic or weather 
conditions in these states or metropolitan areas may have a greater adverse effect on us than on the industry as a 
whole.

Transfers and/or termination of franchise licenses and management agreements may be prohibited or 
restricted. Hotel managers and franchise licensors may have the right to terminate their agreements or suspend 
their services in the event of default under such agreements or other third party agreements such as ground leases 
and mortgages, upon the loss of liquor licenses, or in the event of the sale or transfer of the hotel. Franchise 
licenses may expire by their terms, and we may not be able to obtain replacement franchise license agreements.

If a management agreement or franchise license were terminated, under certain circumstances (such as the 
sale of a hotel), we could be liable for liquidated damages (which may be guaranteed by us or certain of our 
subsidiaries).  In addition, we may need to obtain a different franchise and/or engage a different manager, and the 
costs and disruption associated with those changes could be significant (and materially adverse to the value of the 
affected hotel) because of the loss of associated name recognition, marketing support and centralized reservation 
systems provided by the franchise licensor or operations management provided by the manager.  Additionally, 
most of our management agreements restrict our ability to encumber our interests in the applicable hotels under 
certain circumstances without the managers’ consent, which can make it more difficult to obtain secured financing 
on acceptable terms.

We are subject to possible adverse effects of management, franchise and license agreement 
requirements.  All of our hotels are operated under existing management, franchise or license agreements with 
nationally recognized hotel companies.  Each agreement requires that the licensed hotel be maintained and 
operated in accordance with specific standards and restrictions in order to maintain uniformity within the 
brand.  Compliance with these standards, and changes in these standards, could require us to incur significant 
expenses or capital expenditures, which could adversely affect our results of operations and ability to pay 
dividends to our stockholders and service on our indebtedness.

17



We are subject to the risks of brand concentration.  We are subject to the potential risks associated with 
the concentration of our hotels under a limited number of brands.  A negative public image or other adverse event 
that becomes associated with the brand could adversely affect hotels operated under that brand.

The following table reflects the percentage of Hotel EBITDA from our 81 Consolidated Hotels at 
December 31, 2010 by brand:

 

Embassy Suites Hotels

Holiday Inn

Sheraton and Westin

Doubletree

Renaissance and Marriott

Hilton

Fairmont

 
 

Hotels
45

15

8

7

3

2

1

% of 2010
Hotel

EBITDA(a)

58

18

9

7

3

3

2 (b)

(a) Hotel EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure.  A detailed reconciliation and further discussion of 
Hotel EBITDA is contained in the “Non-GAAP Financial Measures” section of Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in Item 7 of this Annual Report.

(b) We acquired the Fairmont Copley Plaza in August 2010, and this table reflects only results of operations 
for the period in which we owned the hotel.

If any of these brands suffer a significant decline in appeal to the traveling public, the revenues and 
profitability of our branded hotels could be adversely affected.

The lodging business is seasonal in nature.  Generally, hotel revenues for our hotel portfolio are greater in 
the second and third calendar quarters than in the first and fourth calendar quarters, although this may not be true 
for hotels in major tourist destinations.  Revenues for hotels in tourist areas are generally substantially greater 
during tourist season than other times of the year.  We expect that seasonal variations in revenue at our hotels will 
cause quarterly fluctuations in our revenues.

The increasing use of Internet travel intermediaries by consumers may adversely affect our profitability.

Some of our hotel rooms may be booked through Internet travel intermediaries.  As these Internet 
bookings increase, these intermediaries may be able to obtain higher commissions, reduced room rates or other 
significant contract concessions from us and our management companies.  Moreover, some of these Internet travel 
intermediaries are attempting to offer hotel rooms as a commodity, by increasing the importance of price and 
general indicators of quality (such as “three-star downtown hotel”) at the expense of brand identification.  These 
agencies hope that consumers will eventually develop brand loyalties to their reservations system rather than to 
the brands under which our hotels are franchised.  If the amount of sales made through Internet intermediaries 
increases significantly, room revenues may flatten or decrease and our profitability may be adversely affected.

Future terrorist activities and political instability may adversely affect, and create uncertainty in, our business.

Terrorism in the United States or elsewhere could have an adverse effect on our business, although the 
degree of impact will depend on a number of factors, including the U.S. and global economies and global 
financial markets.  Previous terrorist attacks in the United States and subsequent terrorism alerts have adversely 
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affected the travel and hospitality industries in the past.  Such attacks, or the threat of such attacks, could have a 
material adverse effect on our business, our ability to finance our business, our ability to insure our properties, 
and/or our results of operations and financial condition, as a whole.

If we fail to comply with applicable privacy laws and regulations, we could be subject to payment of fines, 
damages or face restrictions on our use of guest data.

Our managers collect information relating to our guests for various business purposes, including 
marketing and promotional purposes. Collecting and using of personal data is governed by U.S. and other privacy 
laws and regulations.  Privacy regulations continue to evolve and may be inconsistent from one jurisdiction to 
another. Compliance with applicable privacy regulations may increase our operating costs and/or adversely impact 
our manager's ability to market our products, properties and services to our guests. In addition, non-compliance 
(or in some circumstances non-compliance by third parties engaged by us), or a breach of security on systems 
storing privacy data, may result in fines, payment of damages or restrictions on our use or transfer of data.

As a REIT, we are subject to specific tax laws and regulations, the violation of which could subject us to 
significant tax liabilities.

The federal income tax laws governing REITs are complex.  We have operated, and intend to continue to 
operate, in a manner that is intended to enable us to qualify as a REIT under the federal income tax laws.  The 
REIT qualification requirements are extremely complicated, and interpretations of the federal income tax laws 
governing qualification as a REIT are limited.  Accordingly, we cannot be certain that we have been, or will 
continue to be, successful in operating so as to qualify as a REIT.

The federal income tax laws governing REITs are subject to change.  At any time, the federal income tax 
laws governing REITs or the administrative interpretations of those laws may be amended.  These new laws, 
interpretations, or court decisions may change the federal income tax laws relating to, or the federal income tax 
consequences of, qualification as a REIT. Any of these new laws or interpretations may take effect retroactively 
and could adversely affect us, or you as a stockholder.

Failure to make required distributions would subject us to tax.  Each year, a REIT must pay out to its 
stockholders at least 90% of its taxable income, other than any net capital gain.  To the extent that we satisfy the 
90% distribution requirement, but distribute less than 100% of our taxable income, we will be subject to federal 
corporate income tax on our undistributed taxable income.  In addition, we will be subject to a 4% nondeductible 
tax if the actual amount we pay out to our stockholders in a calendar year is less than the minimum amount 
specified under federal tax laws.  Our only source of funds to make such distributions comes from distributions 
from FelCor LP.  Accordingly, we may be required to borrow money or sell assets to enable us to pay out enough 
of our taxable income to satisfy the distribution requirements and to avoid corporate income tax and the 4% tax in 
a particular year.

Failure to qualify as a REIT would subject us to federal income tax.  If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any 
taxable year for which the statute of limitations remains open we would be subject to federal income tax at regular 
corporate rates (including any applicable alternative minimum tax) for such taxable year and may not qualify as a 
REIT for four subsequent years.  We might need to borrow money or sell hotels in order to obtain the funds 
necessary to pay any such tax.  If we cease to be a REIT, we no longer would be required to distribute most of our 
taxable income to our stockholders.  Unless our failure to qualify as a REIT was excused under federal income tax 
laws, we could not re-elect REIT status until the fifth calendar year following the year in which we failed to 
qualify.
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We lack control over the management and operations of our hotels.  Because federal income tax laws 
restrict REITs and their subsidiaries from operating hotels, we do not manage our hotels.  Instead, we are 
dependent on the ability of independent third-party managers to operate our hotels pursuant to management 
agreements.  As a result, we are unable to directly implement strategic business decisions for the operation and 
marketing of our hotels, such as decisions with respect to the setting of room rates, the salary and benefits
provided to hotel employees, the conduct of food and beverage operations and similar matters.  While our taxable 
REIT subsidiaries monitor the third-party manager’s performance, we have limited specific recourse under our 
management agreements if we believe the third-party managers are not performing adequately.  Failure by our 
third-party managers to fully perform the duties agreed to in our management agreements could adversely affect 
our results of operations.  In addition, our third-party managers or their affiliates manage hotels that compete with 
our hotels, which may result in conflicts of interest.  As a result, our third-party managers may have in the past 
made, and may in the future make, decisions regarding competing lodging facilities that are not or would not be in 
our best interests.

Complying with REIT requirements may cause us to forgo attractive opportunities that could otherwise 
generate strong risk-adjusted returns and instead pursue less attractive opportunities, or none at all.

To continue to qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes, we must continually satisfy tests 
concerning, among other things, the sources of our income, the nature and diversification of our assets, the 
amounts we distribute to our stockholders and the ownership of our stock. Thus, compliance with the REIT 
requirements may hinder our ability to operate solely on the basis of generating strong risk-adjusted returns on 
invested capital for our stockholders.

Complying with REIT requirements may force us to liquidate otherwise attractive investments, which could 
result in an overall loss on our investments.

To continue to qualify as a REIT, we must also ensure that at the end of each calendar quarter at least 75% 
of the value of our assets consists of cash, cash items, government securities and qualified REIT real estate assets. 
The remainder of our investment in securities (other than government securities and qualified real estate assets) 
generally cannot include more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of any one issuer or more than 10% 
of the total value of the outstanding securities of any one issuer. In addition, in general, no more than 5% of the 
value of our assets (other than government securities and qualified real estate assets) can consist of the securities 
of any one issuer, and no more than 25% of the value of our total securities can be represented by securities of one 
or more TRSs.  If we fail to comply with these requirements at the end of any calendar quarter, we must correct 
such failure within 30 days after the end of the calendar quarter to avoid losing our REIT status and suffering 
adverse tax consequences. If we fail to comply with these requirements at the end of any calendar quarter, we may 
be able to preserve our REIT status by benefiting from certain statutory relief provisions. Except with respect to a 
de minimis failure of the 5% asset test or the 10% vote or value test, we can maintain our REIT status only if the 
failure was due to reasonable cause and not to willful neglect. In that case, we will be required to dispose of the 
assets causing the failure within six months after the last day of the quarter in which we identified the failure, and 
we will be required to pay an additional tax of the greater of $50,000 or the product of the highest applicable tax 
rate (currently 35%) multiplied by the net income generated on those assets. As a result, we may be required to 
liquidate otherwise attractive investments.

We own, and may acquire, interests in hotel joint ventures with third parties that expose us to some risk of 
additional liabilities or capital requirements.

We own, through our subsidiaries, interests in several real estate joint ventures with third parties.  Joint 
ventures that are not consolidated into our financial statements owned real estate interests in a total of 13 hotels, 
in which we had an aggregate investment of $76 million, at December 31, 2010.  The lessee operations of 12 of 
these 13 hotels are included in our consolidated results of operations due to our majority ownership of those

20



lessees.  Our joint venture partners are affiliates of Hilton with respect to 11 hotels, and private entities or 
individuals (all of whom are unaffiliated with us) with respect to two hotels.  The ventures and hotels were subject 
to non-recourse mortgage loans aggregating $155 million at December 31, 2010.

The personal liability of our subsidiaries under existing non-recourse loans secured by the hotels owned 
by our joint ventures is generally limited to the guaranty of the borrowing ventures’ personal obligations to pay 
for the lender’s losses caused by misconduct, fraud or misappropriation of funds by the ventures and other typical 
exceptions from the non-recourse covenants in the mortgages, such as those relating to environmental 
liability.  We may invest in other ventures in the future that own hotels and have recourse or non-recourse debt 
financing.  If a venture defaults under its mortgage loan, the lender may accelerate the loan and demand payment 
in full before taking action to foreclose on the hotel.  As a partner or member in any of these ventures, our 
subsidiary may be exposed to liability for claims asserted against the venture, and the venture may not have 
sufficient assets or insurance to discharge the liability.

Our subsidiaries may be contractually or legally unable to control decisions unilaterally regarding these 
ventures and their hotels.  In addition, the hotels in a joint venture may perform at levels below expectations, 
resulting in potential insolvency unless the joint venturers provide additional funds.  In some ventures, the joint 
venturers may elect not to make additional capital contributions.  We may be faced with the choice of losing our 
investment in a venture or investing additional capital in it with no guaranty of receiving a return on that 
investment.

Our directors may have interests that may conflict with our interests.

A director who has a conflict of interest with respect to an issue presented to our board will have no 
inherent legal obligation to abstain from voting upon that issue.  We do not have provisions in our bylaws or 
charter that require an interested director to abstain from voting upon an issue, and we do not expect to add 
provisions in our charter and bylaws to this effect.  Although each director has a duty of loyalty to us, there is a 
risk that, should an interested director vote upon an issue in which a director or one of his or her affiliates has an 
interest, his or her vote may reflect a bias that could be contrary to our best interests.  In addition, even if an 
interested director abstains from voting, that director’s participation in the meeting and discussion of an issue in 
which they have, or companies with which he or she is associated have, an interest could influence the votes of 
other directors regarding the issue.

Departure of key personnel would deprive us of the institutional knowledge, expertise and leadership they 
provide.

Our executive management team includes our President and Chief Executive Officer and four Executive 
Vice Presidents.  In addition, we have several other long-tenured senior officers.  These executives and officers 
generally possess institutional knowledge about our organization and the hospitality or real estate industries, have 
significant expertise in their fields, and possess leadership skills that are important to our operations.  The loss of 
any of our executives or other long-serving officers could adversely affect our ability to execute our business 
strategy.

Our charter contains limitations on ownership and transfer of shares of our stock that could adversely affect 
attempted transfers of our capital stock.

To maintain our status as a REIT, no more than 50% in value of our outstanding stock may be owned, 
actually or constructively, under the applicable tax rules, by five or fewer persons during the last half of any 
taxable year.  Our charter prohibits, subject to some exceptions, any person from owning more than 9.9%, as 
determined in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, of the 
number of outstanding shares of any class of our stock.  Our charter also prohibits any transfer of our stock that 

21



would result in a violation of the 9.9% ownership limit, reduce the number of stockholders below 100 or 
otherwise result in our failure to qualify as a REIT.  Any attempted transfer of shares in violation of the charter 
prohibitions will be void, and the intended transferee will not acquire any right in those shares.  We have the
right to take any lawful action that we believe is necessary or advisable to ensure compliance with these 
ownership and transfer restrictions and to preserve our status as a REIT, including refusing to recognize any 
transfer of stock in violation of our charter.

Some provisions in our charter and bylaws and Maryland law make a takeover more difficult.

Ownership Limit.  The ownership and transfer restrictions of our charter may have the effect of 
discouraging or preventing a third party from attempting to gain control of us without the approval of our board of 
directors.  Accordingly, it is less likely that a change in control, even if beneficial to stockholders, could be 
effected without the approval of our board.

Staggered Board.  Our board of directors is divided into three classes.  Directors in each class are elected 
for terms of three years.  As a result, the ability of stockholders to effect a change in control of us through the 
election of new directors is limited by the inability of stockholders to elect a majority of our board at any 
particular meeting.

Authority to Issue Additional Shares.  Under our charter, our board of directors may issue up to an 
aggregate of 20 million shares of preferred stock without stockholder action.  The preferred stock may be issued, 
in one or more series, with the preferences and other terms designated by our board that may delay or prevent a 
change in control of us, even if the change is in the best interests of stockholders.  At December 31, 2010, we had 
outstanding 12,880,475 shares of our Series A preferred stock and 67,980 shares, represented by 6,798,000 
depositary shares, of our Series C preferred stock.

Maryland Takeover Statutes. As a Maryland corporation, we are subject to various provisions under the 
Maryland General Corporation Law, including the Maryland Business Combination Act, that may have the effect 
of delaying or preventing a transaction or a change in control that might involve a premium price for the stock or 
otherwise be in the best interests of stockholders.  Under the Maryland business combination statute, some 
“business combinations,” including some issuances of equity securities, between a Maryland corporation and an 
“interested stockholder,” which is any person who beneficially owns 10% or more of the voting power of the 
corporation’s shares, or an affiliate of that stockholder, are prohibited for five years after the most recent date on 
which the interested stockholder becomes an interested stockholder.  Any of these business combinations must be 
approved by a stockholder vote meeting two separate super majority requirements, unless, among other 
conditions, the corporation’s common stockholders receive a minimum price, as defined in the statute, for their 
shares and the consideration is received in cash or in the same form as previously paid by the interested 
stockholder for its common shares.  Our charter currently provides that the Maryland Control Share Acquisition 
Act will not apply to any of our existing or future stock.  That statute may deny voting rights to shares involved in 
an acquisition of one-tenth or more of the voting stock of a Maryland corporation.  To the extent these or other 
laws are applicable to us, they may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control of us even though 
beneficial to our stockholders.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 2.     Properties

We own a diversified portfolio of hotels managed and branded by Hilton, Starwood, Marriott, Fairmont 
and IHG.  Our hotels are high-quality lodging properties with respect to desirability of location, size, facilities, 
physical condition, quality and variety of services offered in the markets in which they are located.  Our hotels 
are designed to appeal to a broad range of hotel customers, including frequent business travelers, groups and 
conventions, as well as leisure travelers.  They generally feature comfortable, modern guest rooms, meeting and 
convention facilities and full-service restaurant and catering facilities.  At December 31, 2010, our Consolidated 
Hotels were located in the United States (79 hotels in 22 states) and Canada (two hotels in Ontario), with 
concentrations in major markets and resort areas.  The following table illustrates the distribution of our 81 
Consolidated Hotels at December 31, 2010.

Market
South Florida Area
Los Angeles
San Francisco Area
Atlanta
Dallas
Boston
Minneapolis
Philadelphia
Orlando
Central California Coast
Myrtle Beach
New Orleans
San Antonio
San Diego
Other

Location
Urban
Suburban
Airport
Resort

 
Hotels

5
4
6
5
4
3
3
2
4
2
2
2
3
1

35

 
21
32
18
10

 
Rooms

1,439
899

2,138
1,462
1,333

915
736
729

1,038
408
640
744
874
600

9,381

 
6,741
7,880
5,788
2,927

% of
Total Rooms

6
4
9
6
6
4
3
3
4
2
3
3
4
3

40

 
29
34
25
12

% of 2010 
Hotel EBITDA(a)

7
6
6
6
5
5
4
4
4
4
4
4
3
3

35

 
32
29
23
16

(b)

(b)

(a) Hotel EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure.  A detailed reconciliation and further discussion of 
Hotel EBITDA is contained in the “Non-GAAP Financial Measures” section of Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in Item 7 of this Annual 
Report.

(b) We acquired the Fairmont Copley Plaza in August 2010, and this table reflects only results of operations 
for the period in which we owned the hotel.

We are committed to maintaining high standards at our hotels.  Our hotels average 288 rooms, with six 
hotels having 400 or more rooms.  In 2008, we completed the last phase of a multi-year, portfolio-wide 
renovation program costing more than $450 million.  The program was designed to upgrade, modernize and 
renovate all of our hotels to enhance or maintain their competitive position.  For 2010, our pro rata share of 
capital expenditures spent on consolidated and unconsolidated hotels, including renovations and redevelopment 
projects, was $40.4 million.  We also spent 7.0% of our consolidated room revenue on maintenance and repair 
expense.
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Hotel Brands

Part of our business strategy is to have some of the most recognized and respected hotel brand owners 
manage our hotels.  The following table illustrates the distribution of our Consolidated Hotels among our brands 
at December 31, 2010.

Brand Distribution

Brand
Embassy Suites Hotels

Holiday Inn

Sheraton and Westin

Doubletree

Renaissance and Marriott

Hilton
Fairmont

 
Hotels

45

15

8

7

3

2
1

 
Rooms

11,674

5,154

2,774

1,471

1,321

559
383

% of
Total Rooms

50

22

12

6

6

2
2

% of 2010 
Hotel EBITDA(a)

58

18

9

7

3

3
2

(b)

(a) Hotel EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure.  A detailed reconciliation and further discussion of 
Hotel EBITDA is contained in the “Non-GAAP Financial Measures” section of Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in Item 7 of this Annual Report.

(b) We acquired the Fairmont Copley Plaza in August 2010, and this table reflects only results of operations 
for the period in which we owned the hotel.

Embassy Suites Hotels

Embassy Suites Hotels is the nation’s largest brand of upper-upscale all-suite hotels.  Created in 1983, 
Embassy Suites Hotels was a pioneer in the all-suite concept and today is a market share leader with more than 
200 hotels internationally.  Embassy Suites Hotels maintains a significant presence in its segment in terms of 
system size, geographic distribution, brand-name recognition and operating performance.  As part of the Hilton 
Worldwide family, Embassy Suites Hotels participate in the Hilton HHonors frequent guest program.

Holiday Inn

 Holiday Inn is one of the world's most recognized brands with more than 1,200 hotels worldwide.  The 
hotels offer business and family-friendly hotel accommodations and services at an excellent value.  The hotel 
chain completed a re-launch of the brand in 2010 that included refreshing every hotel in the system at a 
chainwide cost of $1 billion.   Holiday Inn participates in IHG’s Priority Club frequent guest program.

Sheraton Hotels & Resorts

With approximately 400 hotels and resorts in 70 countries, Sheraton Hotels & Resorts is the largest 
brand in the Starwood system.  Located in major cities and resort destinations, Sheraton hotels serve the needs 
of both business and leisure travelers.  Sheraton hotels participate in the Starwood Preferred Guest frequent 
traveler program.

Doubletree Hotels

Doubletree hotels are upscale accommodations for business and leisure travelers in more than 200 
gateway cities, metropolitan areas and vacation destinations worldwide.  As part of the Hilton Worldwide 
family, Doubletree hotels participate in the Hilton HHonors frequent guest program.

Renaissance Hotels & Resorts

Renaissance Hotels & Resorts is a distinctive upper-upscale full-service brand that targets individual 
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business and leisure travelers and group meetings by offering stylish and personalized environments.  There are 
over 145 Renaissance Hotels & Resorts worldwide.  Renaissance hotels participate in the Marriott Rewards 
frequent traveler program.

Other Hotels

As of December 31, 2010, five of our hotels were operated under other flags: Fairmont, Hilton (two 
hotels), Marriott and Westin.

Hotel Operating Statistics

The following tables set forth average historical occupancy (occupied rooms), ADR and RevPAR for the years 
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the percentage changes therein for the periods presented for 80 of our 
Consolidated Hotels owned for all of the periods presented (excludes the Fairmont Copley Plaza acquired in 
August 2010).

Operating Statistics by Brand

 
 
 
Embassy Suites Hotels
Holiday Inn
Sheraton and Westin
Doubletree
Renaissance and Marriott
Hilton

Total hotels

 
 
 
Embassy Suites Hotels
Holiday Inn
Sheraton and Westin
Doubletree
Renaissance and Marriott
Hilton

Total hotels

 
 
 
Embassy Suites Hotels
Holiday Inn
Sheraton and Westin
Doubletree
Renaissance and Marriott
Hilton
 
Total hotels

 Occupancy (%)
Year Ended December 31,
2010

72.2
71.5
64.9
72.6
63.9
61.5

70.5

 ADR ($)
Year Ended December 31,
2010

124.81
114.16
102.64
116.37
165.95
123.55

121.47

 RevPAR ($)
Year Ended December 31,
2010
90.10
81.65
66.64
84.52

106.00
75.96

 
85.58

2009
68.1
68.7
60.4
65.5
61.4
60.0

66.6

2009
128.33
112.22
105.25
122.59
163.16
115.46

123.26

2009
87.44
77.11
63.58
80.35

100.21
69.32

 
82.07

 
%Variance

5.9
4.1
7.5

10.8
4.0
2.4

5.8

 
%Variance

(2.7)
1.7

(2.5)
(5.1)
1.7
7.0

(1.5)

 
%Variance

3.0
5.9
4.8
5.2
5.8
9.6

 
4.3
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Operating Statistics for our Top Markets (80 Consolidated Hotels)

 

 

South Florida
Los Angeles area
San Francisco area
Atlanta
Dallas

Minneapolis

Philadelphia

Orlando

Central California Coast

Myrtle Beach

New Orleans

Boston

San Antonio

San Diego

 

South Florida

Los Angeles area

San Francisco area

Atlanta

Dallas

Minneapolis

Philadelphia

Orlando

Central California Coast

Myrtle Beach

New Orleans
Boston
San Antonio
San Diego
 

 

 
South Florida
Los Angeles area
San Francisco area
Atlanta
Dallas
Minneapolis
Philadelphia
Orlando
Central California Coast
Myrtle Beach

New Orleans

Boston
San Antonio
San Diego

Occupancy (%)
Year Ended December 31,

2010
76.0
73.8
74.5
73.4
64.3

74.6

70.9

74.0

73.5

61.0

68.5

81.2

73.6

75.8
ADR ($)

Year Ended December 31,
2010

125.88

137.01

134.83

104.02

108.92

124.74

125.56

107.20

158.07

135.78

124.45
138.58
96.80

120.13
RevPAR ($)

Year Ended December 31,
2010
95.62

101.17
100.50
76.40
70.00
93.04
89.03
79.36

116.19
82.81

85.28

112.55
71.19
91.10

2009
73.0
71.6
69.1
69.7
58.6

66.6

66.4

74.0

72.8

59.6

58.9

77.8

70.0

72.6

2009
129.18

135.63

129.66

104.71

114.92

127.53

135.22

110.75

156.45

133.48

123.90
133.97
102.74
124.75

2009
94.28
97.07
89.54
73.01
67.34
84.88
89.81
81.93

113.95
79.49

73.00

104.22
71.89
90.58

 
%Variance

4.1
3.2
7.9
5.3
9.7

12.1

6.8

0.1

0.9

2.4

16.3

4.4

5.1

4.4

%Variance
(2.6)

1.0

4.0

(0.7)

(5.2)

(2.2)

(7.1)

(3.2)

1.0

1.7

0.4
3.4

(5.8)
(3.7)

 
%Variance

1.4
4.2

12.2
4.6
4.0
9.6

(0.9)
(3.1)
2.0
4.2

16.8

8.0
(1.0)
0.6
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Hotel Portfolio

The following table sets forth certain descriptive information regarding the 82 hotels in which we held 
ownership interests at December 31, 2010.

Consolidated Hotel

Birmingham

Phoenix – Biltmore
Phoenix – Crescent
Phoenix – Tempe
Anaheim – North
Dana Point – Doheny Beach
Indian Wells – Esmeralda Resort & Spa
Los Angeles – International Airport/South
Milpitas – Silicon Valley
Napa Valley
Oxnard – Mandalay Beach – Hotel & Resort
San Diego – On the Bay
San Francisco – Airport/Burlingame
San Francisco – Airport/South San Francisco
San Francisco – Fisherman’s Wharf
San Francisco – Union Square
San Rafael – Marin County
Santa Barbara – Goleta
Santa Monica Beach – at the Pier
Wilmington
Boca Raton
Deerfield Beach – Resort & Spa
Ft. Lauderdale – 17th Street
Ft. Lauderdale – Cypress Creek
Jacksonville – Baymeadows
Miami – International Airport
Orlando – International Airport
Orlando – International Drive South/Convention
Orlando– North
Orlando – Walt Disney World Resort
St. Petersburg – Vinoy Resort & Golf Club
Tampa – Tampa Bay
Atlanta – Airport
Atlanta – Buckhead
Atlanta – Galleria
Atlanta – Gateway – Atlanta Airport
Atlanta – Perimeter Center
Chicago – Lombard/Oak Brook
Chicago – Gateway – O’Hare
Indianapolis – North
Kansas City – Overland Park
Lexington – Lexington Green
Baton Rouge
New Orleans – Convention Center

Brand

 Embassy Suites Hotel

 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Sheraton
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Doubletree Guest Suites
 Renaissance Resort
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Holiday Inn
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Holiday Inn
 Marriott
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Holiday Inn
 Holiday Inn
 Doubletree
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Sheraton Suites
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Holiday Inn
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Doubletree Guest Suites
 Renaissance Resort
 Doubletree Guest Suites
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Sheraton Suites
 Sheraton
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Sheraton Suites
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Hilton Suites
 Embassy Suites Hotel
 Embassy Suites Hotel

State

 AL

 AZ
 AZ
 AZ
 CA
 CA
 CA
 CA
 CA
 CA
 CA
 CA
 CA
 CA
 CA
 CA
 CA
 CA
 CA
 DE
 FL
 FL
 FL
 FL
 FL
 FL
 FL
 FL
 FL
 FL
 FL
 FL
 GA
 GA
 GA
 GA
 GA
 IL
 IL
 IN
 KS
 KY
 LA
 LA

Rooms

242

232
342
224
222
196
560
349
266
205
248
600
340
312
585
400
235
160
132
244
263
244
361
253
277
318
288
244
277
229
361
203
232
316
278
395
241
262
296
221
199
174
223
370

% Owned(a)

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

50%
 
 

90%
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

50%
50%

 
82%
50%
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Hotel Portfolio Listing (continued)

 Consolidated Hotel

New Orleans – French Quarter

Boston – at Beacon Hill

Boston – Copley Plaza

Boston – Marlborough

Baltimore – at BWI Airport

Bloomington

Minneapolis – Airport

St. Paul – Downtown

Kansas City – Plaza

Charlotte

Charlotte – SouthPark

Raleigh/Durham

Raleigh – Crabtree

Parsippany

Secaucus – Meadowlands

Philadelphia – Historic District

Philadelphia – Society Hill

Pittsburgh – at University Center (Oakland)

Charleston – Mills House

Myrtle Beach – Oceanfront Resort

Myrtle Beach Resort

Nashville – Airport – Opryland Area

Nashville – Opryland – Airport (Briley Parkway)

Austin

Austin – Central

Corpus Christi

Dallas – DFW International Airport South

Dallas – Love Field

Dallas – Market Center

Dallas – Park Central

Houston – Medical Center

San Antonio – International Airport

San Antonio – International Airport

San Antonio – NW I-10

Burlington Hotel & Conference Center

 

Canada

Toronto – Airport

Toronto – Yorkdale

Unconsolidated Hotel

New Orleans – French Quarter – Chateau 
   LeMoyne

Brand

 Holiday Inn

 Holiday Inn

 Fairmont

 Embassy Suites Hotel

 Embassy Suites Hotel

 Embassy Suites Hotel

 Embassy Suites Hotel

 Embassy Suites Hotel

 Embassy Suites Hotel

 Embassy Suites Hotel

 Doubletree Guest Suites

 Doubletree Guest Suites

 Embassy Suites Hotel

 Embassy Suites Hotel

 Embassy Suites Hotel

 Holiday Inn

 Sheraton

 Holiday Inn

 Holiday Inn

 Embassy Suites Hotel

 Hilton

 Embassy Suites Hotel

 Holiday Inn

 Doubletree Guest Suites

 Embassy Suites Hotel

 Embassy Suites Hotel

 Embassy Suites Hotel

 Embassy Suites Hotel

 Embassy Suites Hotel

 Westin

 Holiday Inn

 Embassy Suites Hotel

 Holiday Inn

 Embassy Suites Hotel

 Sheraton

 

 Holiday Inn

 Holiday Inn

 

 Holiday Inn

State

 LA

 MA

 MA

 MA

 MD

 MN

 MN

 MN

 MO

 NC

 NC

 NC

 NC

 NJ

 NJ

 PA

 PA

 PA

 SC

 SC

 SC

 TN

 TN

 TX

 TX

 TX

 TX

 TX

 TX

 TX

 TX

 TX

 TX

 TX

 VT

 

 Ontario

 Ontario

 LA

Rooms

374

303

383

229

251

218

310

208

266

274

208

203

225

274

261

364

365

251

214

255

385

296

383

188

260

150

305

248

244

536

287

261

397

216

309

 

446

370

171

% Owned(a)

 

 

 

90%

 

 

 

50%

50%

 

 

50%

50%

50%

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

90%

50%

 

 

 

 

60%

 

50%

 

50%

 

 

 

 

50%

(a) We own 100% of the real estate interests unless otherwise noted. 
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Management Agreements

At December 31, 2010, of our 81 Consolidated Hotels, (i) Hilton subsidiaries managed 53 hotels, 
(ii) IHG subsidiaries managed 15 hotels, (iii) Starwood subsidiaries managed eight hotels, (iv) Marriott 
subsidiaries managed three hotels, (v) a Fairmont subsidiary managed one hotel, and (vi) an independent 
management company managed one hotel.

The management agreements relating to 35 of our Consolidated Hotels contain the right and license to 
operate the hotels under specified brands.  No separate franchise agreements exist, and no separate franchise fee 
is required for these 35 hotels. These hotels are managed by (i) IHG, under the Holiday Inn brand, (ii) Starwood, 
under the Sheraton and Westin brands, (iii) Hilton, under the Doubletree and Hilton brands, (iv) Marriott, under 
the Renaissance and Marriott brands and (v) Fairmont, under the Fairmont brand.

Management Fees.  Minimum base management fees generally range from 1 – 3% of total revenue, 
with the exception of our IHG-managed hotels, whose base management fees are 2% of total revenue plus 5% of 
room revenue.  Most of our management agreements also allow for incentive management fees (generally 
ranging from 8.5% to 15%) that are subordinated to our return on investment. Incentive management fees are 
generally capped at 2 to 3% of total revenue (except for incentive management fees payable to Marriott, which 
are not limited).

We paid the following management fees (in thousands) with respect to our Consolidated Hotels during 
each of the past three years:

 
 
Base fees
Incentive fees
Total management fees

Year Ended December 31,
2010

$ 26,406
1,136

$ 27,542

2009
$ 25,879

769
$ 26,648

2008
$ 31,036

4,720
$ 35,756

Term and Termination.  The management agreements with IHG terminate in 2018 for one hotel and 
2025 for 14 hotels.  The management agreements with Marriott terminate in 2025 for our Renaissance hotels 
and 2029 for our Marriott hotel, and these agreements may be extended to 2055 and 2039, respectively, at 
Marriott’s option.  The management agreement with Fairmont terminates in 2030 and may be extended to 2040 
and 2050 at Fairmont's option.  The management agreements with our other managers generally have initial 
terms of between 5 and 20 years, and these agreements are generally renewable beyond the initial term only 
upon the mutual written agreement of the parties.  The management agreements covering our hotels expire after 
2013, subject to any renewal rights, as follows:

 

Manager
Hilton
IHG
Starwood
Marriott
Fairmont
Other
Total

Number of Management Agreements Expiring
2014

6
—
—
—
—
—
6

2015
6

—
—
—
—
1
7

Thereafter
41
15
8
3
1

—
68
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Management agreements are generally terminable upon the occurrence of standard events of default or 
if the hotel subject to the agreement fails to meet certain financial expectations.  Upon termination for any 
reason, we generally will pay all amounts due and owing under the management agreement through the effective 
date of termination.  If an agreement is terminated as a result of our default we may also be liable for damages 
suffered by the manager.  If we sell a hotel managed by IHG, we may be required to pay IHG a monthly 
replacement management fee equal to the existing fee structure for up to one year and, thereafter, liquidated 
damages, or alternatively, reinvest the sale proceeds into another hotel to be branded under an IHG brand and 
managed by IHG.  In addition, if we breach an IHG management agreement, resulting in termination, or 
otherwise cause or suffer IHG's termination for any reason other than an event of default by IHG, we may be 
liable for liquidated damages under the terms of that management agreement.

Assignment.  Generally, neither party to a management agreement has the right to sell, assign or transfer 
the agreement to an unaffiliated third party without the prior written consent of the other party to the agreement, 
which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. A change in control of FelCor will generally require each 
manager’s consent.

Franchise Agreements

Forty-six of our Consolidated Hotels operate under franchise or license agreements that are separate 
from our management agreements.  Of these hotels, 45 are operated as Embassy Suites Hotels, and one is 
operated as a Hilton Suites.

Our Embassy Suites franchise agreements grant us the right to the use of the Embassy Suites Hotels 
name, system and marks with respect to specified hotels and establish various management, operational, record-
keeping, accounting, reporting and marketing standards and procedures with which the licensed hotel must 
comply.  In addition, the franchisor establishes requirements for the quality and condition of the hotel and its 
furnishings, furniture and equipment, and we are obligated to expend such funds as may be required to maintain 
the hotel in compliance with those requirements.  Typically, our Embassy Suites franchise agreements provide 
for a license fee, or royalty, of 4% to 5% of suite revenues.  In addition, we pay approximately 3.5% to 4% of 
suite revenues as marketing and reservation system contributions for the systemwide benefit of Embassy Suites 
Hotels.  We paid marketing and reservation systems contributions of $13.8 million, $12.7 million and 
$17.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.  We paid license fees with 
respect to our Consolidated Hotels during each of the past three years as follows (in thousands):

 
Brand
Embassy Suites Hotels
Hilton Suites
Total

Year Ended December 31,
2010

$15,611
302

$15,913

2009
$15,025

252
$15,277

2008
$17,994

299
$18,293

Our typical Embassy Suites franchise agreement provides for a term of 10 to 20 years, but for 20-year 
agreements, we may terminate the license for any particular hotel on the 10th or 15th anniversary of the 
agreement upon payment of an amount equal to the license fees paid with respect to that hotel during the two 
immediately preceding years.  The agreements provide no renewal or extension rights and are not assignable.  If 
we breach one of these agreements, in addition to losing the right to use the Embassy Suites Hotels name for the 
applicable hotel, we may be liable, under certain circumstances, for liquidated damages equal to the fees paid to 
the franchisor with respect to that hotel during the three immediately preceding years.  Franchise agreements 
covering five of our hotels expire in 2014, five expire in 2015, and the remaining agreements expire thereafter.

30



Item 3.     Legal Proceedings

At December 31, 2010, there was no litigation pending or known to be threatened against us or 
affecting any of our hotels, other than claims arising in the ordinary course of business or that otherwise are 
not considered to be material.  Furthermore, most of these ordinary course of business claims are substantially 
covered by insurance.  We do not believe that any claims known to us, individually or in the aggregate, will 
have a material adverse effect on us.

Item 4.     Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Not applicable.

PART II

Item 5.    Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases 
of Equity Securities

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “FCH.” The 
following table sets forth for the indicated periods the high and low sale prices for our common stock, as 
traded on that exchange and dividends declared per share.

 
2010

First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

2009
First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

High
 
$ 6.42

8.99
6.16
7.48

 
$ 2.19

3.60
5.31
4.90

Low
 
$ 3.49

4.95
3.91
4.53

 
$ 0.72

1.22
1.86
2.85

Dividends
Declared
Per Share

 
$ —

—
—
—

 
$ —

—
—
—

Stockholder Information

At  February 18, 2011, we had approximately 200 holders of record of our common stock and 30 
holders of record of our Series A preferred stock (which is convertible into common stock).  However, because 
many of the shares of our common stock and Series A preferred stock are held by brokers and other institutions 
on behalf of stockholders, we believe there are substantially more beneficial holders of our common stock and 
Series A preferred stock than record holders.  At February 18, 2011, there were 32 holders (other than FelCor) 
of FelCor LP units.  FelCor LP units are redeemable for cash, or, at our election, for shares of FelCor common 
stock.

IN ORDER TO COMPLY WITH CERTAIN REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO OUR 
QUALIFICATION AS A REIT, OUR CHARTER LIMITS, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN EXCEPTIONS, 
THE NUMBER OF SHARES OF ANY CLASS OR SERIES OF OUR CAPITAL STOCK THAT MAY 
BE OWNED BY ANY SINGLE PERSON OR AFFILIATED GROUP TO 9.9% OF THE 
OUTSTANDING SHARES OF THAT CLASS OR SERIES.
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Distribution Information

In order to maintain our qualification as a REIT, we must make annual distributions to our 
stockholders of at least 90% of our taxable income (other than net capital gains).  We made no common 
distributions for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.  Under certain circumstances, we may be 
required to make distributions in excess of cash available for distribution in order to meet REIT distribution 
requirements.  In that event, we expect to borrow funds or sell assets for cash to the extent necessary to obtain 
cash sufficient to make the distributions required to retain our qualification as a REIT for federal income tax 
purposes.

Under terms of our senior notes indenture our ability to pay dividends and make other payments is 
limited based on our ability to satisfy certain financial requirements (except as necessary to retain REIT 
status).  Further discussion of these limitations is contained in the “Liquidity and Capital Resources” section of 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in Item 7 and the 
Risk Factors in Item 1A.

Issuances of Unregistered Securities

During the fourth quarter of 2010 and the fourth quarter of 2009, respectively, we issued 10,235 and 
883 shares of our common stock, in total, all of which were issued to holders of FelCor LP units upon 
redemption of a like number of FelCor LP units.  We relied upon the exemption from registration provided by 
Section 4(2) of the Securities Act, since the redemption transactions did not involve a public offering.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth as of December 31, 2010, information concerning our equity 
compensation plans, including the number of shares issuable and available for issuances under our plans, 
options, warrants and rights; weighted average exercise price of outstanding options, warrants and rights; and 
the number of securities remaining available for future issuance.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Plan category

Equity compensation plans approved
      by security holders:

Stock Options
Unvested Restricted Stock

Total

Number of shares
to be issued upon

exercise of
outstanding

options, warrants
and rights

 

15,000
1,554,817
1,569,817

Weighted average
exercise price of

outstanding
options, warrants

and rights

 

$ 15.62
 
 

Number of
shares

remaining
available for

future issuance

 

 
 

178,083
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Item 6.    Selected Financial Data

The following tables set forth selected financial data for us that have been derived from our audited 
consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto.  This data should be read in conjunction with Item 7, 
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, and our audited 
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto, appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(in millions, except per share data)

 
Statement of Operations Data:(a)

Total revenues                                                        

  Income (loss) from continuing operations(b)

Diluted earnings per share:

Income (loss) from continuing operations

Other Data:
  Cash distributions declared per common
    share(c)

Adjusted FFO per share(d)

Adjusted EBITDA(d)

Cash flows provided by operating activities

Balance Sheet Data (at end of period):

Total assets                                                        

Total debt, net of discount                                                        

Redeemable noncontrolling interests in
   FelCor LP at redemption value

Year Ended December 31,
2010

 

$ 928

(218)

$ (3.16)

$ —

$ (0.09)

188

59

$ 2,359

1,548

2

2009
 

$ 874

(99)

 

$ (2.17)

 

$ —

$ 0.39

179

73

 

$ 2,626

1,773

1

2008
 

$ 1,059

(61)

 

$ (1.61)

 

$ 0.85

$ 1.99

276

153

 

$ 2,512

1,552

1

2007
 

$ 946

55

 

$ 0.26

 

$ 1.20

$ 2.17

285

137

 

$ 2,684

1,476

21

2006
 

$ 917

6

 

$ (0.50)

 

$ 0.80

$ 1.98

291

148

 

$ 2,583

1,369

30

(a) All years presented have been adjusted to reflect hotels no longer owned as discontinued operations.
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(b) Included in income (loss) from continuing operations are the following amounts (in millions):

 
 
Impairment loss

Impairment loss on unconsolidated hotels

Hurricane loss

Conversion costs

Severance costs

Debt extinguishment
Gain (loss) on sale of assets

Gain on sale of condominiums

Gain on involuntary conversion

Year Ended December 31,
2010

$ (153)

—

—

—

—

44

—

—

—

2009
$ —

(2)

—

—

(1)

(2)

1

—

—

2008
$ (61)

(13)

(1)

(1)

(1)

—

—

—

3

2007
$ —

—

—

—

—

—

—

19

—

2006
$ —

—

—

—

—

(14)

—

—

—

(c) We suspended payment of our common dividend in December 2008 and our preferred dividends in March 
2009 in light of the deepening recession and dysfunctional capital markets, and the attendant impact on 
our industry and us.  In January 2011, we reinstated our current quarterly preferred dividends and paid 
current quarterly preferred dividends totaling $9.7 million.  Our Board of Directors will determine the 
amount of future common and preferred dividends for each quarter, if any, based upon various factors 
including operating results, economic conditions, other operating trends, our financial condition and 
capital requirements, as well as the minimum REIT distribution requirements.  Unpaid preferred 
dividends must be paid in full prior to payment of any common dividends.

(d) A more detailed description and computation of Adjusted FFO per share and Adjusted EBITDA is 
contained in the “Non-GAAP Financial Measures” section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations in Item 7.
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Item 7.   Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Following the end of the recent recession, business and leisure travel increased as the U.S. economy 
strengthened and consumer confidence and spending improved.  At the same time, new hotel construction 
activity slowed substantially in 2010 to levels not seen since the early 1990s. Improved demand, combined with 
the slowdown in lodging supply growth, is driving a demand-driven industry recovery.  Our hotels began seeing 
improved occupancy in late 2009, which continued throughout 2010.  Occupancy at our hotels improved 5.8% in 
2010, compared to 2009.  

Following improved demand, as a recovery continues, the industry usually experiences improved pricing 
power.  As lodging demand continued to improve in 2010, our hotels began remixing our customers to obtain 
higher average daily rates, or ADR.  We started seeing sustained ADR improvement late in the second quarter of 
2010, and this trend continued through the third and fourth quarters.  In the fourth quarter 2010, our ADR 
improved 1.5%, and for the year we limited the decline to 1.5%, compared to 2009.  

Our Consolidated Hotels' occupancy and ADR growth during 2010 drove three quarters of improved 
revenue per available room, or RevPAR in 2010.  Our RevPAR improved 4.3% in 2010, compared to 2009.  

As our ADR continues improving, Hotel EBITDA margin and operating cash flow continue to grow.  In 
2010, our Consolidated hotels improved Hotel EBITDA margin by 32 basis points compared to 2009.

In 2010, we undertook several critical steps as a part of our long-term strategic plan:

• In June 2010, we completed a public offering of 31,625,000 shares of our common stock at $5.50 per 
share.  The net proceeds from the offering, after underwriting discounts and commissions, were 
approximately $166 million.  We used these proceeds, together with cash on hand, to repay $177 million 
of secured debt for $130 million, representing a 27% discount, and for our $98.5 million acquisition of 
the Fairmont Copley Plaza in Boston.

• In May 2010, we obtained a new $212 million loan, secured by nine hotels, that matures in 2015.  This 
loan bears interest at LIBOR (subject to a 3.0% floor) plus 5.1%.  The proceeds were used to repay 
$210 million in loans that were secured by 11 hotels and scheduled to mature in May 2010.  The terms 
and interest rate of this financing are significantly more favorable than the refinanced debt, and we 
unencumbered two previously mortgaged hotels in the process.  

• Two loans (totaling $32 million) matured in May 2010.   The cash flows for the hotels that secured those 
loans did not cover debt service and we determined the hotels' fair values to be less than the loan 
amounts.  We stopped funding the shortfalls in December 2009.  We were unable to negotiate an 
acceptable debt modification or reduction that favored our stockholders, and we transferred these hotels 
to the lenders in full satisfaction of the related debt.   

• Selling underperforming and non-strategic hotels creates capacity, allows us to reduce concentration risk, 
reduce leverage, invest in higher yielding redevelopment opportunities at our remaining hotels and/or 
acquire hotels in our target markets.  In addition, selling non-strategic hotels reduces our future capital 
expenditure requirements and enables management to focus on “core” long-term investments.  As part of 
our long-term strategic plan to enhance shareholder value and achieve or exceed targeted returns on 
invested capital, we sell and acquire hotels to improve our overall portfolio quality, enhance 
diversification and improve growth rates.  In that regard, we reviewed each hotel in our portfolio in 
terms of projected performance, future capital expenditure requirements and market dynamics and 
concentration risk.  Based on this analysis, we developed a plan to sell our interests in 35 hotels (29 of 
which we consolidate the real estate interest and six of which are owned by unconsolidated joint 
ventures) that no longer meet our investment criteria.  As a consequence, the hold periods for the hotels 
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we consolidate were shortened, and we were required to test those assets for impairment as they were 
approved to be marketed for sale. We recorded a $152.7 million impairment charge in 2010 related to 16 
of these hotels. We will bring these hotels to market at the appropriate time and will only sell hotels 
when we receive satisfactory pricing.

In January 2011, we reinstated our current quarterly preferred dividend and paid current quarterly 
preferred dividends of $9.7 million.  We cannot pay any common dividends unless and until all accrued and 
current preferred dividends are paid.   Our Board of Directors will determine whether and when to declare future 
dividends (including the accrued but unpaid preferred dividends) based upon various factors, including operating 
results, economic conditions, other operating trends, our financial condition and capital requirements, as well as 
minimum REIT distribution requirements.

Financial Comparison (in millions, except RevPAR, Hotel EBITDA margin and percentage change)

 

 
RevPAR                                                      

Hotel EBITDA(a)                                                      

Hotel EBITDA margin(a)                                                      

Loss from continuing operations(b)

Year Ended December 31,

2010
$ 85.58

218

24.0%

(218)

2009
$ 82.07

206

23.7%

(99)

% Change
2010-2009

4.3 %
5.8 %

1.3 %

(120.2)%

2008
$ 99.44

301

28.5%

(61)

% Change
2009-2008

(17.5)%
(31.6)%

(16.8)%

(62.3)%

(a) Hotel EBITDA and Hotel EBITDA margin are non-GAAP financial measures.  A discussion of the use, 
limitations and importance of these non-GAAP financial measures and detailed reconciliations to the 
most comparable GAAP measure are found elsewhere in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations under the section “Non-GAAP Financial Measures.”

(b) The following amounts are included in loss from continuing operations (in millions):

 
 
Impairment loss
Impairment loss on unconsolidated hotels

Hurricane loss
Conversion costs
Severance costs
Debt extinguishment
Gain (loss) on sale of assets
Gain on involuntary conversion

Year Ended December 31,
2010

$ (153)
—

—
—
—
44
—
—

2009
$ —

(2)

—
—
(1)
(2)
1

—

2008
$ (61)

(13)

(1)
(1)
(1)
—
—
3
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Results of Operations

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 

For the year ended December 31, 2010, we recorded a $261.8 million net loss attributable to common 
stockholders compared to a $146.8 million loss in 2009.  Our 2010 loss included $173.7 million of impairment 
charges ($152.7 million in continuing operations and $21.1 million in discontinued operations) partially offset by 
$59.4 million of gains from extinguishment of debt ($44.2 million in continuing operations and $15.2 million in 
discontinued operations), and a $20.5 million gain related to the sale of our equity interest in an unconsolidated 
joint venture (included in equity in income from unconsolidated entities).  Our 2009 loss included a $3.4 million 
impairment charge and a $910,000 gain from disposition (both in discontinued operations), as well as a $1.7 million 
loss from debt extinguishment in continuing operations.  

In 2010:

• Total revenue was $928.3 million, a 6.2% increase compared to 2009.  The increase in revenue is attributed 
principally to a 4.3% increase in same-store RevPAR, which was driven by a 5.8% increase in occupancy 
partially offset by a 1.5% decrease in ADR.  The Fairmont Copley Plaza, which we acquired in August 
2010, contributed $16.8 million.

• Hotel departmental expenses increased $22.6 million (7.3%) compared to 2009, reflecting improved 
occupancy and $7.8 million of expenses at the Fairmont Copley Plaza.  As a percentage of total revenue, 
hotel departmental expenses increased from 35.6% to 36.0% compared to 2009.  Cost reductions 
implemented during 2009 continued to provide savings throughout 2010, which helped us achieve a 
reduction in 2010 per occupied room costs compared to 2009.  However, decreases in revenue per occupied 
room (predominately from lower ADR) more than offset the cost reductions.  Typically in a lodging 
recovery occupancy recovers sooner than ADR, so operating expenses increase without the benefit of an 
increase in ADR.

• Other property related costs increased $16.0 million, reflecting improved occupancy and $3.9 million of 
costs from the hotel acquired in August 2010.  As a percentage of total revenue, other property related costs 
remained essentially unchanged, compared to 2009.

• Management and franchise fees increased $1.5 million, compared to 2009, due to higher revenues (which 
serve as the basis for determining such fees) and $505,000 of such fees at the Fairmont Copley Plaza.  As a 
percent of total revenue, management and franchise fees remained essentially unchanged, compared to 
2009.

• Taxes, insurance and lease expenses increased $1.1 million compared to 2009.  The Fairmont Copley Plaza 
added $1.2 million of taxes, insurance and lease expense in 2010, and same-store hotels remained 
essentially unchanged, compared to 2009.  As a percentage of total revenue, taxes, insurance and lease 
expense improved from 10.3% in 2009 to 9.8%.  Favorable resolution of property tax appeals in 2010 and 
changes in franchise tax filing status combined to offset increases in percentage rent expenses.

• Corporate expenses increased $6.5 million and increased as a percentage of total revenue from 2.8% to 
3.3%.  This increase primarily reflects a temporary change in our long-term compensation program and 
increased corporate bonus accruals.  Because of the impact of the recession on the trading price of our 
common stock, our Board of Directors determined that issuing restricted stock at exceptionally low trading 
prices would be unduly dilutive to our stockholders.  In lieu of issuing restricted stock, restricted cash with 
which grantees could (and did) purchase stock, was granted.  Because those grants were subject to payroll 
tax withholding, amounts withheld were recognized as an expense in the first quarter of 2010, rather than 
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expensed over the normal three-year vesting period.  The increase in bonus expense is attributed to a higher 
bonus earned, based on the actual performance and the structure of our incentive compensation plan, 
compared to 2009.

• Depreciation and amortization expense increased $1.4 million, compared to 2009, primarily attributable to  
depreciation of $38.9 million and $75.9 million on consolidated hotel capital assets placed in service in 
2010 and 2009, respectively.

• Impairment charge.  We recorded a $152.7 million impairment loss (in continuing operations) in 2010 when 
we decided to sell our interest in 29 hotels (we consolidate the related real estate) and shortened the hold 
period.  Sixteen of these hotels were impaired in light of the reduced estimated hold periods.

• Net interest expense increased $38.7 million compared to 2009, largely attributable to our Senior Notes, 
which were issued in October 2009.  These notes bear interest at a higher rate than the notes they 
refinanced.

• Debt extinguishment.  We repaid $177 million of secured debt for $130 million and recorded a 
corresponding $46.1 million gain on extinguishment of debt.  This gain was partially offset by losses from 
retirement of $40.3 million of our senior notes due June 2011.  In 2009, we retired $428 million of senior 
notes maturing in 2011 and terminated our line of credit.  We incurred a $1.7 million charge associated with 
these transactions.

• Equity in income of unconsolidated entities was $16.9 million compared to a $4.8 million loss in 2009.  In 
2010, we had $20.5 million gain from the sale of our interest in an unconsolidated entity (which owned the 
Sheraton Premier hotel in Tysons Corner, Virginia).  

• Discontinued operations primarily reflects a $21.1 million impairment charge and $15.2 million gain from 
debt extinguishment related to two hotels transferred to lenders in full satisfaction of the related debt in 
2010.   Discontinued operations in 2009 primarily consisted of: (i) a $1.8 million adjustment to gains on 
sale (resulting from a change in the federal tax law that allowed recovery of previously paid alternative 
minimum taxes on gains from hotel sales in 2006 and 2007); (ii) the following items related to two hotels 
sold in December 2009: a $3.4 million impairment loss and a $911,000 loss on sale (primarily related to 
selling costs), and (iii) $7.5 million of 2009 operating losses and interest expense related to hotels placed in 
discontinued operations in 2010 and 2009.

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2009 and  2008 

For the year ended December 31, 2009, we recorded a $146.8 million net loss attributable to common 
stockholders compared to a $158.0 million net loss in 2008.  Our 2009 loss included $5.5 million of impairment 
charges ($3.4 million in discontinued operations and $2.1 million in equity in income of unconsolidated 
subsidiaries) and a $910,000 gain from disposition (in discontinued operations).  In 2009, we also recorded losses 
from debt extinguishment in continuing operations ($1.7 million).  Our 2008 loss included a $120.6 million 
impairment charge ($60.8 million in continuing operations, $47.1 million in discontinued operations and 
$12.7 million related to equity method investments), $11.1 million in accrued liquidated damages (in discontinued 
operations), and hurricane-related expenses of $1.7 million ($1.0 million in continuing operations and $717,000 
in discontinued operations).  These 2008 charges were partially offset by a $3.1 million gain in continuing 
operations related to involuntary conversions (associated with the final settlement of 2005 hurricane claims), as well 
as a $1.2 million adjustment to gains in discontinued operations (associated with 2007 hotel sales).  
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In 2009:

• Total revenue was $874.4 million, a 17.5% decrease compared to 2008.  The decrease in revenue is 
attributed principally to a 17.5% decrease in RevPAR, which was driven by a 7.2% decrease in occupancy 
and an 11.1% decrease in ADR.

• Hotel departmental expenses decreased $43.4 million (12.2%), compared to 2008.  This expense reduction 
reflects: (i) the 7.2% decrease in occupancy; (ii) a $23.6 million decrease in labor costs, which included 
permanent reductions in hotel employees; (iii) reduced non-critical room expenses, such as guest 
transportation, in-room amenities, bath linen quantities, and newspaper service; and (iv) menu 
modifications and reduced food costs in banquet and restaurant outlets.  As a percentage of total revenue, 
hotel departmental expenses increased from 33.5% to 35.6% compared to 2008.  While we made significant 
reductions in our departmental expenses, they were not sufficient to completely offset the decrease in 
revenue.

• Other property related costs decreased $34.0 million (12.0%), compared to 2008.  The expense reduction 
consisted of: (i) a $11.6 million decrease in labor costs; (ii) a $9.7 million decrease in marketing 
assessments, credit card commissions and frequent guest expense (all of which reflect the decrease in 
revenue); (iii) a $3.1 million decrease in repairs and maintenance, partially attributed to our recently 
completed renovation program; (iv) reductions in other non-critical expenses; and (v) improved energy 
efficiency.  As a percentage of total revenue, other property related costs increased from 26.7% to 28.5% 
compared to 2008.  While we made significant reductions in our other property related costs, they were not 
sufficient to completely offset the decrease in revenue.

• Management and franchise fees decreased $12.1 million compared to 2008, reflecting the decrease in 
revenue.  As a percent of total revenue, franchise fees and base management fees remained essentially 
unchanged from 2008 to 2009 (these fees are based on a percentage of revenue).  Incentive management 
fees, which are based on the profitability of the hotels, decreased $4.0 million.  

• Taxes, insurance and lease expenses decreased $12.5 million compared to 2008.  This decrease relates 
primarily to: (i) a $12.1 million decrease in hotel percentage lease expense, attributed to decreased revenue 
at our consolidated hotel lessees; (ii) a $1.1 million decrease in property and general liability insurance, 
attributed to improved insurance rates and liability claims experience; and (iii) a $2.0 million decrease in 
land leases, attributed to decreases in percentage rent based on revenue.  This was partially offset by a $2.7 
million increase in real estate and other taxes, largely attributed to favorable resolutions of property tax 
appeals in 2008.  As a percentage of total revenue, taxes, insurance and lease expense increased from 9.7% 
in 2008 to 10.3%.

• Corporate expenses increased $3.5 million compared to 2008.  The increase in corporate expenses is 
attributed to bonuses awarded in recognition of the accomplishment of corporate goals including: 
successful restructuring of our debt in the face of the dysfunctional debt market and ongoing recession in 
2009 and our portfolio's relative performance, compared to our peers, from our efforts to improve market 
share and limit the effect of reduced revenue on Hotel EBITDA.

• Depreciation and amortization expense increased $9.7 million, compared to 2008, primarily attributable to 
depreciation of $75.9 million and $142.9 million of consolidated hotel capital assets placed in service in 
2009 and 2008, respectively.
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• Impairment charge.  In 2008, we identified six hotels as candidates to be sold (these hotels were held for 
investment at December 31, 2009), and tested these hotels for impairment using undiscounted estimated 
cash flows over a shortened estimated remaining hold period.  Of the hotels tested, four hotels failed the 
test, and as a result, we recorded impairment charges of $22.3 million.  In addition, because of triggering 
events in 2008 related to changes in the capital markets, dropping travel demand and the combined effect 
on our stock price, we tested all of our hotels to determine if further assessment for potential impairment 
was required.  We had one hotel with a short-term ground lease fail this test.  We determined that the book 
value of this hotel was not fully recoverable, and as such, recorded a $38.5 million impairment charge.

• Net interest expense increased $6.8 million compared to 2008.  This increase is primarily attributable to the 
issuance of our Senior Notes, which were issued in October 2009.

• Debt extinguishment.  In 2009, we retired $428 million of senior notes due June 2011 and terminated our 
line of credit.  We incurred a $1.7 million charge associated with these transactions.

• Equity in loss of unconsolidated entities was $4.8 million compared to a $10.9 million loss in 2008.  We 
recorded $2.1 million and $12.7 million of impairment charges on our equity method investments in 2009 
and 2008, respectively.  The remainder of the change is attributed to current year operating losses from 
decreased revenue at our unconsolidated hotels.

• Discontinued operations primarily consisted of: (i) a $1.8 million adjustment to gains on sale (resulting 
from a change in the federal tax law that allowed recovery of previously paid alternative minimum taxes on 
gains from hotel sales in 2006 and 2007); (ii) the following items related to two hotels sold in December 
2009: a $3.4 million impairment loss, a $911,000 loss on sale (primarily related to selling costs), and (iii) 
$7.5 million of 2009 operating losses and interest expense related to hotels placed in discontinued 
operations in 2010 and 2009.  Discontinued operations in 2008 primarily consisted of: (i) a $1.2 million 
adjustment to gain on sales from revision of the tax liability associated with gains from hotel sales in 2006 
and 2007;  (ii) the following items related to two hotels sold in December 2009: a $47.1 million impairment 
loss, an $11.1 million liquidated damage charge and $717,000 of hurricane losses; and (iii) $13.3 million of 
2008 operating losses and interest expense related to hotels placed in discontinued operations in 2010 and 
2009.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We refer in this Annual Report to certain “non-GAAP financial measures.”  These measures, including FFO, 
Adjusted FFO, EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Hotel EBITDA and Hotel EBITDA margin, are measures of our 
financial performance that are not calculated and presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, or GAAP.  The following tables reconcile these non-GAAP measures to the most comparable GAAP 
financial measure.  Immediately following the reconciliations, we include a discussion of why we believe these 
measures are useful supplemental measures of our performance and of the limitations upon such measures.
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The following tables detail our computation of FFO and Adjusted FFO (in thousands, except for per share 
data):

Reconciliation of Net Loss to FFO and Adjusted FFO
(in thousands, except per share data)

Net loss
Noncontrolling interests

Preferred dividends
Net loss attributable to
   FelCor common
   stockholders
Less: Dividends declared
   on unvested restricted
   stock

Numerator for basic and
   diluted loss attributable to
   common stockholders

Depreciation and
   amortization
Depreciation,
   discontinued operations
   and unconsolidated
   entities
Gain on involuntary
   conversion
Gain on sale of hotels
Gain on sale of
   unconsolidated 
   entities
Noncontrolling interests
in FelCor LP
Dividend declared on
   unvested restricted stock   

Unvested restricted stock
FFO

Impairment loss
Impairment loss,
   discontinued operations
   and unconsolidated
    entities

Acquisition costs
Extinguishment of debt
Hurricane loss
Hurricane loss,
   discontinued operations
   and unconsolidated
   entities
Conversion costs

Severance costs
Liquidated damages,
   discontinued operations
Lease termination costs
Unvested restricted stock

Adjusted FFO

Year Ended December 31,
2010

Dollars
$(225,837)

2,796

(38,713)

(261,754)

—

(261,754)

145,536

16,690

—

—
(21,103)

(881)

—

—
(121,512)
152,654

20,322

449
(59,465)

—

—

—

—

—

—
—

$ (7,552)

Shares

80,611

—

—

—

—
—

294

—

—
80,905

—

—

—
—
—

—

—

—

—

—
—

80,905

Per
Share

Amount

(3.25)

1.81

0.21

—

—
(0.26)

(0.01)

—

—
(1.50)
1.89

0.25

0.01
(0.74)

—

—

—

—

—

—
—

$ (0.09)

2009

Dollars
$(109,091)

969

(38,713)

(146,835)

—

(146,835)

144,152

20,497

—

(910)
—

(672)

—

—
16,232

—

5,516

—
1,721

—

—

447

612

—

469
—

$ 24,997

Shares

63,114

—

—

—

—
—

296

—

331
63,741

—

—

—
—
—

—

—

—

—

—
—

63,741

Per
Share

Amount

(2.33)

2.28

0.32

—

(0.01)
—

(0.01)

—

—
0.25

—

0.08

—
0.03

—

—

0.01

0.01

—

0.01
—

$ 0.39

2008

Dollars
$(120,487)

1,242

(38,713)

(157,958)

(1,041)

(158,999)

134,409

21,422

(3,095)

(1,193)
—

(2,433)

1,041

—
(8,848)
60,822

59,837

—
—

952

767

507

850

11,060

—
—

$ 125,947

Shares

61,979

—

—

—

—
—

1,199

—

—
63,178

—

—

—
—
—

—

—

—

—

—
98

63,276

Per
Share

Amount

(2.57)

2.17

0.35

(0.05)

(0.02)
—

(0.04)

0.02

—
(0.14)
0.96

0.94

—
—

0.02

0.01

0.01

0.01

0.18

—
—

$ 1.99
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Reconciliation of Net Loss to FFO and Adjusted FFO
(in thousands, except per share data)

Net income

Noncontrolling interests

Preferred dividends

Net income attributable to FelCor
    common stockholders

Less: Dividends declared on unvested
    restricted stock

Numerator for basic and diluted loss
    attributable to common stockholders

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation, discontinued operations and
    unconsolidated entities

Gain on sale of hotels

Gain on sale of unconsolidated entities

Noncontrolling interests in FelCor LP

Dividends declared on unvested restricted stock

Unvested restricted stock
FFO
Impairment loss, discontinued operations
    and unconsolidated entities

Extinguishment of debt

Conversion costs

Abandoned projects

Gain on swap termination
Adjusted FFO

Year Ended December 31,
2007

Dollars
$ 89,824

(785)

(38,713)

50,326

(1,011)

49,315

103,932

18,890

(27,330)

(10,993)

1,094

1,011

—

135,919

—

811

491

22

—

$137,243

Shares

61,600

—

—

—

—

1,354

—

297

63,251

—

—

—

—

—

63,251

Per
Share

Amount

0.80

1.69

0.31

(0.44)

(0.18)

(0.04)

0.02

(0.01)

2.15

—

0.01

0.01

—

—

$ 2.17

2006

Dollars
$ 50,256

789

(38,713)

12,332

(612)

11,720

88,641

32,849

(40,650)

—

279

612

—

93,451

15,547

17,472

—

112

(1,715)

$124,867

Shares

60,734

—

—

—

—

1,864

—

327

62,925

—

—

—

—

—

62,925

Per
Share

Amount

0.19

1.46

0.54

(0.67)

—

(0.04)

0.01

—

1.49

0.24

0.28

—

—

(0.03)

$ 1.98
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The following table details our computation of EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and Hotel EBITDA (in 
thousands):

Reconciliation of Net Loss to EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and Hotel EBITDA
(in thousands)

Net income (loss)

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation, discontinued operations and
    unconsolidated entities
Interest expense

Interest expense, discontinued operations and
      unconsolidated entities
Amortization of stock compensation

Noncontrolling interests in other partnerships
EBITDA

Impairment loss

Impairment loss, discontinued operations and
    unconsolidated entities
Hurricane loss
Hurricane loss, discontinued operations
    and unconsolidated entities
Extinguishment of debt
Conversion costs
Acquisition costs
Severance costs

Liquidated damages, discontinued operations

Lease termination costs
Abandoned projects
Gain on swap termination
Gain on sale of hotels
Gain on involuntary conversion
Gain on sale of unconsolidated entities

Adjusted EBITDA
Other revenue
Adjusted EBITDA from acquired hotels
Equity in income from unconsolidated subsidiaries 
   (excluding interest, depreciation and impairment
    expense)
Noncontrolling interests in other partnerships
   (excluding interest, depreciation and severance)

Consolidated hotel lease expense
Unconsolidated taxes, insurance and lease expense
Interest income
Other expenses (excluding conversion costs,
   severance costs and lease termination costs)

Corporate expenses (excluding amortization
   expense of stock compensation)
Gain on sale of asset

Gain on sale of condominiums

Adjusted EBITDA from disposed hotels
Hotel EBITDA

Year Ended December 31,
2010

$ (225,837)

145,536

16,690

141,876

7,633

7,445

1,915

95,258
152,654

20,322

—

—

(59,465)
—

449
—

—

—
—
—
—
—

(21,103)
188,115

(3,174)
(3,416)

(16,283)

2,150

36,327
(6,630)

(363)

2,831

23,302

—

—
(5,075)

$ 217,784

2009
$ (109,091)

144,152

20,497

103,458

6,603

5,165

297

171,081
—

5,516

—

—

1,721
447
—

612

—

469
—
—

(910)
—
—

178,936
(2,843)

—

(14,829)

2,305

34,187
(7,092)

(693)

2,566

19,051

(723)

—

(4,656)

$ 206,209

2008
$ (120,487)

134,409

21,422

97,484

9,164

4,451

(1,191)

145,252
60,822

59,837

952

767

—
507
—

850

11,060

—
—
—

(1,193)
(3,095)

—
275,759

(2,983)
—

(21,144)

3,648

46,264
(7,093)
(1,562)

3,417

16,247

—

—

(11,398)

$ 301,155

2007
$ 89,824

103,932

18,890

95,923

8,993

4,255

309

322,126
—

—

—

—

811
491
—
—

—

—
22
—

(27,330)
—

(10,993)
285,127

(3,089)
14,400

(24,309)

311

51,197
(6,327)
(6,331)

2,312

16,463

—

(18,622)

(21,965)

$ 289,167

2006
$ 50,256

88,641

32,849

111,857

10,709

5,080

1,068

300,460
—

15,547

—

17,472
—
—
—

—

—
112

(1,715)
(40,650)

—
—

291,226
(79)

13,147

(26,351)

(357)

50,682
(5,380)
(3,941)

—

18,228

92

—

(49,661)

$ 287,606

43



The following tables detail our computation of Hotel EBITDA, Hotel EBITDA margin, hotel operating 
expenses and the reconciliation of total operating expenses to hotel operating expenses with respect to 80 of our 
Consolidated Hotels (excludes the Fairmont Copley Plaza acquired in August 2010) at the dates presented.

Hotel EBITDA and Hotel EBITDA Margin
(dollars in thousands)

 
 
Total revenue

Other revenue
Hotel operating revenue
Acquired hotel revenue(a)

Same-store hotel operating revenue

Same-store hotel operating expenses
Hotel EBITDA

Hotel EBITDA margin(b)

Year Ended December 31,
2010

$ 928,311

(3,174)
925,137
(16,839)

908,298
(690,514)

$ 217,784
24.0%

2009
$ 874,395

(2,843)
871,552

—

871,552
(665,343)

$ 206,209
23.7%

2008
$ 1,059,394

(2,983)
1,056,411

—

1,056,411
(755,256)

$ 301,155
28.5%

(a) We have excluded amounts from the Fairmont Copley Plaza acquired in August 2010 for same-store 
comparison purposes.

(b) Hotel EBITDA as a percentage of hotel revenue.

Reconciliation of Total Operating Expenses to Hotel Operating Expenses
(dollars in thousands)

 
 
Total operating expenses

Unconsolidated taxes, insurance and lease expense
Consolidated hotel lease expense
Corporate expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment loss
Other expenses
Acquired hotel expenses(a) 

Hotel operating expenses

Year Ended December 31,
2010

$ 1,065,851
6,630

(36,327)
(30,747)

(145,536)
(152,654)

(3,280)
(13,423)

$ 690,514

2009
$ 864,875

7,092
(34,187)
(24,216)

(144,152)
—

(4,069)
—

$ 665,343

2008
$ 1,016,143

7,093
(46,264)
(20,698)

(134,409)
(60,822)
(5,787)

—
$ 755,256

(a) We have excluded amounts from the Fairmont Copley Plaza acquired in August 2010 for same-store 
comparison purposes.
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The following table reconciles the ratio of operating income (loss) to total revenue to Hotel EBITDA 
margin.

Reconciliation of Ratio of Operating Income (Loss) to Total Revenues to Hotel EBITDA Margin

 

 

Ratio of operating income (loss) to total revenues

Other revenue

  Acquired hotel revenue(a) 
Unconsolidated taxes, insurance and lease expense

Consolidated lease expense
Other expenses
Corporate expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment loss

  Acquired hotel expenses(a) 
Hotel EBITDA margin

Year Ended December 31,

2010

(14.8)%

(0.3)

(2.2)
(0.7)

4.0
0.4
3.4

16.0
16.7
1.5

24.0 %

2009

1.1%

(0.3)

—
(0.8)

3.9
0.5
2.8

16.5
—
—

23.7%

2008

4.1%

(0.3)

—
(0.7)

4.4
0.6
2.0

12.7
5.7
—

28.5%

(a) We have excluded amounts  from the Fairmont Copley Plaza acquired in August 2010 for same-store 
comparison purposes.

Substantially all of our non-current assets consist of real estate. Historical cost accounting for real estate 
assets implicitly assumes that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably over time. Since real estate 
values instead have historically risen or fallen with market conditions, most industry investors consider 
supplemental measures of performance, which are not measures of operating performance under GAAP, to be 
helpful in evaluating a real estate company's operations. These supplemental measures are not measures of 
operating performance under GAAP.  However, we consider these non-GAAP measures to be supplemental 
measures of a hotel REIT's performance and should be considered along with, but not as an alternative to, net 
income (loss) attributable to FelCor as a measure of our operating performance.

FFO and EBITDA

The White Paper on Funds From Operations approved by the Board of Governors of the National 
Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”), defines FFO as net income or loss attributable to parent 
(computed in accordance with GAAP), excluding gains or losses from sales of property, plus depreciation and 
amortization, and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures. Adjustments for 
unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures are calculated to reflect FFO on the same basis. We compute FFO in 
accordance with standards established by NAREIT. This may not be comparable to FFO reported by other REITs 
that do not define the term in accordance with the current NAREIT definition or that interpret the current NAREIT 
definition differently than we do.

EBITDA is a commonly used measure of performance in many industries. We define EBITDA as net 
income or loss attributable to parent (computed in accordance with GAAP) plus interest expenses, income taxes, 
depreciation and amortization, and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures. 
Adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures are calculated to reflect EBITDA on the same basis.
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Adjustments to FFO and EBITDA

We adjust FFO and EBITDA when evaluating our performance because management believes that the 
exclusion of certain additional items, including but not limited to those described below, provides useful 
supplemental information to investors regarding our ongoing operating performance and that the presentation of 
Adjusted FFO, and Adjusted EBITDA when combined with GAAP net income attributable to FelCor, EBITDA and 
FFO, is beneficial to an investor's better understanding of our operating performance. 

• Gains and losses related to extinguishment of debt and interest rate swaps - We exclude gains and 
losses related to extinguishment of debt and interest rate swaps from FFO and EBITDA because we 
believe that it is not indicative of ongoing operating performance of our hotel assets. This also 
represents an acceleration of interest expense or a reduction of interest expense, and interest expense is 
excluded from EBITDA.

• Impairment losses - We exclude the effect of impairment losses and gains or losses on disposition of 
assets in computing Adjusted FFO and Adjusted EBITDA because we believe that including these is not 
consistent with reflecting the ongoing performance of our remaining assets. Additionally, we believe 
that impairment charges and gains or losses on disposition of assets represent accelerated depreciation, 
or excess depreciation, and depreciation is excluded from FFO by the NAREIT definition and from 
EBITDA.

• Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle - Infrequently, the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board promulgates new accounting standards that require the consolidated statements of 
operations to reflect the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. We exclude these one-
time adjustments in computing Adjusted FFO and Adjusted EBITDA because they do not reflect our 
actual performance for that period.

In addition, to derive Adjusted EBITDA we exclude gains or losses on the sale of depreciable assets 
because we believe that including them in EBITDA is not consistent with reflecting the ongoing performance of our 
remaining assets. Additionally, the gain or loss on sale of depreciable assets represents either accelerated 
depreciation or excess depreciation in previous periods, and depreciation is excluded from EBITDA.

Hotel EBITDA and Hotel EBITDA Margin

Hotel EBITDA and Hotel EBITDA margin are commonly used measures of performance in the hotel 
industry and give investors a more complete understanding of the operating results over which our individual hotels 
and brand/managers have direct control.  We believe that Hotel EBITDA and Hotel EBITDA margin are useful to 
investors by providing greater transparency with respect to two significant measures that we use in our financial and 
operational decision-making.  Additionally, using these measures facilitates comparisons with other hotel REITs 
and hotel owners.  We present Hotel EBITDA and Hotel EBITDA margin by eliminating all revenues and expenses 
from continuing operations not directly associated with hotel operations, including corporate-level expenses, 
depreciation and amortization, and expenses related to our capital structure.  We eliminate corporate-level costs and 
expenses because we believe property-level results provide investors with supplemental information into the 
ongoing operational performance of our hotels and the effectiveness of management on a property-level basis.  We 
eliminate depreciation and amortization because, even though depreciation and amortization are property-level 
expenses, we do not believe that these non-cash expenses, which are based on historical cost accounting for real 
estate assets, and implicitly assume that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably over time, accurately 
reflect an adjustment in the value of our assets.  We also eliminate consolidated percentage rent paid to 
unconsolidated entities, which is effectively eliminated by noncontrolling interests and equity in income from 
unconsolidated subsidiaries, and include the cost of unconsolidated taxes, insurance and lease expense, to reflect the 
entire operating costs applicable to our Consolidated Hotels.  Hotel EBITDA and Hotel EBITDA margins are 
presented on a same-store basis and exclude the historical results of operations from the Fairmont Copley Plaza 
acquired in August 2010.
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Use and Limitations of Non-GAAP Measures

Our management and Board of Directors use FFO, Adjusted FFO, EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Hotel 
EBITDA and Hotel EBITDA margin to evaluate the performance of our hotels and to facilitate comparisons 
between us and other lodging REITs, hotel owners who are not REITs and other capital intensive companies.  We 
use Hotel EBITDA and Hotel EBITDA margin in evaluating hotel-level performance and the operating efficiency of 
our hotel managers.

The use of these non-GAAP financial measures has certain limitations.  These non-GAAP financial 
measures as presented by us, may not be comparable to non-GAAP financial measures as calculated by other real 
estate companies.  These measures do not reflect certain expenses or expenditures that we incurred and will incur, 
such as depreciation, interest and capital expenditures.  Management compensates for these limitations by 
separately considering the impact of these excluded items to the extent they are material to operating decisions or 
assessments of our operating performance.  Our reconciliations to the most comparable GAAP financial measures, 
and our consolidated statements of operations and cash flows, include interest expense, capital expenditures, and 
other excluded items, all of which should be considered when evaluating our performance, as well as the usefulness 
of our non-GAAP financial measures.

These non-GAAP financial measures are used in addition to and in conjunction with results presented in 
accordance with GAAP.  They should not be considered as alternatives to operating profit, cash flow from 
operations, or any other operating performance measure prescribed by GAAP.  These non-GAAP financial 
measures reflect additional ways of viewing our operations that we believe, when viewed with our GAAP results 
and the reconciliations to the corresponding GAAP financial measures, provide a more complete understanding of 
factors and trends affecting our business than could be obtained absent this disclosure.  Management strongly 
encourages investors to review our financial information in its entirety and not to rely on a single financial measure.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Operating Activities

During the year ended December 31, 2010, we generated $58.8 million of cash provided by operating 
activities, (primarily from hotel operations) a $14.1 million decline, compared to 2009.  This decline primarily 
reflects an increase in interest paid.  At December 31, 2010, we had $201.0 million of cash, including 
approximately $41.6 million held under management agreements to meet working capital needs.

Travel demand began to improve in late 2009 following the deep recession, which resulted in improved 
occupancy through 2010.  We began experiencing sustained improvement in ADR in the third and fourth quarters as 
we re-mixed our customer mix.  We expect continued growth in ADR and RevPAR in 2011.  We expect our 2011 
RevPAR will increase from 6 to 8% compared to 2010, which assumes continued occupancy and ADR growth.  We 
expect $64 to $76 million of 2011 cash from operating activities.

We are subject to increases in hotel operating expenses, including wage and benefit costs, repair and 
maintenance expenses, utilities and insurance expenses that can fluctuate disproportionately to revenues.  Some of 
these operating expenses are difficult to predict and control, which lends volatility to our operating results.  We 
have implemented extensive cost containment initiatives at our hotels, including reducing headcount and improving 
productivity and energy efficiency.  If RevPAR decreases, or fails to grow in line with or better than occupancy, 
and/or Hotel EBITDA margins shrink, our operations, earnings and/or cash flow could be materially adversely 
affected.
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Investing Activities

During the year ended December 31, 2010, cash used in investing activities increased $72.5 million, 
compared to 2009, due primarily to our $98.5 million purchase of the Fairmont Copley Plaza, which was partially 
offset by lower spending on hotel capital expenditures.  We made extensive capital investments in our hotels from 
2006 to 2008, as a part of a comprehensive renovation program.  As a result, we were able to limit capital spending 
significantly in 2009 and 2010.  In 2010, we completed approximately $38.9 million of capital improvements at our 
hotels.  We also repaid our share of a joint venture's mortgage debt for $23 million and subsequently sold our 
interest in the venture receiving $42.3 million.  As part of our long-term capital plan, we anticipate renovating 
between six and eight core hotels each year.  In 2011, we will start renovations at six hotels, in addition to a 
redevelopment project at the Fairmont Copley Plaza that will refresh the property and implement various value-
enhancing initiatives.  We expect to spend approximately $45 million in non-discretionary capital and $35 to 
$40 million in discretionary renovation and redevelopment capital in 2011 (including more than $20 million at the 
Fairmont Copley Plaza), which payments will be funded from operating cash flow and cash on hand.

Financing Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2010, cash provided by financing activities decreased by $188.1 million 
compared to 2009, due primarily to 2009 borrowings (our since-terminated line of credit and our new Senior Notes 
not used to retire debt) and the 2010 payment of $130 million to retire $177 million of debt, this was partially offset 
by proceeds from our June 2010 public common stock offering.  We expect to pay approximately $12 million in 
normally occurring principal payments, $46 million to retire maturing senior notes and $39 million in preferred 
dividends in 2011, which payments will be funded from operating cash flow and cash on hand.  We expect to 
refinance or extend the remaining debt maturing in 2011.

In January 2011, we reinstated our current quarterly preferred dividend and paid current quarterly preferred 
dividends of $9.7 million.  We cannot pay any common dividends unless and until all accrued and current preferred 
dividends are paid.   Our Board of Directors will determine whether and when to declare future dividends 
(including the accrued but unpaid preferred dividends) based upon various factors, including operating results, 
economic conditions, other operating trends, our financial condition and capital requirements, as well as minimum 
REIT distribution requirements.

Common Stock Offering.  In June 2010, we completed a public offering of 31,625,000 shares of our 
common stock at $5.50 per share.  The net proceeds from the offering, after underwriting discounts, were 
approximately $166 million.  We used these proceeds together with cash on hand to repay $177 million of secured 
debt for $130 million and for our $98.5 million acquisition of the Fairmont Copley Plaza.

Secured Debt.  At December 31, 2010, we had a total of $1.5 billion of consolidated secured debt with 61 
encumbered consolidated hotels (including 14 hotels that are collateral for our senior secured notes) having a 
$1.6 billion aggregate net book value.

In November 2010, we incurred $29 million of new debt, secured by two hotels.  The loan bears interest at 
LIBOR (subject to a 1% floor) plus 4.25% and is scheduled to mature in November 2011, with a one year extension 
option that is exercisable subject to certain conditions.

In June 2010, we repaid $177 million of secured debt scheduled to mature in 2012 for $130 million, plus 
accrued interest, representing a 27% discount to the principal balance.  This allowed us to reduce our leverage 
substantially and unencumbered two hotels.

In May 2010, we obtained a new $212 million loan, secured by nine hotels that matures in 2015.  This loan 
bears interest at LIBOR (subject to a 3% floor) plus 5.1%.  The proceeds were used to repay $210 million in loans 
that were secured by 11 hotels  and scheduled to mature in May 2010.  The terms and interest rate of this new 
financing are significantly more favorable than the refinanced debt, and we unencumbered two previously 
mortgaged hotels in the process.  In February 2010, we extended the maturity of a loan secured by one hotel from 
May 2010 to May 2013.  
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Two loans (totaling $32 million) matured in May 2010.  The cash flows for the hotels that secured those 
loans did not cover debt service, and we stopped funding the shortfalls in December 2009.  We were unable to 
negotiate an acceptable debt modification or reduction that favored our stockholders, and we transferred these 
hotels to the lenders in full satisfaction of the related debt.
 

Except in the case of our Senior Notes, our mortgage debt is generally recourse solely to the specific hotels 
securing the debt except in case of fraud, misapplication of funds and certain other limited recourse carve-out 
provisions, which could extend recourse to us.  Much of our secured debt allows us to substitute collateral under 
certain conditions and is prepayable, subject to various prepayment, yield maintenance or defeasance obligations.

Much of our secured debt includes lock-box arrangements under certain circumstances. We are  permitted 
to spend an amount required to cover our budgeted hotel operating expenses, taxes, debt service, insurance and 
capital expenditure reserves even if revenues are flowing through a lock-box in cases where a specified debt service 
coverage ratio is not met.  With the exception of one hotel, all of our consolidated loans subject to lock-box 
provisions currently exceed the applicable minimum debt service coverage ratios. 

Senior Notes.  Our Senior Notes require that we satisfy total leverage, secured leverage and interest 
coverage thresholds in order to: (i) incur additional indebtedness except to refinance maturing debt with 
replacement debt, as defined under our indentures; (ii) pay dividends in excess of the minimum distributions 
required to meet the REIT qualification test; (iii) repurchase capital stock; or (iv) merge.  At December 31, 2010, 
we exceeded the relevant minimum thresholds.  These notes are guaranteed by us, and payment of those obligations 
is secured by a pledge of the limited partner interests in FelCor LP owned by FelCor, a combination of first lien 
mortgages and related security interests and/or negative pledges on up to 14 hotels, and pledges of equity interests 
in certain subsidiaries of FelCor LP.  In connection with issuing our Senior Notes in 2009, we amended the 
indenture governing our senior notes maturing in 2011 to eliminate substantially all of the restrictive covenants, 
guarantees, collateral and certain events of default provisions. 

In 2010 we retired an additional $40.3 million of our senior notes that mature and will be repaid in June (of 
which $46.3 million now remain outstanding).

Interest Rate Caps.  To fulfill requirements under certain loans, we entered into interest rate cap agreements 
with aggregate notional amounts of $639.2 million and $427.2 million at December 31, 2010 and 2009, 
respectively.  These interest rate caps were not designated as hedges and had insignificant fair values at both 
December 31, 2010 and 2009, resulting in no significant net earnings impact.
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Consolidated debt consisted of the following (in thousands):

 
 
Mortgage debt

Mortgage debt

Mortgage debt

Mortgage debt

Mortgage debt

Mortgage debt(e)

Mortgage debt

Mortgage debt
Mortgage debt

Mortgage debt
Other

Senior notes

Senior secured notes(g)

Senior notes

Retired debt
Total

Encumbered
Hotels

12 hotels

 9 hotels

 9 hotels

 7 hotels

 5 hotels

 2 hotels

 1 hotel

 1 hotel
 1 hotel
 —

 14 hotels

 —

 —

61 hotels

Interest Rate
(%)

L + 0.93

L + 5.10

L + 3.50

9.02

6.66

L + 4.25

8.77

5.81
6.15
4.25

10.00

9.00

—

(a)

(b)

(c)

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Maturity Date

 November 2011

 April 2015

 August 2011 (d)

 April 2014

 June - August 2014

November 2011(f)

 May 2013

 July 2016
June 2011
May 2011

 October 2014

 June 2011

—

 

December 31,
2010

$ 250,000

212,000

198,300

113,220

69,206

29,000

27,770

11,321
7,800

524

582,821

46,347

—

$ 1,548,309

2009

$ 250,000

—

200,425

117,422

70,917

—

27,829

11,741
9,228

354

572,500

86,604

426,294

$ 1,773,314

(a) We purchased an interest rate cap that caps LIBOR at 7.8% and expires November 2011 for a $250 million 
notional amount.

(b) LIBOR for this loan is subject to a 3% floor.  We purchased an interest rate cap that caps LIBOR at 5.0% 
and expires May 2012 for a $212 million notional amount.

(c) LIBOR for this loan is subject to a 2% floor.
(d) This loan can be extended for as many as two years (to 2013), subject to satisfying certain conditions.
(e) The hotels securing this debt are subject to separate loan agreements and are not cross-collateralized.
(f) This loan can be extended for one year, subject to satisfying certain conditions.
(g) These notes have $636 million in aggregate principal outstanding and were sold at a discount that provides 

a 12.875% yield to maturity before transaction costs.
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Contractual Obligations

We have obligations and commitments to make certain future payments under debt agreements and various 
contracts.  The following schedule details these obligations at December 31, 2010 (in thousands):

 

Debt(a)

Operating leases
Purchase obligations
IHG liquidated damages(c)

Total contractual obligations

Total

$1,986,851
343,424
62,627
8,526

$2,401,428

Less Than
1 Year

$ 650,450
26,992
62,627
8,526

$ 748,595

(b)

1 – 3
Years

$ 234,071
30,132

—
—

$ 264,203

 

 
 

4 – 5
Years

$1,093,261
11,687

—
—

$1,104,948

After
5 Years

$ 9,069
274,613

—
—

$ 283,682

(a) Our long-term debt consists of both secured and unsecured debt and includes both principal and 
interest.  Interest expense for variable rate debt was calculated using the interest rate at December 31, 2010.

(b) Included in this number is debt of $198.3 million that can be extended for as many as two years (to 2013), 
and $29.0 million that can be extended to 2012, both subject to satisfying certain conditions.

(c) These liquidated damages were paid in January 2011.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At December 31, 2010, we had unconsolidated 50% investments in ventures that own an aggregate of 
13 hotels (referred to as hotel joint ventures).  We own more than 50% of the operating lessees operating 12 of these 
hotels and one hotel is operated without a lease.  We also owned a 50% interest in entities that provide 
condominium management services and develop condominiums in Myrtle Beach, South Carolina.  None of our 
directors, officers or employees owns any interest in any of these joint ventures or entities.  The hotel joint ventures 
had $154.6 million of non-recourse mortgage debt relating to these 13 hotels, of which our pro rata portion was 
$77.3 million, none of which is reflected as a liability on our consolidated balance sheet.  Our liabilities with regard 
to non-recourse debt and the liabilities of our subsidiaries that are members or partners in joint ventures are 
generally limited to guarantees of the borrowing entity’s obligations to pay for the lender’s losses caused by 
misconduct, fraud or misappropriation of funds by the venture and other typical exceptions from the non-recourse 
provisions in the mortgages, such as for environmental liabilities.

We have recorded equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated entities of $16.9 million (includes 
$21.1 million of gains from sale); $(4.8 million); and  $(10.9 million) (includes $12.7 million of impairment losses) 
for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and received distributions of $48.3 million (of 
which $2.2 million was provided from operations), $9.0 million (of which $2.8 million was provided from 
operations), and $27.8 million (of which $3.0 million was provided from operations), for the years 2010, 2009 and 
2008, respectively.  The principal source of income for our hotel joint ventures is percentage lease revenue from 
their operating lessees.

Capital expenditures on the hotels owned by our hotel joint ventures are generally funded from the income 
from operations of these ventures.  However, if a venture has insufficient cash flow to meet operating expenses or 
make necessary capital improvements, the venture may make a capital call upon the venture members or partners to 
fund such necessary improvements.  It is possible that, in the event of a capital call, the other joint venture member 
or partner may be unwilling or unable to make the necessary capital contributions.  Under such circumstances, we 
may elect to make the other party’s contribution as a loan to the venture or as an additional capital contribution by 
us.  Under certain circumstances, a capital contribution by us may increase our equity investment to greater than 
50% and may require that we consolidate the venture, including all of its assets and liabilities, into our consolidated 
financial statements.
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With respect to those ventures that are partnerships, the hotels owned by these ventures could perform 
below expectations and result in the insolvency of the ventures and the acceleration of their debts, unless the 
members or partners provide additional capital.  In some ventures, the members or partners may be required to 
make additional capital contributions or have their interest in the venture be reduced or offset for the benefit of any 
party making the required investment on their behalf.  We may be faced with the choice of losing our investment in 
a venture or investing additional capital under circumstances that do not assure a return on that investment.

Inflation

Operators of hotels, in general, possess the ability to adjust room rates daily to reflect the effects of 
inflation.  Competitive pressures may, however, require us to reduce room rates in the near term and may limit our 
ability to raise room rates in the future.  We are also subject to the risk that inflation will cause increases in hotel 
operating expenses disproportionately to revenues.

Seasonality

The lodging business is seasonal in nature.  Generally, hotel revenues are greater in the second and third 
calendar quarters than in the first and fourth calendar quarters, although this may not be true for hotels in major 
tourist destinations. Revenues for hotels in tourist areas generally are substantially greater during tourist season than 
other times of the year.  Seasonal variations in revenue at our hotels can be expected to cause quarterly fluctuations 
in our revenues.  Quarterly earnings also may be adversely affected by events beyond our control, such as extreme 
weather conditions, economic factors and other considerations affecting travel.  To the extent that cash flow from 
operations is insufficient during any quarter, due to temporary or seasonal fluctuations in revenues, we may utilize 
cash on hand or borrowings to satisfy our obligations.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our 
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP.  The preparation of these 
financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.

On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to bad debts, the carrying value of 
investments in hotels, litigation, and other contingencies.  We base our estimates on historical experience and on 
various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the 
basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from 
other sources.  Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting policies affect the most significant judgments and estimates 
used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

• We record an impairment charge when we believe that an investment in one or more of our hotels held for 
investment has been impaired, such that future undiscounted cash flows would not recover the book basis, 
or net book value, of the investment.  We test for impairment when certain events occur, including one or 
more of the following:  projected cash flows are significantly less than recent historical cash flows; 
significant changes in legal factors or actions by a regulator that could affect the value of our hotels; events 
that could cause changes or uncertainty in travel patterns; and a current expectation that, more likely than 
not, a hotel will be sold or otherwise disposed of significantly before the end of its previously estimated 
useful life.  In the evaluation of impairment of our hotels, and in establishing impairment charges, we made 
many assumptions and estimates on a hotel by hotel basis, which included the following:

Annual cash flow growth rates for revenues and expenses;
Holding periods;

52



Expected remaining useful lives of assets;
Estimates in fair values taking into consideration future cash flows, capitalization rates, discount 
rates and comparable selling prices; and
Future capital expenditures.

• We record an impairment charge when one or more of our investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries 
experiences an other-than-temporary decline in fair value.  Any decline in fair value that is not expected to 
be recovered in the next 12 months is considered other-than-temporary.  We record an impairment in our 
equity-based investments as a reduction in the carrying value of the investment.  Our estimates of fair 
values are based on future cash flow estimates, capitalization rates, discount rates and comparable selling 
prices.

Changes in these estimates, future adverse changes in market conditions or poor operating results of 
underlying hotels could result in an inability to recover the carrying value of our hotels or investments in 
unconsolidated entities, thereby requiring future impairment charges.

• We capitalize interest and certain other costs, such as property taxes, land leases, property insurance and 
employee costs related to hotels undergoing major renovations and redevelopments.  Such costs capitalized 
in 2010, 2009 and 2008 were $5.8 million, $5.9 million and $6.8 million, respectively.  We make estimates 
with regard to when components of the renovated asset or redevelopment project are taken out of service or 
placed in service when determining the appropriate amount and time to capitalize these costs.  If these 
estimates are inaccurate, we could capitalize too much or too little with regard to a particular project.

• Depreciation expense is based on the estimated useful life of our assets, and amortization expense for 
leasehold improvements is the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the related 
assets.  The lives of the assets are based on a number of assumptions including cost and timing of capital 
expenditures to maintain and refurbish the assets, as well as specific market and economic 
conditions.  While we believe our estimates are reasonable, a change in the estimated lives could affect 
depreciation and amortization expense and net income (loss) or the gain or loss on the sale of any of our 
hotels.

• Investments in hotel properties are based on purchase price and allocated to land, property and equipment, 
identifiable intangible assets and assumed debt and other liabilities at fair value.  Any remaining 
unallocated purchase price, if any, is treated as goodwill.  Property and equipment are recorded at fair value 
based on current replacement cost for similar capacity and allocated to buildings, improvements, furniture, 
fixtures and equipment using appraisals and valuations prepared by management and/or independent third 
parties.  Identifiable intangible assets (typically contracts including ground and retail leases and 
management and franchise agreements) are recorded at fair value, although no value is generally allocated 
to contracts which are at market terms.  Above-market and below-market contract values are based on the 
present value of the difference between contractual amounts to be paid pursuant to the contracts acquired 
and our estimate of the fair value of contract rates for corresponding contracts measured over the period 
equal to the remaining non-cancelable term of the contract.  Intangible assets are amortized using the 
straight-line method over the remaining non-cancelable term of the related agreements.  In making 
estimates of fair values for purposes of allocating purchase price, we may utilize a number of sources such 
as those obtained in connection with the acquisition or financing of a property and other market data, 
including third-party appraisals and valuations.
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• We make estimates with respect to contingent liabilities for losses covered by insurance.  We record 
liabilities for self-insured losses under our insurance programs when it becomes probable that an asset has 
been impaired or a liability has been incurred at the date of our financial statements and the amount of the 
loss can be reasonably estimated.  We are self-insured for the first $250,000, per occurrence, of our general 
liability claims with regard to 54 of our hotels.  We review the adequacy of our reserves for our self-insured 
claims on a regular basis.  Our reserves are intended to cover the estimated ultimate uninsured liability for 
losses with respect to reported and unreported claims incurred at the end of each accounting period.  These 
reserves represent estimates at a given date, generally utilizing projections based on claims, historical 
settlement of claims and estimates of future costs to settle claims.  Estimates are also required since there 
may be delays in reporting.  Because establishment of insurance reserves is an inherently uncertain process 
involving estimates, currently established reserves may not be sufficient.  If our insurance reserves of 
$3.5 million, at December 31, 2010, for general liability losses are insufficient, we will record an additional 
expense in future periods.  Property and catastrophic losses are event-driven losses and, as such, until a loss 
occurs and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated, no liability is recorded.  We recorded no 
contingent liabilities with regard to property or catastrophic losses at December 31, 2010.

• Our Taxable REIT Subsidiaries, or TRSs, have cumulative potential future tax deductions totaling 
$341.8 million.  The deferred income tax asset associated with these potential future tax deductions was 
$129.9 million.  We recorded a 100% valuation allowance related to our TRSs net deferred tax asset, 
because of the uncertainty of realizing the asset’s benefit.  The objectives of accounting for income taxes 
are to recognize the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and deferred tax liabilities 
and assets for the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in an entity’s financial 
statements or tax returns.  We have considered future taxable income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax 
planning strategies in assessing the need for a valuation allowance.  In the event we were to determine that 
we would be able to realize all or a portion of our deferred tax assets in the future, an adjustment to the 
deferred tax asset would increase operating income in the period such determination was made.
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Item 7A.   Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

At December 31, 2010, approximately 55% of our consolidated debt had fixed interest rates.  In some 
cases, market rates of interest are below the rates we are obligated to pay on our fixed-rate debt.

The following tables provide information about our financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in 
interest rates.  For debt obligations, the tables present scheduled maturities and weighted average interest rates, 
by maturity dates.  The fair value of our fixed rate debt indicates the estimated principal amount of debt having 
the same debt service requirements that could have been borrowed at the date presented, at then current market 
interest rates.

December 31, 2010

 

 

Liabilities

Fixed rate:

Debt

Average interest rate

Floating rate:

Debt

   Average interest rate(a)

Total debt

Average interest rate

Net discount

Total debt

Expected Maturity Date

2011

(dollars in thousands)

$ 60,191

8.54%

 

478,966

3.36%

$539,157

3.94%

(b)

2012

$ 4,561

7.68%

 

1,832

8.10%

$ 6,393

7.80%

2013

$32,708

8.61%

 

1,986

8.10%

$34,694

8.58%

2014

$804,842

9.61%

2,153

8.16%

$806,995

9.60%

2015

$ 563

5.81%

 

204,887

8.16%

$205,450

8.16%

Thereafter

$ 8,813

5.81%

 

—

—

$ 8,813

5.81%

Total

$ 911,678

9.45%

689,824

4.83%

$ 1,601,502

7.46%

(53,193)

$ 1,548,309

Fair Value

 

$ 1,001,102

676,725

(a) The average floating rate represents the implied forward rates in the yield curve at December 31, 2010.
(b) Included in this number is debt of $198.3 million that can be extended for as many as two years (to 

2013), and $29.0 million that can be extended to 2012, both subject to satisfying certain conditions.

December 31, 2009

 

 

Liabilities

Fixed rate:

Debt

Average interest rate

Floating rate:

Debt

   Average interest rate(a)

Total debt

Average interest rate

Net discount

Total debt

Expected Maturity Date

2010

(dollars in thousands)

 

$251,840

8.69%

 

1,978

5.28%

$253,818

8.66%

 

 

2011

 

$105,955

8.62%

 

448,800

4.01%

$554,755

4.89%

 

 

2012

 

$ 4,539

7.67%

 

177,225

4.91%

$181,764

4.98%

 

 

2013

 

$ 32,742

8.61%

—

—

$ 32,742

8.61%

 

 

2014

 

$805,126

9.61%

 

—

—

$805,126

9.61%

 

 

Thereafter

 

$ 9,376

5.81%

 

—

—

$ 9,376

5.81%

 

 

Total

 

$ 1,209,578

9.27%

 

628,003

4.27%

$ 1,837,581

7.56%

(64,267)

$ 1,773,314

Fair Value

 

$ 1,207,728

 

 

541,773

 

 

 

 

 

(a) The average floating rate represents the implied forward rates in the yield curve at December 31, 2009.

We had no interest rate swap agreements at December 31, 2010 or 2009.
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Integrated Audit Opinion 

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of 
FelCor Lodging Trust Incorporated

February 24, 2011

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations, 
comprehensive income (loss), equity, and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
FelCor Lodging Trust Incorporated and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the results of their 
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2010 in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  In addition, in our opinion, the 
financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index presents fairly, in all material respects, the 
information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements.  Also in 
our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as 
of December 31, 2010, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).  The Company's management is 
responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective internal 
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial 
reporting, included in Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting (not presented herein) 
appearing under Item 9A of FelCor Lodging Trust Incorporated's 2010 Annual Report on Form 10-K.  Our 
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements, on the financial statement schedule, and on the 
Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits.  We conducted our audits in 
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).  Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was 
maintained in all material respects.  Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  
Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.  Our audits also included performing such 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  A company's internal control over financial reporting 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 2001 Ross Avenue, Suite 1800, Dallas, Texas
T:  (214) 999 1400, F:  (214) 754 7991, www.pwc.com/us
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includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect 
misstatements.  Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that 
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 24, 2011
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FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2010 and 2009 

(in thousands)

 
Assets

Investment in hotels, net of accumulated depreciation of $982,564 and
   $916,604 at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively
Investment in unconsolidated entities
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $696 and
   $406 at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively
Deferred expenses, net of accumulated amortization of $17,892 and
   $14,502 at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively
Other assets

Total assets
Liabilities and Equity

Debt, net of discount of $53,193 and $64,267 at December 31, 2010 and
  2009, respectively
Preferred dividends payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Redeemable noncontrolling interests in FelCor LP at redemption value,
   285 and 295 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2010 and
   2009, respectively
Equity:
 Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 20,000 shares authorized:
    Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, 12,880 shares,
      liquidation value of $322,011, issued and outstanding at December 31,
      2010 and 2009
    Series C Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock, 68 shares,
      liquidation value of $169,950, issued and outstanding at December 31,
      2010 and 2009
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 200,000 shares authorized and 101,038 and
     69,413 shares issued, including shares in treasury, at December 31, 2010
     and 2009, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Accumulated deficit
Less: Common stock in treasury, at cost, of 4,156 and 3,845 shares at
   December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively

Total FelCor stockholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interests in other partnerships

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

2010
 

$ 1,985,779
75,920

200,972
16,702

27,851

19,940
32,271

$ 2,359,435
 

$ 1,548,309
76,293

144,451
1,769,053

 

2,004
 
 

309,362

169,412

1,010

2,190,308
26,457

(2,054,625)

(73,341)
568,583
19,795

588,378
$ 2,359,435

2009
 

$ 2,180,394
82,040

263,531
18,708

28,678

19,977
32,666

$ 2,625,994
 

$ 1,773,314
37,580

131,339
1,942,233

 

1,062
 
 

309,362

169,412

694

2,021,837
23,528

(1,792,822)

(71,895)
660,116
22,583

682,699
$ 2,625,994

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
(in thousands, except per share data)

Revenues:
Hotel operating revenue

Other revenue

Total revenues
Expenses:

Hotel departmental expenses
Other property operating costs
Management and franchise fees
Taxes, insurance and lease expenses
Corporate expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment loss
Other expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)
Interest expense, net
Debt extinguishment
Loss before equity in income (loss) from
       unconsolidated entities

Equity in income (loss) from unconsolidated entities
Gain on involuntary conversion

Gain on sale of assets
Loss from continuing operations

Discontinued operations
Net loss
Net loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests in other
   partnerships
Net loss attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interests
  in FelCor LP

Net loss attributable to FelCor

Preferred dividends

Net loss attributable to FelCor common stockholders
Basic and diluted per common share data:

Loss from continuing operations
Net loss
Basic and diluted weighted average common shares
    outstanding

2010

$ 925,137

3,174

928,311
 

333,779
264,968
43,455
91,432
30,747

145,536
152,654

3,280

1,065,851

(137,540)
(141,513)

44,224

(234,829)

16,916
—

—
(217,913)

(7,924)
(225,837)

1,915

881

(223,041)

(38,713)

$ (261,754)
 
$ (3.16)
$ (3.25)

80,611

2009

$ 871,552

2,843

874,395
 

311,200
248,980
41,925
90,333
24,216

144,152
—

4,069

864,875

9,520
(102,765)

(1,721)

(94,966)

(4,814)
—

723
(99,057)
(10,034)

(109,091)

297

672

(108,122)

(38,713)

$ (146,835)
 
$ (2.17)
$ (2.33)

63,114

2008

$ 1,056,411

2,983

1,059,394
 

354,628
282,954
54,049

102,796
20,698

134,409
60,822

5,787

1,016,143

43,251
(95,922)

—

(52,671)

(10,932)
3,095

—
(60,508)
(59,979)

(120,487)

(1,191)

2,433

(119,245)

(38,713)

$ (157,958)
 
$ (1.61)
$ (2.57)

61,979

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 

(in thousands)

 
Net loss
Foreign currency translation adjustment

Comprehensive loss

Comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling
    interests in other partnerships

Comprehensive loss to redeemable noncontrolling
    interests in FelCor LP

Comprehensive loss attributable to FelCor

2010
$ (225,837)

2,937

(222,900)

1,915

873

$ (220,112)

2009
$ (109,091)

8,219

(100,872)

297

634

$ (99,941)

2008
$ (120,487)

(12,032)

(132,519)

(1,191)

2,612

$ (131,098)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 

(in thousands)

 

 

Balance at December 31, 2007

Issuance of stock awards

Amortization of stock awards

Forfeiture of stock awards

Conversion of operating
   partnership units into common
   shares

Allocation to redeemable
   noncontrolling interests
Costs related to shelf registration

Contribution from noncontrolling
   interests
Distribution to noncontrolling
   interests
Dividends declared:

$0.85 per common share

$1.95 per Series A preferred
   share
$2.00 per Series C depositary
   preferred share

Comprehensive loss:

Foreign exchange translation

Net loss

Comprehensive loss

Balance at December 31, 2008

Preferred Stock

Number
of Shares

12,948

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

12,948

Amount

$ 478,774

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

 

$ 478,774

Common Stock

Number
of Shares

69,413

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

 

69,413

 
Amount

$ 694

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

 

$ 694

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

$ 2,053,761

(9,013)

4,943

—

(20,235)

16,064

(38)

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

 

$ 2,045,482

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

$ 26,871

—

—

—

—

329

—

—

—

—

—

—

(11,853)

—

 

$ 15,347

 

Accumulated
Deficit

$ (1,434,393)

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

(53,596)

(25,117)

(13,596)

—

(119,245)

 

$ (1,645,947)

 

Treasury
Stock

$ (128,504)

9,572

—

(548)

20,235

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

 

$ (99,245)

Noncontrolling
Interests in

Other
Partnerships

$ 25,264

—

—

—

—

—

—

565

(3,236)

—

—

—

—

1,191

 

$ 23,784

 Comprehensive 
Income (Loss)

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

$ (11,853)

(118,054)

$ (129,907)

 

 
Total Equity

$ 1,022,467

559

4,943

(548)

—

16,393

(38)

565

(3,236)

 

(53,596)

(25,117)

(13,596)

 

 

(129,907)

$ 818,889

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY – (continued)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 

(in thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2008

Issuance of stock awards

Amortization of stock awards

Forfeiture of stock awards

Conversion of operating
  partnership units into common
  shares
Allocation to redeemable  
  noncontrolling interests
Contribution from noncontrolling
   interests
Distribution to noncontrolling
   interests

Other

Preferred dividends accrued:

 $1.833 per Series A preferred share
 $2.00 per Series C depositary
    preferred share
 Dividends declared and paid
    ($0.167 per Series C depository
    preferred share)

Comprehensive loss:

Foreign exchange translation

Net loss

Comprehensive loss

Balance at December 31, 2009

Preferred Stock

Number
of Shares

12,948

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

 

—

—

—

 

—

—

12,948

Amount

$ 478,774

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

 

—

—

—

 

—

—

 

$ 478,774

Common Stock

Number
of Shares

69,413

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

 

—

—

—

 

—

—

 

69,413

 
Amount

$ 694

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

 

—

—

—

 

—

—

 

$ 694

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

$ 2,045,482

(27,510)

5,139

63

(17)

(1,152)

—

—

(168)

 

—

—

—

 

—

—

 

$ 2,021,837

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

$ 15,347

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

 

—

—

—

 

8,181

—

 

$ 23,528

 

Accumulated
Deficit

$ (1,645,947)

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

(40)

 

(25,117)

(12,462)

(1,134)

 

—

(108,122)

 

$ (1,792,822)

 

Treasury
Stock

$ (99,245)

27,526

—

(193)

17

—

—

—

—

 

—

—

—

 

—

—

 

$ (71,895)

Noncontrolling
Interests in

Other
Partnerships

$ 23,784

—

—

—

—

—

534

(1,606)

168

 

—

—

—

 

—

(297)

 

$ 22,583

 Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

$ 8,181

(108,419)

$ (100,238)

 

 
Total Equity

$ 818,889

16

5,139

(130)

—

(1,152)

534

(1,606)

(40)

 

(25,117)

(12,462)

(1,134)

 

 

 

(100,238)

$ 682,699

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY – (continued)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 

(in thousands)

 

 

Balance at December 31, 2009

Issuance of common stock

Issuance of stock awards

Amortization of stock awards

Forfeiture of stock awards

Conversion of operating
   partnership units into common
   shares
Allocation to redeemable
   noncontrolling interests
Contribution from noncontrolling
   interests
Distribution to noncontrolling
   interests

Other

Preferred dividends accrued:

 $1.95 per Series A preferred share

 $2.00 per Series C depositary
    preferred share

Comprehensive loss:

Foreign exchange translation

Net loss

Comprehensive loss

Balance at December 31, 2010

Preferred Stock

Number
of

 Shares

12,948

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

 

—

—

 

—

—

 

12,948

Amount

$ 478,774

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

 

—

—

 

—

—

 

$ 478,774

Common Stock

Number
 of

 Shares

69,413

31,625

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

 

—

—

 

—

—

 

101,038

 
Amount

$ 694

316

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

 

—

—

 

—

—

 

$ 1,010

 

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

$ 2,021,837

166,011

(229)

5,400

405

(185)

(1,815)

—

—

(1,116)

 

—

—

 

—

—

 

$ 2,190,308

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

$ 23,528

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

 

—

—

 

2,929

—

 

$ 26,457

 

Accumulated
Deficit

$ (1,792,822)

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

(49)

 

(25,117)

(13,596)

 

—

(223,041)

 

$ (2,054,625)

 

Treasury
Stock

$ (71,895)

—

297

—

(1,928)

185

—

—

—

—

 

—

—

 

—

—

 

$ (73,341)

Noncontrolling
Interests in

Other
Partnerships

$ 22,583

—

—

—

—

—

—

1,394

(2,383)

116

 

—

—

 

—

(1,915)

 

$ 19,795

 

 
Comprehensive 
Income (Loss)

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

$ 2,929

(224,956)

$ (222,027)

 

 
Total Equity

$ 682,699

166,327

68

5,400

(1,523)

—

(1,815)

1,394

(2,383)

(1,049)

 

(25,117)

(13,596)

 

 

 

(222,027)

$ 588,378

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 

(in thousands)

 
Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss
   Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Gain on involuntary conversion
Gain on sale of assets
Amortization of deferred financing fees and debt discount
Amortization of unearned officers' and directors' compensation
Equity in (income) loss from unconsolidated entities
Distributions of income from unconsolidated entities
Debt extinguishment
Impairment loss

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Restricted cash—operations
Other assets
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net cash flow provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:

Acquisition of hotel
Improvements and additions to hotels
Additions to condominium project
Proceeds from sale of hotels
Change in restricted cash – investing

Proceeds from property damage insurance

Redemption of investment securities

Distributions from unconsolidated entities

Contributions to unconsolidated entities
Net cash flow used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Payment of deferred financing fees
Change in restricted cash – financing
Acquisition of noncontrolling interest
Distributions paid to noncontrolling interests
Contribution from noncontrolling interests
Distributions paid to redeemable noncontrolling interests in FelCor LP
Distributions paid to preferred stockholders
Distributions paid to common stockholders
Net proceeds from common stock issuance

Net cash flow provided by (used in) financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of periods
Cash and cash equivalents at end of periods

Supplemental cash flow information — interest paid

2010

$ (225,837)
 

147,663
—
—

17,849
7,445

(16,916)
2,190

(59,464)
173,713

(746)
3,986

(2,809)
11,738
58,812

 
(97,513)
(38,936)

(274)
—

(4,143)

492

—

46,084

(25,172)
(119,462)

241,171
(400,968)

(7,848)
1,016

(1,000)
(2,383)
1,394

—
—
—

166,327
(2,291)

382
(62,559)
263,531

$ 200,972

$ 127,793

2009

$(109,091)
 

150,088
—

(1,633)
7,120
5,165
4,814
2,789
1,721
3,448

5,369
345

(1,520)
4,292

72,907
 

—
(75,949)

(154)
25,038
(3,373)

—

1,719

6,200

(444)
(46,963)

988,486
(772,375)
(19,532)

—
—

(1,606)
534
—

(9,679)
—
—

185,828
1,572

213,344
50,187

$ 263,531

$ 85,587

2008

$(120,487)

141,668
(3,095)
(1,193)
2,959
4,451

10,932
2,973

—
107,963

3,675
(71)

(386)
3,774

153,163
 

—
(142,897)

(752)
—

1,705

2,005

5,397

24,858

(5,995)
(115,679)

187,285
(111,744)

(21)
—
—

(3,236)
565

(1,559)
(38,713)
(75,686)

—
(43,109)
(1,797)
(7,422)
57,609

$ 50,187

$ 100,505

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization

FelCor Lodging Trust Incorporated (NYSE:FCH), or FelCor, is a Maryland corporation operating as a 
real estate investment trust, or REIT.  We are the sole general partner of, and the owner of a greater than 99% 
partnership interest in, FelCor Lodging Limited Partnership, or FelCor LP, through which we held ownership 
interests in 82 hotels with approximately 24,000 rooms at December 31, 2010.  At December 31, 2010, we had 
an aggregate of 97,166,583 shares and units outstanding, consisting of 96,881,858 shares of FelCor common 
stock and 284,725 units of FelCor LP limited partnership interest not owned by FelCor.  When used in this 
report, “we,” “us” and “our” refer to FelCor and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise indicated.

Of the 82 hotels in which we had an ownership interest at December 31, 2010, we owned a 100% 
interest in 64 hotels, a 90% interest in entities owning three hotels, an 82% interest in an entity owning one hotel, 
a 60% interest in an entity owning one hotel and 50% interests in entities owning 13 hotels.  We consolidate our 
real estate interests in the 69 hotels in which we held majority interests, and we record the real estate interests of 
the 13 hotels in which we held 50% interests using the equity method.

At December 31, 2010, 81 of our 82 hotels were leased to operating lessees, and one 50%-owned hotel 
was operated without a lease.  We held majority interests and had direct or indirect controlling interests in all the 
operating lessees.  Because we owned controlling interests in these lessees (including lessees of 12 of the 13 
hotels in which we owned 50% of the real estate interests), we consolidated our lessee interests in these hotels 
(we refer to these 81 hotels as our Consolidated Hotels) and reflect 100% of those hotels’ revenues and expenses  
on our statement of operations.  Of our Consolidated Hotels, we owned 50% of the real estate interests in each of 
12 hotels (we accounted for the ownership in our real estate interests of these hotels by the equity method) and 
majority real estate interests in each of the remaining 69 hotels (we consolidate our real estate interest in these 
hotels).  

The following table illustrates the distribution of our 81 Consolidated Hotels among our premier brands 
at December 31, 2010:

Brand

 Embassy Suites Hotels 

 Holiday Inn 

 Sheraton and Westin 

 Doubletree and Hilton

 Renaissance and Marriott

 Fairmont 

 Total

Hotels

45

15

8

9

3

1

81

Rooms

11,674

5,154

2,774

2,030

1,321

383

23,336

At December 31, 2010, our Consolidated Hotels were located in the United States (79 hotels in 22 states) 
and Canada (two hotels in Ontario), with concentrations in California (15 hotels), Florida (12 hotels) and Texas 
(11 hotels).  In 2010, approximately 47% of our Hotel EBITDA was generated from hotels in these three states.

At December 31, 2010, of our 81 Consolidated Hotels (i) subsidiaries of Hilton Hotels Corporation, or 
Hilton, managed 53 hotels, (ii) subsidiaries of InterContinental Hotels Group, or IHG, managed 15 hotels, 
(iii) subsidiaries of Starwood Hotels & Resorts Worldwide Inc., or Starwood, managed eight hotels, (iv) 
subsidiaries of Marriott International Inc., or Marriott, managed three hotels, (v) a subsidiary of Fairmont Hotels 
& Resorts, or Fairmont, managed one hotel, and (vi) an independent management company managed one hotel.
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FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization – (continued)

Our hotels managed by Marriott are accounted for on a fiscal year comprised of 52 or 53 weeks ending 
on the Friday closest to December 31.  Their 2010, 2009 and 2008 fiscal years ended on December 31, 2010, 
January 1, 2010, and January 2, 2009, respectively.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation — Our consolidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities, 
revenues and expenses of all majority-owned subsidiaries.  Intercompany transactions and balances are 
eliminated in consolidation.  Investments in unconsolidated entities (consisting entirely of 50 percent owned 
ventures) are accounted for by the equity method.  None of our less than wholly owned subsidiaries are 
considered variable interest entities.  We follow the voting interest model and consolidate entities in which we 
have greater than 50% ownership interest and report entities in which we have 50% or less ownership interest 
under the equity method.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America, requires that management make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results could differ 
from those estimates.

Investment in Hotels — Our hotels are stated at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method 
over estimated useful lives of 40 years for buildings, 15 to 30 years for improvements and three to ten years for 
furniture, fixtures, and equipment.

We periodically review the carrying value of each of our hotels to determine if circumstances exist 
indicating an impairment in the carrying value of the investment in the hotel or modification of depreciation 
periods.  If facts or circumstances support the possibility of impairment of a hotel, we prepare a projection of the 
undiscounted future cash flows, without interest charges, over the shorter of the hotel’s estimated useful life or 
the expected hold period, and determine if the investment in such hotel is recoverable based on the undiscounted 
future cash flows.  If impairment is indicated, we make an adjustment to reduce the carrying value of the hotel to 
its then fair value.  We use recent operating results and current market information to arrive at our estimates of 
fair value.

Maintenance and repairs are expensed, and major renewals and improvements are capitalized.  Upon the 
sale or disposition of a fixed asset, the asset and related accumulated depreciation are removed from our 
accounts and the related gain or loss is included in operations.

Acquisition of Hotels — Investments in hotel properties are based on purchase price and allocated to 
land, property and equipment, identifiable intangible assets and assumed debt and other liabilities at fair 
value.  Any remaining unallocated purchase price, if any, are treated as goodwill.  Property and equipment are 
recorded at fair value based on current replacement cost for similar capacity and allocated to buildings, 
improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment using appraisals and valuations prepared by management and/or 
independent third parties.  Identifiable intangible assets (typically contracts including ground and retail leases 
and management and franchise agreements) are recorded at fair value, although no value is generally allocated to 
contracts which are at market terms.  Above-market and below-market contract values are based on the present 
value of the difference between contractual amounts to be paid pursuant to the contracts acquired and our 
estimate of the fair value of contract rates for corresponding contracts measured over the period equal to the 
remaining non-cancelable term of the contract.  Intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method 
over the remaining non-cancelable term of the related agreements.  In making estimates of fair values for 
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purposes of allocating purchase price, we may utilize a number of sources such as those obtained in connection 
with the acquisition or financing of a property and other market data, including third-party appraisals and  
valuations.

Investment in Unconsolidated Entities — We own a 50% interest in various real estate ventures in which 
the partners or members jointly make all material decisions concerning the business affairs and operations. 
Because we do not control these entities, we carry our investment in unconsolidated entities at cost, plus our 
equity in net earnings or losses, less distributions received since the date of acquisition and any adjustment for 
impairment.  Our equity in net earnings or losses is adjusted for the straight-line depreciation, over the lower of 
40 years or the remaining life of the venture, of the difference between our cost and our proportionate share of 
the underlying net assets at the date of acquisition.  We periodically review our investment in unconsolidated 
entities for other-than-temporary declines in fair value.  Any decline that is not expected to be recovered in the 
next 12 months is considered other-than-temporary and an impairment is recorded as a reduction in the carrying 
value of the investment.  Estimated fair values are based on our projections of cash flows, market capitalization 
rates and sales prices of comparable assets.

We track inception-to-date contributions, distributions and earnings for each of our unconsolidated 
investments.  We determine the character of cash distributions from our unconsolidated investments for purposes 
of our consolidated statements of cash flows as follows:

• Cash distributions up to the aggregate historical earnings of the unconsolidated entity are recorded as an 
operating activity (i.e., a distribution of earnings); and

• Cash distributions in excess of aggregate historical earnings are recorded as an investing activity (i.e., a 
distribution of contributed capital).

Hotels Held for Sale —  We consider each individual hotel to be an identifiable component of our 
business.  We do not consider hotels held for sale until it is probable that the sale will be completed within one 
year.  We had no hotels held for sale at December 31, 2010 or 2009.

We consider a sale to be probable within the next twelve months (for purposes of determining whether a 
hotel is held for sale) in the period the buyer completes its due diligence review of the asset, we have an 
executed contract for sale, and we have received a substantial non-refundable deposit.  We test hotels held for 
sale for impairment each reporting period and record them at the lower of their carrying amounts or fair value 
less costs to sell.  Once we designate a hotel as held for sale it is not depreciated.  

Cash and Cash Equivalents — All highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less 
when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.

We place cash deposits at major banks.  Our bank account balances may exceed the Federal Depository 
Insurance Limits; however, management believes the credit risk related to these deposits is minimal.

Restricted Cash —Restricted cash includes reserves for capital expenditures, real estate taxes, and 
insurance, as well as cash collateral deposits for mortgage debt agreement provisions and capital expenditure 
obligations on sold hotels.

Deferred Expenses — Deferred expenses, consisting primarily of loan costs, are recorded at 
cost.  Amortization is computed using a method that approximates the effective interest method over the maturity 
of the related debt.
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Other Assets —  Other assets consist primarily of hotel operating inventories, prepaid expenses and 
deposits.

Revenue Recognition — Nearly 100% of our revenue is comprised of hotel operating revenues, such as 
room revenue, food and beverage revenue, and revenue from other hotel operating departments (such as 
telephone, parking and business centers).  These revenues are recorded net of any sales or occupancy taxes 
collected from our guests as earned.  All rebates or discounts are recorded, when allowed, as a reduction in 
revenue, and there are no material contingent obligations with respect to rebates or discounts offered by us.  All 
revenues are recorded on an accrual basis, as earned.  Appropriate allowances are made for doubtful accounts 
and are recorded as a bad debt expense.  The remainder of our revenue is from condominium management fee 
income and other sources. 

We do not have any time-share arrangements and do not sponsor any frequent guest programs for which 
we would have any contingent liability.  We participate in frequent guest programs sponsored by the brand 
owners of our hotels, and we expense the charges associated with those programs (typically consisting of a 
percentage of the total guest charges incurred by a participating guest) as incurred.  When a guest redeems 
accumulated frequent guest points at one of our hotels, the hotel bills the sponsor for the services provided in 
redemption of such points and records revenue in the amount of the charges billed to the sponsor.  We have no 
loss contingencies or ongoing obligation associated with frequent guest programs beyond what is paid to the 
brand owner following a guest’s stay.

Foreign Currency Translation — Results of operations for our Canadian hotels are maintained in 
Canadian dollars and translated using the weighted average exchange rates during the period.  Assets and 
liabilities are translated to U.S. dollars using the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date.  Resulting 
translation adjustments are reflected in accumulated other comprehensive income and were $26.5 million and 
$23.5 million as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Capitalized Costs — We capitalize interest and certain other costs, such as property taxes, land leases, 
property insurance and employee costs relating to hotels undergoing major renovations and redevelopments.  We 
cease capitalizing these costs to projects when construction is substantially complete.  Such costs capitalized in 
2010, 2009 and 2008, were $5.8 million, $5.9 million and $6.8 million, respectively.

Net Income (Loss) per Common Share — On January 1, 2009, we adopted a policy that treats unvested 
share-based payment awards containing non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paid 
or unpaid) as participating securities for computation of earnings per share (pursuant to the two-class method, in 
accordance with the Accounting Standards codification, or ASC, 260-10-45-59A through 45-70).  We 
retrospectively adjusted all prior-period earnings per share data accordingly.

We compute basic earnings per share by dividing net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders 
less dividends declared on unvested restricted stock (adjusted for forfeiture assumptions) by the weighted 
average number of common shares outstanding.  We compute diluted earnings per share by dividing net income 
(loss) attributable to common stockholders less dividends declared on unvested restricted stock (adjusted for 
forfeiture assumptions) by the weighted average number of common shares and equivalents 
outstanding.  Common stock equivalents represent shares issuable upon exercise of stock options.

For all years presented, our Series A cumulative preferred stock, or Series A preferred stock, if converted 
to common shares, would be antidilutive; accordingly, we do not assume conversion of the Series A preferred 
stock in the computation of diluted earnings per share.
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Stock Compensation — We apply a fair-value-based measurement method in accounting for share-based 
payment transactions with employees.

Derivatives — We recognize derivatives as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet and measure 
those instruments at fair value.  Additionally, the fair value adjustments will affect either equity or net income, 
depending on whether the derivative instrument qualifies as a hedge for accounting purposes and the nature of 
the hedging activity.

Segment Information — We have determined that our business is conducted in one reportable segment.

Distributions and Dividends — In January 2011, we reinstated our current quarterly preferred dividends 
and paid current quarterly preferred dividends of $9.7 million.  We cannot pay any common dividends unless and 
until all accrued and current preferred dividends are paid.  Our Board of Directors will determine the amount of 
future dividends (including the accrued but unpaid accrued preferred dividends) based upon various factors 
including operating results, economic conditions, other operating trends, our financial condition and capital 
requirements, as well as minimum REIT distribution requirements.  Our ability to make distributions is 
dependent on our receipt of quarterly distributions from FelCor LP, and FelCor LP’s ability to make distributions 
is dependent upon the results of operations of our hotels.

Noncontrolling Interests — Effective January 1, 2009, we adopted an accounting policy establishing and 
expanding accounting and reporting standards for noncontrolling interests (which were formerly known as 
minority interests) in a subsidiary and the deconsolidation of a subsidiary.  As a result of our adoption of this 
policy, amounts previously reported as minority interests in other partnerships on our balance sheets are now 
presented as noncontrolling interests in other partnerships within equity.  There has been no change in the 
measurement of this line item from amounts previously reported.  Minority interests in FelCor LP have also been 
recharacterized as noncontrolling interests, but because of the redemption feature of these units, have been 
included in the mezzanine section (between liabilities and equity) on our accompanying consolidated balance 
sheets.  These units are redeemable at the option of the holders for a like number of shares of our common stock 
or, at our option, the cash equivalent thereof.  The measurement of noncontrolling interests in FelCor LP is now 
presented at the fair value of the units as of the balance sheet date (based on our stock price as of the balance 
sheet date times the number of outstanding units).  Previously, these interests were measured based on the 
noncontrolling interests in FelCor LP’s pro rata share of total common interests.  The revised presentation and 
measurement has been adopted retrospectively.

Noncontrolling interests in other partnerships represent the proportionate share of the equity in other 
partnerships not owned by us.  Noncontrolling interests in FelCor LP represents the redemption value of 
FelCor LP units not owned by us.  We allocate income and loss to noncontrolling interests in FelCor LP and 
other partnerships based on the weighted average percentage ownership throughout the year.

Income Taxes — We have elected to be treated as a REIT under Sections 856 to 860 of the Internal 
Revenue Code.  We generally lease our hotels to wholly-owned taxable REIT subsidiaries, or TRSs, that are 
subject to federal and state income taxes.  Through these lessees we record room revenue, food and beverage 
revenue and other revenue related to the operations of our hotels.  We account for income taxes using the asset 
and liability method under which deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax 
consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and 
liabilities and their respective tax bases.  A valuation allowance is recorded for net deferred tax assets that are not 
expected to be realized.
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We determine whether it is “more-likely-than-not” that a tax position will be sustained upon 
examination, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of 
the position.  Once it is determined that a position meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, the 
position is measured to determine the amount of benefit to recognize in the financial statements.  We apply this 
policy to all tax positions related to income taxes.

3. Investment in Hotels

Investment in hotels consisted of the following (in thousands):

 
 

Building and improvements                                                                  
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Land                                                                  
Construction in progress                                                                  

 
Accumulated depreciation                                                                  

 

December 31,
2010

$ 2,179,926
525,448
249,647
13,322

2,968,343
(982,564)

$ 1,985,779

2009
$ 2,265,846

591,994
226,436
12,722

3,096,998
(916,604)

$ 2,180,394

In 2010, we wrote off fully depreciated furniture, fixtures and equipment aggregating approximately 
$58.7 million.

We invested $38.9 million and $75.9 million in additions and improvements to our consolidated hotels 
during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

4. Hotel Acquisition

In August 2010, we acquired the 383-room Fairmont Copley Plaza in Boston, Massachusetts.  The fair 
values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition were consistent with the purchase 
price and were allocated based on appraisals and valuation studies performed by management.  We expensed 
$400,000 of acquisition costs (including professional fees) that are not included in the fair value estimates of the 
net assets acquired.  The following table summarizes the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in 
our acquisition (in thousands):

Assets
Investment in hotels(a)

Accounts receivable
Other assets

Total assets acquired

Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Net assets acquired

 
$ 98,500

1,349
898

100,747

3,234
$ 97,513

(a) Investment in hotels was allocated to land ($27.6 million), building and improvements
($62.5 million) and furniture, fixtures and equipment ($8.4 million).
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The following consolidated unaudited pro forma results of operations for the years ended December 31, 
2010 and 2009 assume this acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2009.  The pro forma information includes 
revenues, operating expenses, depreciation and amortization.  The unaudited pro forma results of operations are 
not necessarily indicative of the results of operations if the acquisition had been completed on the assumed date.  
The unaudited pro forma results of operations are as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Total revenues
Net loss

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

Year Ended December 31,
(unaudited)

2010
$ 951,420
$ (227,360)

$ (3.27)

2009
$ 913,661
$ (107,490)

$ (2.30)

For the year ended December 31, 2010, we have included $16.8 million of revenues and $2.5 million of 
net income in our consolidated statements of operations related to the operations of this hotel.

5. Impairment Charges

Our hotels are comprised of operations and cash flows that can clearly be distinguished, operationally 
and for financial reporting purposes, from the remainder of our operations.  Accordingly, we consider our hotels 
to be components for purposes of determining impairment charges and reporting discontinued operations.

A hotel held for investment is tested for impairment whenever changes in circumstances indicate its 
carrying value may not be recoverable.  The test is conducted using the undiscounted cash flows for the shorter 
of the estimated remaining holding periods or the useful life of the hotel.  When testing for recoverability of 
hotels held for investment, we use projected cash flows over the expected hold period.  Those hotels held for 
investment that fail the impairment test described in ASC 360-10-35 are written down to their then current 
estimated fair value, before any selling expense, and continue to be depreciated over their remaining useful lives.

For impairment charges, we estimate each hotel's fair value by using estimated future cash flows, 
terminal values based on the projected cash flows and capitalization rates in the range of what is reported in 
industry publications for operationally similar assets and other available market information.  The cash flows 
used for determining the fair values are discounted using market-based discounts generally used for 
operationally and geographically similar assets.  The inputs used to determine the fair values of these hotels are 
classified as Level 3 under the authoritative guidance for fair value measurements.

As part of our long-term strategic plan to enhance shareholder value and achieve or exceed targeted 
returns on invested capital, we sell and acquire hotels to improve our overall portfolio quality, enhance  
diversification and improve growth rates. In that regard, we reviewed each hotel in our portfolio in terms of 
projected performances, future capital expenditure requirements and market dynamics and concentration risk.  
Based on this analysis, we developed a plan to sell our interests in 35 hotels (29 of which we consolidate the real 
estate interest and six of which are owned by unconsolidated joint ventures) that no longer meet our investment 
criteria.  As a consequence, the hold periods for the hotels we consolidate were shortened, and we were required 
to test those assets for impairment as they were approved to be marketed for sale.  We designated the first 14 
hotels as non-strategic in the third quarter of 2010, and the remaining 21 hotels in early 2011.  We recorded 

72



FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5.          Impairment Charges — (continued)

impairment charges of $65.8 million and $86.9 million in the third and fourth quarters of 2010, respectively, 
related to 16 of the non-strategic hotels we consolidate.  When the joint ventures designate the six hotels they 
own as non-strategic, the joint ventures will test for impairment based on the reduced hold periods.  We will sell 
hotels only when we receive satisfactory pricing.

 
Two loans (totaling $32 million) matured in May 2010.  The cash flows for the hotels that secured those 

loans did not cover debt service, and we stopped funding the shortfalls in December 2009.  We were unable to 
negotiate an acceptable debt modification or reduction that favored our stockholders, and we recorded a 
$21.1 million impairment charge in discontinued operations.  We transferred these hotels to the lenders in full 
satisfaction of the related debt, and recorded in a $15.2 million gain on extinguishment of debt in 2010.  

In 2008, we identified eight hotels as candidates to be sold thereby reducing our estimated remaining 
hold period for these hotels.  We tested these eight hotels for impairment using undiscounted estimated cash 
flows over a shortened estimated remaining hold period.  Of the hotels tested, four failed the test, which resulted 
in $69.5 million of impairment charges (of which $47.1 million is included in discontinued operations), to write 
down these hotel assets to our then current estimate of their fair market value before selling expenses.  We 
recorded a $3.4 million impairment charge (included in discontinued operations) on two of these sale candidates 
in 2009 because they failed updated impairment tests.  The valuations used in the 2009 impairment charges were 
based on third-party offers to purchase (a Level 2 input) at a price less than our previously estimated fair 
value.  These two hotels were sold in December 2009 for gross proceeds of $26 million.

Because of triggering events in 2008 related to changes in the capital markets, drop in travel demand and 
the combined effect on our stock price, we tested all of our hotel assets to determine if further assessment for 
potential impairment was required for any of our hotels.  We had one hotel with a short-term ground lease, in 
addition to the sale candidates noted above, fail this test.  We determined the book value of this hotel was not 
fully recoverable, and as such, recorded a $38.5 million impairment charge.

In 2008, one of our unconsolidated investees recorded a $3.3 million impairment charge on its long-lived 
assets (of which our share was $1.7 million).  We also recorded impairment charges of $11.0 million related to 
other-than-temporary declines in value of certain equity method investments, including a $6.6 million 
impairment charge for one investment related to a hotel that we do not intend to sell.  In accordance with ASC 
323-10-35, other-than temporary declines in fair value of our investment in unconsolidated entities result in 
reductions in the carrying value of these investments.  We consider a decline in value in our equity method 
investments that is not estimated to recover within 12 months to be other-than-temporary.

We may record additional impairment charges if operating results of individual hotels are materially 
different from our forecasts, the economy and lodging industry weakens, or we shorten our contemplated holding 
period for additional hotels.
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Discontinued operations include results of operations of one hotel sold in December 2010, two hotels 
transferred to lenders in satisfaction of debt in 2010 and two hotels sold in 2009.  

Results of operations for the hotels included in discontinued operations are as follows:

 
 
Hotel operating revenue

Operating expenses(a) 

Loss from discontinued operations
Interest expense, net
Debt extinguishment
Gain on sale, net of tax
Loss from discontinued operations

Year Ended December 31,
2010

$ 32,706

(53,295)

(20,589)
(2,575)
15,240

—
$ (7,924)

2009
$ 54,491

(62,563)

(8,072)

(2,872)
—

910
$ (10,034)

2008
$ 70,382

(128,687)

(58,305)

(2,867)
—

1,193
$ (59,979)

(a) Includes impairment charges of $21.1 million, $3.4 million and $47.1 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and liquidated damages of $11.1 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2008.

In 2009, we recorded a $1.8 million adjustment to gains on sale resulting from a change in the federal 
tax law that allowed for the recovery of previously paid alternative minimum taxes on gains from hotel sales in 
2006 and 2007.  This adjustment was offset by net losses of $911,000 (primarily related to selling costs) 
recorded on the sale of two hotels.

In 2008, we recorded a revision in income tax related to prior year gains on sales of hotels, which 
resulted in additional gains of $1.2 million related to these hotel sales.

7. Investment in Unconsolidated Entities

We owned 50% interests in joint ventures that owned 13 hotels at December 31, 2010 and 15 hotels at 
December 31, 2009.  We also owned a 50% interest in entities that own real estate in Myrtle Beach, South Carolina 
and provide condominium management services.  We account for our investments in these unconsolidated entities 
under the equity method.  We do not have any majority-owned subsidiaries that are not consolidated in our 
financial statements.  We make adjustments to our equity in income from unconsolidated entities related to the 
difference between our basis in investment in unconsolidated entities compared to the historical basis of the assets 
recorded by the joint ventures.
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The following table summarizes combined financial information for our unconsolidated entities
(in thousands):

 
 Balance sheet information:

      Investment in hotels, net of accumulated depreciation
      Total assets
      Debt
      Total liabilities
      Equity

December 31,

2010
 
$ 192,584
$ 209,742
$ 154,590
$ 159,171
$ 50,571

2009
 
$ 259,977
$ 279,611
$ 214,963
$ 220,389
$ 59,222

Our unconsolidated entities’ debt at December 31, 2010, consisted entirely of non-recourse mortgage debt.

In April 2010, we contributed $23 million to an unconsolidated joint venture that owned the Sheraton 
Premier at Tysons Corner.  That contribution, along with a $23 million contribution from our joint venture partner, 
was used to repay the joint venture's maturing $46 million mortgage.  In December 2010, we sold our interest in 
this joint venture and recorded a $20.5 million gain.

The following table sets forth summarized combined statement of operations information for our 
unconsolidated entities (in thousands):

 
 
Total revenues
Net income (loss)

Net income (loss) attributable to FelCor
Impairment loss
Gain on joint venture dispositions
Depreciation of cost in excess of book value
Equity in income (loss) from unconsolidated entities

Year Ended December 31,
2010

$ 64,500
$ (5,302)

$ (2,327)
—

21,103
(1,860)

$ 16,916

(d)

2009
$ 66,261
$ (4,988)

$ (2,494)
(476)

—
(1,844)

$ (4,814)

(a)

(b)

 

2008
$ 90,113
$ 3,946

$ 1,973
(11,038)

—
(1,867)

$ (10,932)

(a)

(c)

 

(a) Net income (loss) included impairment charges of $3.2 million for 2009 and $3.3 million for 2008.  These 
impairments were based on sales contracts (a Level 2 input) for two hotels owned by one of our joint 
ventures.

(b) As a result of an impairment charge recorded by one of our joint ventures, the net book value of the joint 
venture’s assets no longer supported the recovery of our investment.  Therefore, we recorded an additional 
impairment charge to reduce our investment in this joint venture to zero.  

(c) Represents an $11.0 million impairment charge related to other-than-temporary declines in fair value related 
to certain unconsolidated entities.

(d) Includes a $20.5 million gain from the sale of our interest in an unconsolidated joint venture and $559,000 in 
net proceeds in the final liquidation of a joint venture.
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The following table summarizes the components of our investment in unconsolidated entities (in 
thousands):

 
Hotel-related investments
Cost in excess of book value of hotel investments
Land and condominium investments
 

December 31,

2010
$ 15,736

50,634
9,550

$ 75,920

2009
$ 18,969

52,429
10,642

$ 82,040

The following table summarizes the components of our equity in income (loss) from unconsolidated 
entities (in thousands):

 
 
Hotel investments
Other investments
Equity in income (loss) from unconsolidated entities

Year Ended December 31,
2010

$ 17,509
(593)

$ 16,916

2009
$ (4,291)

(523)
$ (4,814)

2008
$ (10,366)

(566)
$ (10,932)
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8. Debt

Consolidated debt consisted of the following (in thousands):

 
Mortgage debt

Mortgage debt

Mortgage debt

Mortgage debt

Mortgage debt

Mortgage debt(e)

Mortgage debt

Mortgage debt
Mortgage debt

Mortgage debt

Other

Senior notes
Senior secured notes(g)

Senior notes

Retired debt
Total

 Encumbered
Hotels

12 hotels

 9 hotels

 9 hotels

 7 hotels

 5 hotels
 2 hotels

 1 hotel

 1 hotel

 1 hotel

 —

 14 hotels
 —

 —
61 hotels

 Interest Rate
(%)

L + 0.93

L + 5.10

L + 3.50

9.02

6.66
L + 4.25

8.77

5.81

6.15

4.25

10.00
9.00

—
 

(a)

(b)

(c)

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Maturity Date

 November 2011
 April 2015

 August 2011(d)

 April 2014

 June - August
2014

November 2011(f)

May 2013
 July 2016

June 2011

May 2011

 October 2014
 June 2011

—

 

December 31,
2010

$ 250,000

212,000

198,300

113,220

69,206
29,000

27,770

11,321

7,800

524

582,821
46,347

—

$ 1,548,309

2009

$ 250,000

—

200,425

117,422

70,917
—

27,829

11,741

9,228

354

572,500
86,604

426,294

$ 1,773,314

(a) We purchased an interest rate cap that caps LIBOR at 7.8% and expires November 2011 for a 
$250 million notional amount.

(b) LIBOR for this loan is subject to a 3% floor.  We purchased an interest rate cap that caps LIBOR at 
5.0% and expires May 2012 for a $212 million notional amount.

(c) LIBOR for this loan is subject to a 2% floor.
(d) This loan can be extended for as many as two years (to 2013), subject to satisfying certain conditions.
(e) The hotels securing this debt are subject to separate loan agreements and are not cross-collateralized.
(f) This loan can be extended for one year, subject to satisfying certain conditions.
(g) These notes have $636 million in aggregate principal outstanding and were sold at a discount that 

provides a 12.875% yield to maturity before transaction costs.

In 2010 we retired $40.3 million of our 8½% senior notes for $1.6 million in excess of par.

In November 2010, we incurred $29 million of new debt secured by two hotels.  The loan bears interest 
at LIBOR (subject to a 1% floor) plus 4.25% and is scheduled to mature in November 2011, with a one year 
extension option, exercisable subject to certain conditions.

In June 2010, we repaid $177 million of secured debt scheduled to mature in 2012 for $130 million, 
plus accrued interest, representing a 27% discount to the principal balance.  This reduced our leverage 
substantially and unencumbered two hotels.
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Two loans (totaling $32 million) matured in May 2010.  The cash flows for the hotels that secured those 
loans did not cover debt service, and we stopped funding the shortfalls in December 2009.  In 2010 we were 
unable to negotiate an acceptable debt modification or reduction that favored our stockholders, and we recorded 
a $21.1 million impairment charge in discontinued operations.  We transferred these hotels to the lenders in full 
satisfaction of the related debt, and recorded in a $15.2 million gain on extinguishment of debt in 2010.  

In May 2010, we obtained a new $212 million loan, secured by nine hotels, that matures in 2015.  This 
loan bears interest at LIBOR (subject to a 3.0% floor) plus 5.1%.  The proceeds were used to repay 
$210 million in loans that were secured by 11 hotels and scheduled to mature in May 2010.  The terms and 
interest rate of this financing are significantly more favorable than the refinanced debt, and we unencumbered 
two previously mortgaged hotels in the process.

In October 2009, we completed a private placement of $636 million in aggregate principal amount of 
our 10% senior secured notes due 2014 (Senior Notes).  The notes are secured by a pledge of our limited partner 
interests in FelCor LP, first mortgages and related security interests on up to 14 hotels and pledges of equity 
interests in certain wholly-owned subsidiaries.  Net proceeds from the notes were approximately $558 million 
after original issue discount, fees and expenses related to the offering.  The proceeds of these notes were used to 
retire approximately $428 million of our senior notes due in 2011 and for general corporate purposes.

In June 2009, we obtained a $201 million non-recourse term loan secured by nine hotels.  This loan 
bears interest at LIBOR (subject to a 2% floor) plus 350 basis points and matures in 2011, but can be extended 
for as many as two years, subject to satisfying certain conditions that we expect to satisfy.  The proceeds from 
this new loan were used for general corporate purposes.

In June 2009, we repaid the $128 million balance under our line of credit, which was then 
terminated.  By terminating our line of credit, we eliminated certain restrictive corporate debt covenants.

In March 2009, we obtained a $120 million loan agreement secured by seven hotels.  The proceeds of 
the loan were used to repay the balance of an existing loan secured by the same properties that would have 
matured on April 1, 2009.  The new loan matures in 2014 and bears interest at 9.02%.

Our Senior Notes require that we satisfy total leverage, secured leverage and interest coverage 
thresholds in order to: (i) incur additional indebtedness except to refinance maturing debt with replacement 
debt, as defined under our indentures; (ii) pay dividends in excess of the minimum distributions required to 
meet the REIT qualification test; (iii) repurchase capital stock; or (iv) merge.  At December 31, 2010, we 
exceeded the relevant minimum thresholds.  These notes are guaranteed by us, and payment of those obligations 
is secured by a pledge of the limited partner interests in FelCor LP owned by FelCor, a combination of first lien 
mortgages and related security interests and/or negative pledges on up to 14 hotels, and pledges of equity 
interests in certain subsidiaries of FelCor LP.  In connection with issuing our Senior Notes in 2009, we amended 
the indenture governing our old senior notes (of which $46.3 million remain outstanding) to eliminate 
substantially all of the restrictive covenants, guarantees, collateral and certain events of default provisions.
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8. Debt — (continued)

At December 31, 2010, we had consolidated secured debt totaling $1.5 billion, encumbering 61 of our 
consolidated hotels with a $1.6 billion aggregate net book value (including 14 hotels that were encumbered by 
our Senior Notes).  Except in the case of our Senior Notes, our mortgage debt is generally recourse solely to the 
specific assets securing the debt.  However, a violation of any of the recourse carve-out provisions, including 
fraud, misapplication of funds and other customary recourse carve-out provisions, could cause this debt to 
become fully recourse to us.  Much of our hotel mortgage debt allows us to substitute collateral under certain 
conditions and is prepayable subject to various prepayment, yield maintenance or defeasance obligations.

Most of our secured debt includes lock-box arrangements under certain circumstances. We are 
permitted to spend an amount required to cover our budgeted hotel operating expenses, taxes, debt service, 
insurance and capital expenditure reserves even if revenues are flowing through a lock-box in cases where a 
specified debt service coverage ratio is not met.  With the exception of one hotel, all of our consolidated hotels 
subject to lock-box provisions currently exceed the applicable minimum debt service coverage ratios.

To fulfill requirements under certain loans, we owned interest rate caps with aggregate notional 
amounts of $639.2 million and $427.2 million as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.  These interest 
rate cap agreements have not been designated as hedges and have insignificant fair values at both December 31, 
2010 and 2009, resulting in no significant net earnings impact.

We reported interest income of $363,000, $693,000 and $1.6 million for the years ended December 31, 
2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, which is included in net interest expense.  We capitalized interest of 
$638,000, $767,000 and $1.4 million, for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The early retirement of certain indebtedness in 2009, resulted in net charges related to debt 
extinguishment of $1.7 million.

Future scheduled principal payments on debt obligations at December 31, 2010, are as follows (in 
thousands):

Year

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016 and thereafter                                                                                 

 

Discount accretion over term                                                                                 
 

 

$ 539,157

6,393

34,694

806,995

205,450

8,813

1,601,502

(53,193)
$ 1,548,309

79



FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Our estimates of the fair value of (i) accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses 
approximate carrying value due to the relatively short maturity of these instruments; and (ii) our publicly traded 
debt is based on observable market data, and our debt that is not traded publicly is based on estimated effective 
borrowing rates for debt with similar terms, loan to estimated fair value and remaining maturities.  The estimated 
fair value of our debt was $1.7 billion at December 31, 2010 and 2009 (with a carrying value of $1.5 billion and 
$1.8 billion at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively).

Disclosures about fair value of financial instruments are based on pertinent information available to 
management as of December 31, 2010.  Considerable judgment is necessary to interpret market data and develop 
estimated fair value.  Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts 
that we could realize on disposition of the financial instruments. The use of different market assumptions and/or 
estimation methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

10. Income Taxes

We elected to be treated as a REIT under the federal income tax laws. As a REIT, we generally are not 
subject to federal income taxation at the corporate level on taxable income that is distributed to our stockholders. 
We may, however, be subject to certain state and local taxes on our income and property and to federal income 
and excise taxes on our undistributed taxable income.  Our taxable REIT subsidiaries, or TRSs, formed to lease 
our hotels, are subject to federal, state and local income taxes.  A REIT is subject to a number of organizational 
and operational requirements, including a requirement that it currently distribute at least 90% of its annual 
taxable income to its stockholders.  If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year for which the statute of 
limitations remain open, we will be subject to federal income taxes at regular corporate rates (including any 
applicable alternative minimum tax) for such taxable year and may not qualify as a REIT for four subsequent 
years.  In connection with our election to be treated as a REIT, our charter imposes restrictions on the ownership 
and transfer of shares of our common stock. FelCor LP expects to make distributions on its units sufficient to 
enable us to meet our distribution obligations as a REIT.

We account for income taxes using the asset and liability method, under which deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial 
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
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10. Income Taxes — (continued)

Reconciliation between our TRS’s GAAP net income (loss) and taxable gain (loss):

The following table reconciles our TRS’s GAAP net income (loss) to taxable income (loss) (in thousands):

 
 
GAAP  consolidated net loss attributable to FelCor

GAAP net loss from REIT operations

GAAP net loss of taxable subsidiaries

Impairment loss not deductible for tax
Tax gain (loss) in excess of book gains on sale of hotels
Depreciation and amortization(a) 
Employee benefits not deductible for tax
Unearned fee reductions
Tax adjustment to lease expense(b) 
Other book/tax differences
Tax gain (loss) of taxable subsidiaries before utilization
   of net operating losses

Utilization of net operating loss

Net tax gain (loss) of taxable subsidiaries

Year Ended December 31,
2010

$ (223,041)
172,495

(50,546)

8,852
—

(106)
3,534

916
40,572

5,251

8,473

(8,473)

$ —

2009
$ (108,122)

66,977

(41,145)

—
(1,821)

(269)
(4,205)
4,828

11,769
7,799

(23,044)

—

$ (23,044)

2008
$ (119,245)

84,287

(34,958)

—
(346)
(482)

(4,224)
—

11,773
(8)

(28,245)

—

$ (28,245)

(a) The changes in book/tax differences in depreciation and amortization principally result from book and 
tax basis differences, differences in depreciable lives and accelerated depreciation methods.

(b) For tax purposes, we record a reduction in intercompany rent between our REIT entities and TRS 
entities.  

Summary of TRS’s net deferred tax asset:

Our TRS had a deferred tax asset, on which we had a 100% valuation allowance, primarily comprised of 
the following (in thousands)

 
 

Accumulated net operating losses of our TRS

Tax property basis in excess of book
Accrued employee benefits not deductible for tax
Other
Gross deferred tax assets
Valuation allowance

Deferred tax asset after valuation allowance
Other - deferred tax liability
Net deferred tax asset

December 31,
2010

$ 125,085

2,822
984
997

129,888
(127,795)

2,093
(2,093)

$ —

2009
$ 128,305

—
3,967

147
132,419

(132,291)

128
(128)

$ —
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10. Income Taxes — (continued)

We have provided a valuation allowance against our deferred tax asset at December 31, 2010 and 2009, 
that results in no net deferred tax asset at December 31, 2010 and 2009 due to the uncertainty of realization 
(because of historical operating losses).  Accordingly, no provision or benefit for income taxes is reflected in the 
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.  At December 31, 2010, our TRS had net operating loss 
carryforwards for federal income tax purposes of $329.2 million, which are available to offset future taxable 
income, if any, and do not begin to expire until 2022.

Reconciliation between REIT GAAP net income (loss) and taxable income:

The following table reconciles REIT GAAP net income (loss) to taxable income (in thousands):

 
 

GAAP net loss from REIT operations
Book/tax differences, net:
   Depreciation and amortization(a) 

Noncontrolling interests
Equity in loss from unconsolidated entities
Tax gain (loss) on dispositions in excess of book
Impairment loss not deductible for tax
Liquidated damages

   Tax adjustment to lease revenue(b) 
Other

Taxable income (loss) subject to distribution requirement(c)

Year Ended December 31,
2010

$ (172,495)

 
(11,308)

(1,631)
—

17,274

164,861
—

(39,962)

(6,548)
$ (49,809)

2009
$ (66,977)

 
(11,608)

(222)
2,068

(26,922)

3,448
(1,000)

(11,769)

6,431
$ (106,551)

2008
$ (84,287)

 
(21,927)

(2,889)
12,696

—

107,963
11,060

(11,773)

704
$ 11,547

(a) Book/tax differences in depreciation and amortization principally result from differences in 
depreciable lives and accelerated depreciation methods.

(b) For tax purposes, we record a reduction in intercompany rent between our REIT entities and TRS 
entities.  

(c) The dividend distribution requirement is 90% of taxable income.
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10. Income Taxes — (continued)

At December 31, 2010, we had net operating loss carryforwards for federal income tax purposes of 
$169.4 million, which we expect to use to offset future distribution requirements.

Characterization of distributions:

For income tax purposes, distributions paid consist of ordinary income, capital gains, return of capital or 
a combination thereof.  Distributions paid per share were characterized as follows (there were no distributions in
2010):

 
 
 

Common Stock
Dividend income
Return of capital
 
Preferred Stock – Series A
Dividend income
Return of capital
 

Preferred Stock – Series C
Dividend income
Return of capital
 

2009
Amount

 
$ —

—
$ —
 
$ —

0.4875
$ 0.4875
 
$ —

0.50
$ 0.50

 
 

%
 

—
—
—

 
—

100.00
100.00

 
—

100.00
100.00

2008
Amount

 
$ 0.85

—
$ 0.85
 
$ 1.463

—
$ 1.463
 
$ 1.50

—
$ 1.50

(a)

 
 
 
(a)(b)

 
 

 
(a)(b)

 
 

%
 

100.00
—

100.00
 

100.00
—

100.00
 

100.00
—

100.00

(a) Dividend income in 2008 consists of ordinary dividend income and qualified dividend income.
(b) Fourth quarter 2008 preferred distributions were paid January 31, 2009, and were treated as 2009 

distributions for tax purposes.

11.  Capital Stock

Preferred Stock

Our Board of Directors is authorized to provide for the issuance of up to 20 million shares of preferred 
stock in one or more series, to establish the number of shares in each series, to fix the designation, powers, 
preferences and rights of each such series, and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof.

Our Series A preferred stock bears an annual cumulative dividend payable in arrears equal to the greater 
of $1.95 per share or the cash distributions declared or paid for the corresponding period on the number of shares 
of common stock into which the Series A preferred stock is then convertible.  Each share of the Series A 
preferred stock is convertible at the stockholder’s option to 0.7752 shares of common stock, subject to certain 
adjustments.
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11. Capital Stock — (continued)

Our 8% Series C Cumulative Redeemable preferred stock, or Series C preferred stock, bears an annual 
cumulative dividend of 8% of the liquidation preference (equivalent to $2.00 per depositary share).  We may call 
the Series C preferred stock and the corresponding depositary shares at $25 per depositary share.  These shares 
have no stated maturity, sinking fund or mandatory redemption, and are not convertible into any of our other 
securities.  The Series C preferred stock has a liquidation preference of $2,500 per share (equivalent to $25 per 
depositary share).

In January 2011, we reinstated our current quarterly preferred dividends and paid current quarterly 
preferred dividends of $9.7 million.  We cannot pay any common dividends unless and until all accrued and 
current preferred dividends are paid.  Our Board of Directors will determine whether and when to declare future 
dividends (including the accrued but unpaid preferred dividends) based upon various factors, including operating 
results, economic conditions, other operating trends, our financial condition and capital requirements, as well as 
minimum REIT distribution requirements.

FelCor LP Units

We are the sole general partner of FelCor LP and are obligated to contribute the net proceeds from any 
issuance of our equity securities to FelCor LP in exchange for units of partnership interest, or Units, 
corresponding in number and terms to the equity securities issued by us.  Units of limited partner interest may 
also be issued by FelCor LP to third parties in exchange for cash or property.  Units issued to third parties are 
redeemable at the option of the holders thereof for a like number of shares of our common stock or, at our option, 
for the cash equivalent thereof.  During 2010, 2009 and 2008, 10,235 Units, 883 Units, and 1,057,928 Units, 
respectively, were exchanged for a like number of common shares issued from treasury stock.

12. Hotel Operating Revenue, Departmental Expenses and Other Property Operating Costs

Hotel operating revenue from continuing operations was comprised of the following (in thousands): 

 
 
Room revenue
Food and beverage revenue
Other operating departments

Total hotel operating revenue

Year Ended December 31,
2010

$ 726,497
142,239
56,401

$ 925,137

2009
$ 687,486

128,781
55,285

$ 871,552

2008
$ 836,089

160,042
60,280

$ 1,056,411

Nearly 100% of our revenue in all periods presented was comprised of hotel operating revenues, which 
includes room revenue, food and beverage revenue, and revenue from other operating departments (such as 
telephone, parking and business centers).  These revenues are recorded net of any sales or occupancy taxes 
collected from our guests. All rebates or discounts are recorded, when allowed, as a reduction in revenue, and 
there are no material contingent obligations with respect to rebates or discounts offered by us. All revenues are 
recorded on an accrual basis, as earned.  Appropriate allowances are made for doubtful accounts and are 
recorded as a bad debt expense.  The remainder of our revenue was from condominium management fee income 
and other sources.
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12. Hotel Operating Revenue, Departmental Expenses and Other Property Operating Costs — 
(continued)

Hotel departmental expenses from continuing operations were comprised of the following (in 
thousands):

 
 
Room
Food and beverage
Other operating departments

Total hotel departmental expenses

Year Ended December 31,
2010

$ 196,147
112,185
25,447

$ 333,779

2009
$ 182,184

103,844
25,172

$ 311,200

2008
$ 203,662

123,572
27,394

$ 354,628

Other property operating costs from continuing operations were comprised of the following (in 
thousands):

 
 
Hotel general and administrative expense
Marketing
Repair and maintenance
Utilities

Total other property operating costs

Year Ended December 31,
2010

$ 86,121
79,586
50,730
48,531

$ 264,968

2009

$ 79,546
73,214
48,071
48,149

$ 248,980

2008
$ 91,720

85,929
53,478
51,827

$ 282,954

Hotel departmental expenses and other property operating costs include hotel compensation and benefit 
expenses of $286.5 million, $273.8 million, and $309.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 
2008, respectively.
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13. Taxes, Insurance and Lease Expenses

Taxes, insurance and lease expenses from continuing operations were comprised of the following (in 
thousands):

 
 
Hotel lease expense(a) 

Land lease expense(b) 

Real estate and other taxes
Property insurance, general liability insurance
    and other

  Total taxes, insurance and lease expense

Year Ended December 31,
2010

$ 36,327
10,210
32,500

12,395

$ 91,432

2009
$ 34,187

9,507
34,344

12,295

$ 90,333

2008
$ 46,264

11,500
31,641

13,391

$ 102,796

(a) Hotel lease expense is recorded by the consolidated operating lessees of 12 hotels owned by 
unconsolidated entities, and is partially (generally 49%) offset through noncontrolling interests in 
other partnerships.  Our 50% share of the corresponding lease income is recorded through equity in 
income from unconsolidated entities.  Hotel lease expense includes percentage rent of $15.0 million, 
$13.0 million and $24.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008 respectively.

(b) Land lease expense includes percentage rent of $4.1 million, $3.6 million and $5.5 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.

14. Land Leases and Hotel Rent

We lease land occupied by certain hotels from third parties under various operating leases that expire 
through 2089.  Certain land leases contain contingent rent features based on gross revenue at the respective 
hotels.  In addition, we recognize rent expense for 13 hotels that are owned by unconsolidated entities and are 
leased to our consolidated lessees.  These leases expire through 2014 and require the payment of base rents and 
contingent rent based on revenues at the respective hotels.  Future minimum lease payments under our land lease 
obligations and hotel leases at December 31, 2010, were as follows (in thousands):

Year
2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016 and thereafter

 

 
$ 26,992

24,135

5,997

5,866

5,821

274,613

$ 343,424
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15. Earnings Per Share

 On January 1, 2009, we adopted a policy that treats unvested share-based payment awards containing 
non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) as participating securities for 
computation of earnings per share (pursuant to the two-class method).  We retrospectively adjusted all prior-
period earnings per share data accordingly. The revised diluted earnings per common share amounts were 
reduced from their originally reported amounts by $0.02 for the year ended 2008.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share (in 
thousands, except per share data):

 

 

Numerator:

Net loss attributable to FelCor

Discontinued operations attributable to FelCor

  Loss from continuing operations attributable to FelCor

      Less:Preferred dividends

Dividends declared on unvested restricted stock compensation

Loss from continuing operations attributable to FelCor
    common stockholders

Discontinued operations attributable to FelCor

Numerator for basic and diluted loss attributable to FelCor
    common stockholders

Denominator:

Denominator for basic and diluted loss per share

Basic and diluted loss per share data:

Loss from continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Net  loss

Year Ended December 31,
2010

$ (223,041)

6,949

(216,092)

(38,713)

—

(254,805)

(6,949)

$ (261,754)

 

80,611

 

$ (3.16)

$ (0.09)

$ (3.25)

2009

$ (108,122)

9,988

(98,134)

(38,713)

—

(136,847)

(9,988)

$ (146,835)

 

63,114

 

$ (2.17)

$ (0.16)

$ (2.33)

2008

$ (119,245)

58,936

(60,309)

(38,713)

(1,041)

(100,063)

(58,936)

$ (158,999)

 

61,979

 

$ (1.61)

$ (0.95)

$ (2.57)

Securities that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future that were not included in 
computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share, because they would have been antidilutive for the periods 
presented, are as follows (unaudited, in thousands):

 
Series A convertible preferred shares

2010
9,985

2009
9,985

2008
9,985

Series A preferred dividends that would be excluded from net income (loss) available to FelCor common 
stockholders, if the Series A preferred shares were dilutive, were $25.1 million for all periods presented.
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16. Commitments, Contingencies and Related Party Transactions

Until mid-2010 we shared the executive offices and certain employees with TCOR Holdings, LLC 
(controlled by Thomas J. Corcoran, Jr., Chairman of our Board of Directors), and TCOR Holdings, LLC paid its 
share of the costs thereof, including an allocated portion of the rent, compensation of certain personnel, office 
supplies, telephones, and depreciation of office furniture, fixtures, and equipment.  All allocations of shared 
expenses were approved by a majority of our independent directors.  TCOR Holdings, LLC paid approximately 
$19,000, $42,000, and $60,000 for shared office costs in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.  We do not currently 
share any costs with TCOR Holdings, LLC.

Our property insurance has a $100,000 "all-risk" deductible, a 5% deductible (insured value) for named 
windstorm coverage and for California earthquake coverage.   Substantial uninsured or not fully-insured losses 
would have a material adverse impact on our operating results, cash flows and financial condition.  Catastrophic 
losses, such as the losses caused by hurricanes in 2005, could make the cost of insuring against these types of 
losses prohibitively expensive or difficult to find.  In an effort to limit the cost of insurance, we purchase 
catastrophic insurance coverage based on probable maximum losses based on 250-year events and have only 
purchased terrorism insurance to the extent required by our lenders.  We have established a self-insured retention 
of $250,000 per occurrence for general liability insurance with regard to 54 of our hotels.  The remainder of our 
hotels participate in general liability programs sponsored by our managers, with no deductible.

There is no litigation pending or known to be threatened against us or affecting any of our hotels, other 
than claims arising in the ordinary course of business or which are not considered to be material. Furthermore, 
most of these claims are substantially covered by insurance. We do not believe that any claims known to us, 
individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on us.

Our hotels are operated under various management agreements that call for base management fees, 
which generally range from 1 – 3% of the hotel’s total revenue to the sum of 2% of the hotel’s total revenue plus 
5% of the hotel’s room revenue and generally have an incentive provision related to the hotel’s profitability.  In 
addition, the management agreements generally require us to invest approximately 3% to 5% of revenues for 
capital expenditures.  The management agreements have terms from 5 to 20 years and generally have renewal 
options.

The management agreements governing the operations of 35 of our Consolidated Hotels contain the 
right and license to operate the hotel under the specified brands.  The remaining 46 Consolidated Hotels operate 
under franchise or license agreements that are separate from our management agreements.  Typically, our 
franchise or license agreements provide for a license fee or royalty of 4% to 5% of room revenues.  In the event 
we breach one of these agreements, in addition to losing the right to use the brand name for the operation of the 
applicable hotel, we may be liable, under certain circumstances, for liquidated damages equal to the fees paid to 
the franchisor with respect to that hotel during the three preceding years.

In 2009, we sold two Holiday Inn hotels in Florida operating under management agreements with IHG.  
These hotels were originally designated for redevelopment with condominiums, but market conditions in Florida 
no longer make these condominium projects feasible.  We also determined that the major capital expenditures 
necessary to retain the Holiday Inn flags at these hotels were not in the best interests of our stockholders, given 
the shortened hold period for these hotels.  Liquidated damages were computed based on operating results of a 
hotel prior to termination.   The aggregate liquidated damages related to these hotels was approximately 
$11 million.  We accrued the full amount of liquidated damages in 2008, which were paid in full in January 2011.
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17. Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosure

In 2010 and 2009, we allocated $185,000 and $17,000, respectively, of noncontrolling interests to 
additional paid-in capital with regard to the exchange of 10,235 Units and 883 Units, respectively, for common 
stock.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, our repayment of borrowings consisted of retirement of debt of 
$387.8 million, and normal recurring principal payments of $13.2 million.

Depreciation and amortization expense is comprised of the following (in thousands):

 
 
Depreciation and amortization from continuing operations

Depreciation and amortization from discontinued operations
Total depreciation and amortization expense

Year Ended December 31,
2010

$ 145,536

2,127
$ 147,663

2009
$ 144,152

5,936
$ 150,088

2008
$ 134,409

7,259
$ 141,668

For the year ended December 31, 2009, our repayment of borrowings consisted of retirement of debt of 
$544.3 million, payments on our line of credit of $213.0 million, and normal recurring principal payments of 
$15.1 million.

18. Stock Based Compensation Plans

We sponsor two restricted stock and stock option plans, or the Plans.  We are authorized to issue 
3,550,000 shares of common stock under the Plans pursuant to awards granted in the form of incentive stock 
options, non-qualified stock options, and restricted stock.  All outstanding options have 10-year contractual 
terms and vest either over four or five equal annual installments beginning in the year following the date of grant 
or 100% at the end of a four-year vesting term.  Stock grants vest either over three to five years in equal annual 
installments or over a four year schedule, subject to time-based and performance-based vesting.  There were 
178,083 shares available for grant under the Plans at December 31, 2010.
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18. Stock Based Compensation Plans — (continued)

Stock Options

A summary of the status of our non-qualified stock options granted under the Plans as of December 31, 
2010, 2009 and 2008, and the changes during these years, is presented in the following tables:

 

 

Outstanding at beginning of the year

Forfeited or expired

Outstanding at end of year

Exercisable at end of year

2010

Shares of
Underlying

Options

40,000

(25,000)

15,000

15,000

Weighted
Average 
Exercise
Prices

$ 18.05

$ 19.50

$ 15.62

$ 15.62

2009

Shares of
Underlying

Options

40,000

—

40,000

40,000

Weighted
Average 
Exercise
Prices

$ 18.05

$ —

$ 18.05

$ 18.05

2008

Shares of
Underlying

Options

161,356

(121,356)

40,000

40,000

Weighted
Average 
Exercise
Prices

$ 21.11

$ 22.13

$ 18.05

$ 18.05

 
 

Options Exercisable and Outstanding

Range of
Exercise Prices

$ 15.62

Number
Outstanding 
at 12/31/10

15,000

Wgtd. Avg.
Life 

Remaining
0.85

Wgtd Avg.
Exercise 

Price
$ 15.62

 The weighted average fair value of options granted during 2001 using the Black-Scholes option pricing 
model, was $0.85 per share.  We have not issued stock options since 2001.
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18. Stock Based Compensation Plans — (continued)

Restricted Stock

A summary of the status of our restricted stock grants as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, and the 
changes during these years is presented below:

 

 

Outstanding at beginning of the year

Granted(a):

   With immediate vesting(b)

With 3-year pro rata vesting

With 4-year pro rata vesting

With 5-year pro rata vesting

Forfeited

Outstanding at end of year

Vested at end of year

Unvested at end of year

2010

Shares

4,255,187

 

16,166

—

—

—

(71,264)

4,200,089

(2,645,272)

1,554,817

Weighted
Average

Fair
Market
Value at
Grant

$ 10.90

$ 4.21

$ —

$ —

$ —

$ 21.71

$ 10.69

$ 13.00

$ 6.76

2009

Shares

2,829,330

16,000

1,444,810

—

—

(34,953)

4,255,187

(1,774,839)

2,480,348

Weighted
Average 

Fair 
Market 
Value

at Grant
$ 15.20

 

$ 1.01

$ 2.64

$ —

$ —

$ 12.52

$ 10.90

$ 14.06

$ 8.65

2008

Shares

2,329,230

 

45,800

—

449,300

5,000

—

2,829,330

(1,483,976)

1,345,354

Weighted
Average 

Fair 
Market 
Value

at Grant
$ 15.85

 

$ 12.20

$ —

$ 12.20

$ 12.20

$ 15.20

$ 14.09

$ 16.44

(a) All shares granted are issued out of treasury.
(b) Shares awarded to directors.

The unearned compensation cost of granted but unvested restricted stock as of December 31, 2010 was 
$5.4 million.  The weighted average period over which this cost is to be amortized is approximately two years.

19. Employee Benefits

We offer a 401(k) retirement savings plan and health insurance benefits to our employees.  Our matching 
contribution to our 401(k) plan totaled $1.0 million during 2010 and $900,000 for each of 2009 and 
2008.  Health insurance benefits cost $900,000 during 2010, $800,000 during 2009 and $900,000 during 2008.

The employees at our hotels are employees of the respective management companies.  Under the 
management agreements, we reimburse the management companies for the compensation and benefits related to 
the employees who work at our hotels.  We are not, however, the sponsors of their employee benefit plans and 
have no obligation to fund these plans.
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20. Segment Information

We have determined that our business is conducted in one operating segment because of the similar 
economic characteristics of our hotels.

The following table sets forth revenues from continuing operations and investment in hotel assets 
represented by the following geographical areas (in thousands):

 
 

California
Florida
Texas
Georgia
Other states
Canada

Total

Revenue For the Year Ended
December 31,

2010
$ 224,155

143,092
99,840
51,734

380,560
28,930

$ 928,311

2009
$ 211,124

146,011
98,180
48,930

345,775
24,375

$ 874,395

2008
$ 258,748

177,788
118,856
58,345

413,048
32,609

$ 1,059,394

Investment in Hotel Assets
as of December 31,

2010
$ 505,753

348,823
175,483
109,677
795,596
50,447

$ 1,985,779

2009
$ 527,345

405,479
203,841
126,118
859,852
57,759

$ 2,180,394

2008
$ 526,770

455,636
214,294
126,851
904,105
51,370

$ 2,279,026

21. Noncontrolling Interests

We record the noncontrolling interests of other consolidated partnerships as a separate component of 
equity in the condensed consolidated balance sheets.  Additionally, the condensed consolidated statements of 
operations separately present earnings and other comprehensive income attributable to controlling and non-
controlling interests.  We adjust the noncontrolling interests of FelCor LP each period so that the carrying value 
equals the greater of its carrying value based on the accumulation of historical cost or its redemption value.  The 
historical cost of the noncontrolling interests of FelCor LP is based on the proportional relationship between the 
carrying value of equity associated with our common stockholders relative to that of the unitholders of 
FelCor LP.  Net income (loss) is allocated to the noncontrolling partners of FelCor LP based on their weighted 
average ownership percentage during the period.  At December 31, 2010, approximately $2.0 million of cash or 
FelCor common stock, at our option, would be paid to the noncontrolling interests of FelCor LP if the 
partnership were terminated.  This balance is equivalent to the 284,725 partnership units outstanding valued 
using the December 31, 2010 FelCor common stock closing price ($7.04), which we have assumed would be 
equal to the value provided to outside partners upon liquidation of FelCor LP.

The changes in redeemable noncontrolling interests are shown below (in thousands):

 
 
Balance at beginning of period                                                                                                 
Redemption value allocation                                                                                                 
Comprehensive loss:
Foreign exchange translation                                                                                               
Net loss                                                                                               
Balance at end of period                                                                                                 

Year Ended
December 31,

2010
$ 1,062

1,815

8
(881)

$ 2,004

2009
$ 545

1,152

37
(672)

$ 1,062
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22. Quarterly Operating Results (unaudited)

Our unaudited consolidated quarterly operating data for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 
follows (in thousands, except per share data).  In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of 
normal recurring accruals) necessary for a fair presentation of quarterly results have been reflected in the data. 
It is also management’s opinion, however, that quarterly operating data for hotel enterprises are not indicative of 
results to be achieved in succeeding quarters or years.  In order to obtain a more accurate indication of 
performance, there should be a review of operating results, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for a 
period of several years.

2010

Total revenues                                                                               

Income (loss) from continuing operations

Discontinued operations                                                                               

Net income (loss) attributable to FelCor

Net income (loss) attributable to FelCor common
    stockholders

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to FelCor

Basic per common share data:

Net income (loss) from continuing operations

Discontinued operations                                                                               

Net income (loss)                                                                               

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding

Diluted weighted average common shares
   outstanding

First
Quarter

$ 219,167

$ (39,097)

$ (23,845)

$ (62,388)

$ (72,066)

$ (60,318)

 

$ (0.76)

$ (0.37)

$ (1.14)

63,475

63,475

Second
Quarter

$ 240,406

$ 22,949

$ (959)

$ 21,614

$ 11,936

$ 18,895

 

$ 0.19

$ (0.01)

$ 0.17

66,531

66,531

Third
Quarter

$ 236,563

$ (95,678)

$ 6,398

$ (88,810)

$ (98,488)

$ (86,889)

 

$ (1.10)

$ 0.07

$ (1.04)

95,034

95,034

Fourth
Quarter

$ 232,175

$ (106,087)

$ 10,482

$ (93,457)

$ (103,136)

$ (91,800)

 

$ (1.20)

$ 0.12

$ (1.08)

95,490

95,490

2009

Total revenues                                                                               

Loss from continuing operations

Discontinued operations                                                                               

Net loss attributable to FelCor

Net loss attributable to FelCor common
    stockholders

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to FelCor

Basic per common share data:

Net loss from continuing operations

Discontinued operations                                                                               

Net loss                                                                               

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding

Diluted weighted average common shares
   outstanding

First
Quarter

$ 219,927

$ (18,614)

$ (2,808)

$ (21,064)

$ (30,742)

$ (22,765)

$ (0.44)

$ (0.04)

$ (0.49)

62,989

62,989

Second
Quarter

$ 226,965

$ (10,540)

$ (428)

$ (11,195)

$ (20,873)

$ (7,055)

$ (0.32)

$ (0.01)

$ (0.33)

63,101

63,101

Third
Quarter

$ 217,110

$ (20,566)

$ (4,908)

$ (25,140)

$ (34,818)

$ (20,455)

$ (0.47)

$ (0.08)

$ (0.55)

63,086

63,086

Fourth
Quarter

$ 210,393

$ (49,337)

$ (1,890)

$ (50,723)

$ (60,402)

$ (49,666)

$ (0.93)

$ (0.03)

$ (0.96)

63,087

63,087
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as of December 31, 2010 
(in thousands)

Location

Birmingham, AL (a)

Phoenix - Biltmore, AZ (a)

Phoenix – Crescent, AZ (b)

Phoenix – Tempe, AZ (a)

Anaheim – North, CA (a)

Dana Point – Doheny Beach,
CA (c)

Indian Wells – Esmeralda
Resort & Spa, CA (d)

Los Angeles – International
Airport – South, CA (a)

Milpitas – Silicon Valley, CA(a)

Napa Valley, CA (a)

Oxnard - Mandalay Beach –
Hotel & Resort, CA (a)

San Diego – On the Bay, CA (e)

San Francisco – Airport/
Burlingame, CA (a)

San Francisco – Airport/South
San Francisco, CA (a)

San Francisco - Fisherman’s
Wharf, CA (e)

San Francisco –Union Square,
CA (f)

Santa Barbara – Goleta, CA (e)

Santa Monica Beach – at the
Pier, CA (e)

Toronto - Airport, Canada (e)

Toronto - Yorkdale, Canada (e)

Wilmington, DE (c)

Boca Raton, FL (a)

Deerfield Beach – Resort &
Spa, FL (a)

Encumbrances

$ 17,048

18,850

—

22,944

23,595

18,125

—

—

11,085

15,508

34,381

(j)

(j)

24,312

(j)

(j)

14,946

27,197

(j)

(j)

7,800

10,875

28,420

Initial Cost

Land

$ 2,843

4,694

3,608

3,951

2,548

1,787

30,948

2,660

4,021

2,218

2,930

—

—

3,418

—

8,466

1,683

10,200

—

1,566

1,379

1,868

4,523

Building and
Improvements

$ 29,286

38,998

29,583

34,371

14,832

15,545

73,507

17,997

23,677

14,205

22,125

68,229

39,929

31,737

61,883

73,684

14,647

16,580

21,041

13,633

12,487

16,253

29,443

Cost Capitalized
Subsequent to

Acquisition

Land

$ —

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

(434)

4

—

—

829

—

—

68

Building and
Improvements

$ 4,224

3,653

1,774

2,831

1,900

3,349

1,784

1,863

3,590

2,853

7,845

8,659

2,172

3,667

3,064

48,475

1,579

337

17,556

15,199

11,190

3,163

6,131

Gross Amounts at Which
Carried at Close of

Period

Land

$ 2,843

4,694

3,608

3,951

2,548

1,787

30,948

2,660

4,021

2,218

2,930

—

—

3,418

—

8,032

1,687

10,200

—

2,395

1,379

1,868

4,591

Building and
Improvements

$ 33,510

42,651

31,357

37,202

16,732

18,894

75,291

19,860

27,267

17,058

29,970

76,888

42,101

35,404

64,947

122,159

16,226

16,917

38,597

28,832

23,677

19,416

35,574

Total

$ 36,353

47,345

34,965

41,153

19,280

20,681

106,239

22,520

31,288

19,276

32,900

76,888

42,101

38,822

64,947

130,191

17,913

27,117

38,597

31,227

25,056

21,284

40,165

Accumulated
Depreciation
Buildings &

Improvements

$ 11,703

15,337

10,512

11,356

6,058

6,262

5,687

7,785

9,755

5,926

9,805

28,644

15,493

12,791

31,933

28,291

4,914

2,884

12,942

10,326

7,485

7,724

12,243

Year
Opened

1987

1985

1986

1986

1987

1992

1989

1985

1987

1985

1986

1965

1986

1988

1970

1970

1969

1967

1970

1970

1972

1989

1987

Date
Acquired

1/3/1996

1/3/1996

6/30/1997

5/4/1998

1/3/1996

2/21/1997

12/16/2007

3/27/1996

1/3/1996

5/8/1996

5/8/1996

7/28/1998

11/6/1995

1/3/1996

7/28/1998

7/28/1998

7/28/1998

3/11/2004

7/28/1998

7/28/1998

3/20/1998

2/28/1996

1/3/1996

Life Upon
Which

Depreciation
is Computed

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs
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as of December 31, 2010
(in thousands)

Location

Ft. Lauderdale – 17th Street, FL
(a)

Ft. Lauderdale – Cypress Creek,
FL (b)

Jacksonville – Baymeadows, FL
(a)

Miami – International Airport,
FL (a)

Orlando – International Airport,
FL (e)

Orlando – International Drive
South/Convention,  FL (a)

Orlando (North), FL (a)

Orlando – Walt Disney World
Resort, FL (c)

St. Petersburg – Vinoy Resort &
Golf Club, FL (d)

Tampa – Tampa Bay, FL (c)

Atlanta – Airport, GA (a)

Atlanta – Buckhead, GA (a)

Atlanta – Galleria, GA (b)

Atlanta – Gateway-Atlanta
Airport, GA (b)

Chicago – Gateway – O’Hare,
IL (b)

Indianapolis – North, IN (a)

Lexington – Lexington Green,
KY (g)

Baton Rouge, LA (a)

New Orleans – Convention
Center, LA (a)

New Orleans – French Quarter,
LA (e)

Boston – at Beacon Hill, MA(e)

Boston – Copley  Plaza, MA(h)

Boston – Marlborough, MA (a)

Encumbrances

$ 19,691

13,862

23,590

18,292

8,670

19,975

(j)

(j)

—

12,950

11,947

34,584

17,328

(j)

—

11,321

17,721

12,079

27,770

(j)

(j)

—

20,544

Initial Cost

Land

$ 5,329

3,009

1,130

4,135

2,549

1,632

1,673

—

—

2,142

2,568

7,303

5,052

5,113

8,178

5,125

1,955

2,350

3,647

—

—

27,600

948

Building and
Improvements

$ 47,850

26,177

9,608

24,950

22,188

13,870

14,218

28,092

100,823

18,639

22,342

38,996

28,507

22,857

37,043

13,821

13,604

19,092

31,993

50,732

45,192

62,500

8,143

Cost Capitalized
Subsequent to

Acquisition

Land

(163)

—

—

—

6

—

(18)

—

—

1

—

(300)

—

—

—

—

—

1

—

—

—

—

761

Building and
Improvements

$ 4,955

2,592

7,993

5,954

3,011

3,067

8,332

1,639

3,715

2,828

2,922

2,811

1,911

1,889

4,263

7,492

870

2,335

8,438

9,473

9,028

44

14,608

Gross Amounts at
Which Carried at Close

of Period

Land

$ 5,166

3,009

1,130

4,135

2,555

1,632

1,655

—

—

2,143

2,568

7,003

5,052

5,113

8,178

5,125

1,955

2,351

3,647

—

—

27,600

1,709

Building and
Improvements

$ 52,805

28,769

17,601

30,904

25,199

16,937

22,550

29,731

104,538

21,467

25,264

41,807

30,418

24,746

41,306

21,313

14,474

21,427

40,431

60,205

54,220

62,544

22,751

Total

$ 57,971

31,778

18,731

35,039

27,754

18,569

24,205

29,731

104,538

23,610

27,832

48,810

35,470

29,859

49,484

26,438

16,429

23,778

44,078

60,205

54,220

90,144

24,460

Accumulated
Depreciation
Buildings &

Improvements

$ 19,224

9,065

6,410

10,509

8,209

6,737

8,745

11,653

8,492

7,296

7,718

14,538

10,220

8,063

12,804

9,195

5,216

7,711

15,451

19,053

22,000

521

7,770

Year
Opened

1986

1986

1986

1983

1984

1985

1985

1987

1925

1986

1989

1988

1990

1986

1994

1986

1987

1985

1984

1969

1968

1912

1988

Date
Acquired

1/3/1996

5/4/1998

7/28/1994

1/3/1996

7/28/1998

7/28/1994

7/28/1994

7/28/1997

12/16/2007

7/28/1997

5/4/1998

10/17/1996

6/30/1997

6/30/1997

6/30/1997

8/1/1996

1/10/1996

1/3/1996

12/1/1994

7/28/1998

7/28/1998

8/18/2010

6/30/1995

Life Upon
Which

Depreciation
is Computed

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs
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Schedule III – Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation – (continued)

as of December 31, 2010
(in thousands)

Location

Baltimore – at BWI Airport,
MD(a)

Bloomington, MN (a)

Minneapolis – Airport, MN (a)

St Paul – Downtown, MN (a)

Charlotte – SouthPark, NC (c)

Raleigh/Durham, NC (c)

Philadelphia – Historic District,
PA (e)

Philadelphia – Society Hill, PA
(b)

Pittsburgh – at University
Center (Oakland), PA (e)

Charleston – Mills House, SC
(e)

Myrtle Beach – Oceanfront
Resort, SC (a)

Myrtle Beach Resort (g)

Nashville – Airport – Opryland
Area, TN (a)

Nashville – Opryland – Airport
(Briley Parkway), TN (e)

Austin, TX (c)

Corpus Christi, TX (a)

Dallas – DFW International
Airport South, TX (a)

Dallas – Love Field, TX (a)

Dallas – Market Center, TX (a)

Dallas – Park Central, TX (i)

Houston - Medical Center, TX
(e)
San Antonio - International
Airport, TX (e)

Burlington Hotel & Conference
Center, VT (b)

Encumbrances

$ 21,229

18,350

19,517

—

18,152

17,290

26,298

43,184

14,753

25,538

(j)

21,296

18,698

(j)

8,510

7,501

19,302

16,500

(j)

—

22,579

23,800

30,710

$ 918,617

Initial Cost

Land

$ 2,568

2,038

5,417

1,156

1,458

2,124

3,164

4,542

—

3,251

2,940

9,000

1,118

—

2,508

1,113

4,041

1,934

2,560

4,513

—

3,351

3,136

$248,681

Building and
Improvements

$ 22,433

17,731

36,508

17,315

12,681

18,476

27,535

45,121

25,031

28,295

24,988

19,844

9,506

27,734

21,908

9,618

35,156

16,674

23,751

43,125

22,027

29,168

27,283

$ 1,976,817

Cost Capitalized
Subsequent to

Acquisition

Land

$ (2)

—

24

—

—

—

7

—

—

7

—

6

—

—

—

51

—

—

—

762

—

(185)

(2)

$1,423

Building and
Improvements

$ 3,694

3,111

2,125

1,726

3,245

2,307

9,403

7,872

3,018

5,021

5,501

29,520

1,502

3,271

2,860

4,491

1,167

3,344

2,388

7,865

5,004

3,915

2,751

$ 382,129

Gross Amounts at Which
Carried at Close of Period

Land

$ 2,566

2,038

5,441

1,156

1,458

2,124

3,171

4,542

—

3,258

2,940

9,006

1,118

—

2,508

1,164

4,041

1,934

2,560

5,275

—

3,166

3,134

$250,104

Building and
Improvements

$ 26,127

20,842

38,633

19,041

15,926

20,783

36,938

52,993

28,049

33,316

30,489

49,364

11,008

31,005

24,768

14,109

36,323

20,018

26,139

50,990

27,031

33,083

30,034

$ 2,358,946

Total

28,693

22,880

44,074

20,197

17,384

22,907

40,109

57,535

28,049

36,574

33,429

58,370

12,126

31,005

27,276

15,273

40,364

21,952

28,699

56,265

27,031

36,249

33,168

$2,609,050

Accumulated
Depreciation
Buildings &

Improvements

8,748

6,851

14,210

6,902

3,638

6,897

12,553

16,560

9,028

9,615

9,946

9,163

4,930

12,802

8,574

4,951

10,907

7,353

8,543

16,558

7,980

10,590

9,665

$ 729,420

Year
Opened

1987

1980

1986

1983

N/A

1987

1972

1986

1988

1982

1987

1974

1985

1981

1987

1984

1985

1986

1980

1983

1984

1981

1967

 

Date
Acquired

3/20/1997

2/1/1997

11/6/1995

11/15/199
5

7/12/2002

7/28/1997

7/28/1998

10/1/1997

11/1/1998

7/28/1998

12/5/1996

7/23/2002

7/28/1994

7/28/1998

3/20/1997

7/19/1995

7/28/1998

3/29/1995

6/30/1997

6/30/1997

7/28/1998

7/28/1998

12/4/1997

 

Life Upon
Which

Depreciation
is Computed

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs

15 - 40 Yrs
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FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED
Schedule III – Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation – (continued)

as of December 31, 2010 
(in thousands)

(a) Embassy Suites Hotel
(b) Sheraton
(c) Doubletree Guest Suites
(d) Renaissance Resort
(e) Holiday Inn
(f) Marriott
(g) Hilton
(h) Fairmont
(i) Westin
(j) This hotel provides collateral for our $636 million senior notes due in October 2014.

 
 
Reconciliation of Land and Buildings and Improvements
Balance at beginning of period
Additions during period:
Acquisitions
Improvements
Deductions during period:
Disposition of properties
Foreclosures
Balance at end of period before impairment charges

Cumulative impairment charges on real estate assets owned at
    end of period

Balance at end of period

Reconciliation of Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of period
Additions during period:
Depreciation for the period
Deductions during period:
Disposition of properties

Balance at end of period

Year Ended December 31,
2010

 
$ 2,541,962
 

90,100
22,863

 
—

(45,875)
2,609,050

(179,477)

$ 2,429,573

 
$ 672,160
 

71,821
 

(14,561)

$ 729,420

2009
 
$ 2,586,034
 

—
51,895

 
(95,967)

—
2,541,962

(49,680)

$ 2,492,282

 
$ 629,920
 

69,408
 

(27,168)

$ 672,160

2008
 
$ 2,542,784
 

—
43,250

 
—
—

2,586,034

(101,424)

$ 2,484,610

 
$ 567,954
 

61,966
 

—

$ 629,920
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

Under the supervision and with the participation of FelCor’s management, including its chief executive 
officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and 
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934) as of the end of the period covered by this report (the “Evaluation Date”).  Based on this evaluation, 
our chief executive officer and principal financial officer concluded, as of the Evaluation Date, that our 
disclosure controls and procedures were effective, such that the information relating to us required to be 
disclosed in our reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in 
SEC rules and forms, and is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our chief executive 
officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting.

There have not been any changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 
13a-15(f) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) during the fourth quarter that have materially 
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial 
reporting.  A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 31, 2010.  In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated 
Framework.  Based on our assessment, we have concluded that, as of December 31, 2010, our internal control 
over financial reporting is effective, based on those criteria.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, has been 
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their 
report, which appears on page 57 of this Annual Report.
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Item 9B. Other Information

On February 21, 2011, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of FelCor formally 
adopted a policy for recouping incentive compensation in certain circumstances.  The purpose of this policy is to 
help ensure executives act in the best interests of FelCor and its shareholders.  The policy requires all FelCor 
executive officers to repay or return cash bonuses and/or performance-based equity awards in the event the 
Company issues a material restatement of its financial statements and where the restatement was caused by an 
employee's intentional misconduct.  The Compensation Committee will consider all relevant factors and exercise 
business judgment in determining any appropriate amounts to recoup and has the discretion to determine the 
timing and form of recoupment.  The policy will apply beginning with cash bonuses and equity grants paid or 
made based on 2011 performance.

PART III

Item 10.   Directors, Executive Officers of the Registrant and Corporate Governance

The information called for by this Item is contained in our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2011 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11.   Executive Compensation

The information called for by this Item is contained in our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2011 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12.   Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder 
Matters

The information called for by this Item is contained in our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2011 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, or in Item 5 of this Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2010, and 
is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13.   Certain Relationships, Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information called for by this Item is contained in our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2011 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14.   Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information called for by this Item is contained in our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2011 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15.   Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a)  The following is a list of documents filed as a part of this report:

(1)    Financial Statements.

Included herein at pages 56 through 93.

(2)    Financial Statement Schedules.

The following financial statement schedule is included herein at pages 94 through 97.

Schedule III - Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation for FelCor Lodging Trust Incorporated

All other schedules for which provision is made in Regulation S-X are either not required to be included 
herein under the related instructions, are inapplicable or the related information is included in the footnotes to the 
applicable financial statement and, therefore, have been omitted.

(b) Exhibits.

The following exhibits are provided pursuant to the provisions of Item 601 of Regulation S-K:

The following exhibits are provided pursuant to the provisions of Item 601 of Regulation S-K:

Exhibit
Number
 

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

  Description of Exhibit
 
Articles of Amendment and Restatement dated June 22, 1995, amending and restating the Charter
of FelCor Lodging Trust Incorporated (“FelCor”), as amended or supplemented by Articles of
Merger dated June 23, 1995, Articles Supplementary dated April 30, 1996, Articles of
Amendment dated August 8, 1996, Articles of Amendment dated June 16, 1997, Articles of
Amendment dated October 30, 1997, Articles Supplementary filed May 6, 1998, Articles of
Merger and Articles of Amendment dated July 27, 1998, Certificate of Correction dated March 11,
1999, Certificate of Correction to the Articles of Merger between FelCor and Bristol Hotel
Company, dated August 30, 1999, Articles Supplementary, dated April 1, 2002, Certificate of
Correction, dated March 29, 2004, to Articles Supplementary filed May 2, 1996, Articles
Supplementary filed April 2, 2004, Articles Supplementary filed August 20, 2004, Articles
Supplementary filed April 6, 2005, and Articles Supplementary filed August 29, 2005 (filed as
Exhibit 4.1 to FelCor’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Registration No. 333-128862) and
incorporated herein by reference).

Bylaws of FelCor Lodging Trust Incorporated (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to FelCor’s Form 8-K dated 
November 12, 2010 and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Share Certificate for Common Stock (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to FelCor’s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 1996 and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Share Certificate for $1.95 Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock (filed as
Exhibit 4.4 to FelCor’s Form 8-K, dated May 1, 1996, and incorporated herein by reference).
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4.3

4.4

4.4.1

4.5

4.6

4.6.1

4.6.2

4.6.3

4.7

10.1

10.1.1

10.1.2

Form of Share Certificate for 8% Series C Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (filed as
Exhibit 4.10.1 to FelCor’s Form 8-K, dated April 6, 2005, and incorporated herein by
reference).

Deposit Agreement, dated April 7, 2005, between FelCor and SunTrust Bank, as preferred share
depositary (filed as Exhibit 4.11.1 to FelCor’s Form 8-K, dated April 6, 2005, and incorporated
herein by reference).

Supplement and Amendment to Deposit Agreement, dated August 30, 2005, between the
Company and SunTrust Bank, as depositary (filed as Exhibit 4.11.2 to FelCor’s Form 8-K,
dated April 6, 2005, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Depositary Receipt evidencing the Depositary Shares, which represent the 8% Series C
Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (filed as Exhibit 4.12.1 to FelCor’s Form 8-K, dated
April 6, 2005, and incorporated herein by reference).

Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2009, by and between FelCor Escrow Holdings, L.L.C. and
U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to FelCor’s Form 8-K, dated
October 1, 2009, and incorporated herein by reference).

First Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 12, 2009, by and between FelCor Escrow 
Holdings, L.L.C. and U.S. Bank National Association (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to FelCor’s Form
8-K, dated October 13, 2009, and incorporated herein by reference).

Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 13, 2009, by and among FelCor, FelCor
Lodging Limited Partnership (“FelCor LP”), certain subsidiary guarantors named therein,
FelCor Holdings Trust, FelCor Escrow Holdings, L.L.C. and U.S. Bank National Association
(filed as Exhibit 4.2 to FelCor’s Form 8-K dated, October 13, 2009, and incorporated herein by
reference).

Third Supplemental Indenture dated as of March 23, 2010, by and among FelCor, FelCor LP,
certain subsidiary guarantors named therein, FelCor Holdings Trust and U.S. Bank National
Association (Filed as Exhibit 4.1 to FelCor's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2010
(the “May 2010 Form 10-Q”), and incorporated herein by reference).

Registration Rights Agreement dated October 1, 2009 to be effective as of October 13, 2009, by
and among FelCor, FelCor LP, certain subsidiary guarantors named therein, and J.P. Morgan
Securities Inc. on behalf of itself and the initial purchasers (filed as Exhibit 4.3 to FelCor’s
Form 8-K, dated October 13, 2009, and incorporated herein by reference).

Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of FelCor LP, dated as of
December 31, 2001 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to FelCor’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2001 (the “2001 Form 10-K”) and incorporated herein by reference).

First Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of
FelCor LP, dated April 1, 2002 (filed as Exhibit 10.1.1 to FelCor’s Form 8-K, dated April 1,
2002, and incorporated herein by reference).

Second Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of
FelCor LP, dated August 31, 2002 (filed as Exhibit 10.1.2 to FelCor’s Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2002 (the “2002 Form 10-K”), and incorporated herein by reference).
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10.1.3

10.1.4

10.1.5

10.1.6

10.1.7

10.1.8

10.2.1

10.2.2

10.3.1

10.3.2

Third Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of
FelCor LP, dated October 1, 2002 (filed as Exhibit 10.1.3 to the 2002 Form 10-K and
incorporated herein by reference).

Fourth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of
FelCor LP, dated as of July 1, 2003 (filed as Exhibit 10.1.4 to FelCor’s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference).

Fifth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of
FelCor LP, dated as of April 2, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.1.5 to FelCor’s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference).

Sixth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of
FelCor LP, dated as of August 23, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.1.6 to FelCor’s Form 8-K, dated
August 26, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference).

Seventh Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of 
FelCor LP, dated as of April 7, 2005, which contains Addendum No. 4 to the Second Amended 
and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of FelCor Lodging Limited Partnership (filed 
as Exhibit 10.1.8 to FelCor’s Form 8-K, dated April 6, 2005, and incorporated herein by 
reference).

Eighth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of
FelCor LP, dated as of August 30, 2005 (filed as Exhibit 10.1.9 to FelCor’s Form 8-K, dated
August 29, 2005, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Management Agreement between subsidiaries of FelCor, as owner, and a subsidiary of
InterContinental Hotels, as manager, with respect to FelCor’s InterContinental Hotels branded
hotels (included as an exhibit to the Leasehold Acquisition Agreement, which was filed as
Exhibit 10.28 to FelCor’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2001, and incorporated
herein by reference).

Omnibus Agreement between FelCor and all its various subsidiaries, controlled entities and 
affiliates, and Six Continents Hotels, Inc. and all its various subsidiaries, controlled entities and 
affiliates, with respect to FelCor’s InterContinental Hotels branded hotels (filed as Exhibit 
10.2.2 to FelCor’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 (the “2005 Form
10-K”), and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Management Agreement between subsidiaries of FelCor, as owner, and a subsidiary of
Hilton Hotels Corporation, as manager, with respect to FelCor’s Embassy Suites Hotels branded
hotels, including the form of Embassy Suites Hotels License Agreement attached as an exhibit
thereto, effective prior to July 28, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the 2001 Form 10-K, and
incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Management Agreement between subsidiaries of FelCor, as owner, and a subsidiary of
Hilton Hotels Corporation, as manager, with respect to FelCor’s Embassy Suites Hotels branded
hotels, including the form of Embassy Suites Hotels License Agreement attached as an exhibit
thereto, effective July 28, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.3.2 to FelCor’s Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2004 (the “2004 Form 10-K”), and incorporated herein by reference).
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10.4

10.5

10.6

10.6.1

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

Form of Management Agreement between subsidiaries of FelCor, as owner, and a subsidiary of
Hilton Hotels Corporation, as manager, with respect to FelCor’s Doubletree and Doubletree
Guest Suites branded hotels (filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the 2001 Form 10-K and incorporated
herein by reference).

Form of Management Agreement between subsidiaries of FelCor, as owner, and a subsidiary of
Starwood Hotels & Resorts, Inc., as manager, with respect to FelCor’s Sheraton and Westin
branded hotels (filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the 2001 Form 10-K and incorporated herein by
reference).

Executive Employment Agreement, dated effective as of February 1, 2006, between FelCor and
Thomas J. Corcoran, Jr. (filed as Exhibit 10.36 to FelCor’s Form 8-K, dated February 7, 2006,
and incorporated herein by reference).

Letter Agreement dated March 1, 2008 between Thomas J. Corcoran, Jr. and FelCor (filed as
Exhibit 101 to FelCor’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2008, and incorporated
herein by reference).

Executive Employment Agreement dated October 19, 2007, between FelCor and Richard A.
Smith (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to FelCor’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2007,
and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of 2007 Change in Control and Severance Agreement between FelCor and each of Rick
Smith, Andy Welch, Mike DeNicola, Troy Pentecost, Jon Yellen and Tom Corcoran (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to FelCor’s Form 8-K dated October 23, 2007, and incorporated herein by
reference).

Savings and Investment Plan of FelCor (filed as Exhibit 10.10 to the 2001 Form 10-K and
incorporated herein by reference).

2001 Restricted Stock and Stock Option Plan of FelCor (filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the 2002
Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Contract under Restricted Stock and Stock Option Plans of
FelCor (filed as Exhibit 10.16 to the 2004 Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Employee Stock Grant Contract under Restricted Stock and Stock Option Plans of
FelCor (filed as Exhibit 10.17 to the 2004 Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference).

FelCor’s 2005 Restricted Stock and Stock Option Plan as amended (filed as Exhibit 4.4 to
FelCor’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration File No. 333-151066) and
incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Employee Stock Grant Contract under Restricted Stock and Stock Option Plans of
FelCor applicable to grants in 2005 and thereafter (filed as Exhibit 10.33 to FelCor’s Form 8-K,
dated April 26, 2005, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Employee Stock Grant and Supplemental Long-Term Cash Payment Agreement dated
as of February 19, 2009 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to FelCor’s Form 8-K, dated February 20, 2009,
and incorporated herein by reference).
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10.15.1

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22.1

10.22.2

Amendment to Employee Stock Grant and Supplemental Long-Term Cash Payment Agreement
dated as of February 19, 2009 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to FelCor’s Form 8-K, dated December 28,
2009, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Restricted Payment Contract (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to FelCor’s Form 8-K, dated
December 28, 2009, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Employee Stock Grant Contract (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to FelCor’s Form 8-K, dated
December 28, 2009, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Indemnification Agreement by and among FelCor, FelCor LP and individual officers
and directors of FelCor (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to FelCor’s 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,
2009, and incorporated herein by reference; superseding the form of Indemnification Agreement
that was filed as Exhibit 10.1 to FelCor’s Form 8-K, dated November 9, 2006, and incorporated
herein by reference).

Form of Guaranty Agreement by and among FelCor, FelCor LP and individual employees of
FelCor (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to FelCor’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2009, and
incorporated herein by reference).

Summary of  Amended Annual Compensation Program for Directors of FelCor (filed as exhibit 
10.21 to FelCor's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 and incorporated 
herein by reference).

Summary of FelCor’s Performance-Based Annual Incentive Compensation Programs (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to FelCor’s Form 8-K, dated February 18, 2010, and incorporated herein by
reference).

Form of Loan Agreement, each dated either May 26, 2004, June 10, 2004 or July 19, 2004,
between JPMorgan Chase Bank, as lender, and each of FelCor/JPM Boca Raton Hotel, L.L.C.,
FelCor/JPM Phoenix Hotel, L.L.C., FelCor/JPM Wilmington Hotel, L.L.C., FelCor/JPM
Atlanta ES Hotel, L.L.C., FelCor/JPM Austin Holdings, L.P., FelCor/JPM Orlando Hotel,
L.L.C., and FelCor/JPM BWI Hotel, L.L.C. and FCH/DT BWI Hotel, L.L.C., as borrowers, and
acknowledged and agreed by FelCor LP (filed as Exhibit 10.34 to FelCor’s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Mortgage, Renewal Mortgage, Deed of Trust, Deed to Secure Debt, Indemnity Deed of
Trust and Assignment of Leases and Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing, each dated
either May 26, 2004, June 10, 2004 or July 19, 2004, from FelCor/JPM Wilmington Hotel,
L.L.C., DJONT/JPM Wilmington Leasing, L.L.C., FelCor/JPM Phoenix Hotel, L.L.C., DJONT/
JPM Phoenix Leasing, L.L.C., FelCor/JPM Boca Raton Hotel, L.L.C., DJONT/JPM Boca
Raton Leasing, L.L.C., FelCor/JPM Atlanta ES Hotel, L.L.C., DJONT/JPM Atlanta ES Leasing,
L.L.C., FelCor/JPM Austin Holdings, L.P., DJONT/JPM Austin Leasing, L.P., FelCor/JPM
Orlando Hotel, L.L.C., DJONT/JPM Orlando Leasing, L.L.C., FCH/DT BWI Holdings, L.P.,
FCH/DT BWI Hotel, L.L.C. and DJONT/JPM BWI Leasing, L.L.C., to, and for the benefit of,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, as mortgagee or beneficiary (filed as Exhibit 10.34.1 to FelCor’s Form
10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference).
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10.22.3

10.22.4

10.23.1

10.23.1.1

10.23.2

10.23.3

10.23.4

10.24.1

Form of seven separate Promissory Notes, each dated either May 26, 2004, June 10, 2004 or
July 19, 2004, made by FelCor/JPM Wilmington Hotel, L.L.C., FelCor/JPM Phoenix Hotel,
L.L.C., FelCor/JPM Boca Raton Hotel, L.L.C., FelCor/JPM Atlanta ES Hotel, L.L.C., FelCor/
JPM Austin Holdings, L.P., FelCor/JPM Orlando Hotel, L.L.C., and FelCor/JPM BWI Hotel,
L.L.C., each separately payable to the order of JPMorgan Chase Bank in the respective original
principal amounts of $11,000,000 (Wilmington, Delaware), $21,368,000 (Phoenix, Arizona),
$5,500,000 (Boca Raton, Florida), $13,500,000 (Atlanta, Georgia), $9,616,000 (Austin, Texas),
$9,798,000 (Orlando, Florida), and $24,120,000 (Linthicum, Maryland) (filed as Exhibit
10.34.2 to FelCor’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004, and incorporated herein by
reference).

Form of Guaranty of Recourse of Borrower, each dated either May 26, 2004, June 10, 2004 or
July 19, 2004, made by FelCor LP in favor of JPMorgan Chase Bank (filed as Exhibit 10.34.3
to FelCor's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004, and incorporated herein by
reference).

Loan Agreement, dated as of November 10, 2006, by and among FelCor/JPM Hotels, L.L.C.
and DJONT/JPM Leasing, L.L.C., as borrowers, and Bank of America, N.A., as lender, relating
to a $250 million loan from lender to borrower (filed as Exhibit 10.35.1 to the FelCor’s Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 (the “2006 Form 10-K”), and incorporated
herein by reference).

First Amendment to Loan Agreement and Other Loan Documents, dated as of January 31, 2007,
by and among FelCor/JPM Hotels, L.L.C. and DJONT/JPM Leasing, L.L.C., as borrowers, and
Bank of America, N.A., as lender (filed as Exhibit 10.35.1 to the 2006 Form 10-K and
incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Morgage, Deed of Trust and Security Agreement, each dated as of November 10, 2006, 
from FelCor/JPM Hotels, L.L.C. and DJONT/JPM Leasing, L.L.C., as borrowers, in favor of 
Bank of America, N.A., as lender, each covering a separate hotel and securing the Mortgage 
Loan (filed as Exhibit 10.35.2 to the 2006 Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Amended and Restated Promissory Note, each dated as of January 31, 2007, made by
FelCor/JPM Hotels, L.L.C. and DJONT/JPM Leasing, L.L.C. payable to the order of either
Bank of America, N.A. or JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as lender, in the original aggregate
principal amount of $250 million (filed as Exhibit 10.35.3 to teh 2006 Form 10-K and
incorporated herein by reference).

Guaranty of Recourse Obligations of Borrowers, dated as of November 10, 2006, made by
FelCor LP in favor of Bank of America, N.A. (filed as Exhibit 10.35.4 to the 2006 Form 10-K
and incorporated herein by reference).

Loan Agreement, dated March 31, 2009, by and between FelCor/CSS (SPE), L.L.C., as
borrower, The Prudential Insurance Company of America, as lender, and joined by DJONT
Operations, L.L.C. (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to FelCor’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2009, and incorporated herein by reference).
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10.24.2

10.24.3

10.24.4

10.25.1

10.25.2

10.25.3

10.25.4

10.25.5

10.26.1

10.26.2

Form of Mortgage and Security Agreement, dated March 31, 2009, executed by FelCor/CSS
(SPE), L.L.C. and DJONT Operations, L.L.C. for the benefit of The Prudential Insurance
Company of America (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to FelCor’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2009, and incorporated herein by reference).

Promissory Note, dated March 31, 2009, made by FelCor/CSS (SPE), L.L.C., as borrower, in
favor of The Prudential Insurance Company of America (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to FelCor’s Form
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2009, and incorporated herein by reference).

Recourse Liabilities Guarantee, dated March 31, 2009, made by FelCor and FelCor LP in favor
of The Prudential Insurance Company of America (filed as Exhibit 10.6 to FelCor’s Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended March 31, 2009, and incorporated herein by reference).

Term Loan Agreement, dated as of June 12, 2009, among FelCor/JPM Hospitality (SPE), L.L.C.
and DJONT/JPM Hospitality Leasing (SPE), L.L.C., as borrowers, JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A., as administrative agent, and the other lenders party hereto (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to
FelCor’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 3, 2009, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Mortgage/Deed of Trust, Assignment of Leases and Rents, Security Agreement and
Fixture Filing, dated as of June 12, 2009, granted by FelCor/JPM Hospitality (SPE), L.L.C. and
DJONT/JPM Hospitality Leasing (SPE), L.L.C. for the benefit of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.,
as administrative agent (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to FelCor’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2009, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Note, dated as of June 12, 2009, executed by FelCor/JPM Hospitality (SPE), L.L.C.
and DJONT/JPM Hospitality Leasing (SPE), L.L.C. for the benefit of the lenders (filed as
Exhibit 10.3 to FelCor’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2009, and incorporated
herein by reference).

Form of Carve Out Guaranty, dated as of June 12, 2009, by FelCor in favor of JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A., as administrative agent (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to FelCor’s Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2009, and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Recourse Guaranty, dated as of June 12, 2009, by FelCor in favor of JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A., as administrative agent (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to FelCor’s Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30, 2009, and incorporated herein by reference).

Pledge Agreement dated October 13, 2009, by and among FelCor, FelCor LP, certain subsidiary
pledgors named therein, FelCor Holdings Trust, and U.S. Bank National Association (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to FelCor’s Form 8-K dated October 13, 2009, and incorporated herein by
reference).

Form of Mortgage, Deed of Trust, Assignment of Leases and Rents, Security Agreement and
Fixture Filing by and among FelCor Lodging Trust Incorporated, FelCor Lodging Limited
Partnership, certain of their subsidiaries, as guarantors, and U.S. Bank National Association, as
trustee and collateral agent, relating to the 10% Senior Secured Notes due 2014 (Filed as exhibit
10.1 to the May 2010 Form 10-Q and incorporated herein by reference).
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10.27.1

10.27.2

10.27.3

10.27.4

10.27.5

21*

23*

31.1*

31.2*

32*

Credit Agreement, dated as of May 3, 2010, by and among FelCor/CMB Buckhead Hotel,
L.L.C., FelCor/CMB Marlborough Hotel, L.L.C., FelCor/CMB Corpus Holdings, L.P., FelCor/
CMB Orsouth Holdings, L.P., FelCor/CMB SSF Holdings, L.P., FelCor S-4 Hotels (SPE),
L.L.C., DJONT/CMB Buckhead Leasing, L.L.C., DJONT/CMB FCOAM, L.L.C., DJONT/

Form of Promissory Note, dated as of May 3, 2010, executed by FelCor/CMB Buckhead Hotel,
L.L.C., FelCor/CMB Marlborough Hotel, L.L.C., FelCor/CMB Corpus Holdings, L.P., FelCor/
CMB Orsouth Holdings, L.P., FelCor/CMB SSF Holdings, L.P., FelCor S-4 Hotels (SPE),
L.L.C., DJONT/CMB Buckhead Leasing, L.L.C., DJONT/CMB FCOAM, L.L.C., DJONT/
CMB Corpus Leasing, L.L.C., DJONT/CMB Orsouth Leasing, L.L.C., DJONT/CMB SSF
Leasing, L.L.C., and FelCor S-4 Leasing (SPE), L.L.C. ) (filed as exhibit 10.33.2 to FelCor's
S-11 filed May 13, 2010 and incorporated herein by reference).

Pledge and Security Agreement, dated as of May 3, 2010, by and among FelCor LP, DJONT
Operations, L.L.C., FelCor TRS Holdings, L.L.C., FelCor/CSS Holdings, L.P., and Fortress
Credit Corp. (filed as exhibit 10.33.3 to FelCor's S-11 filed May 13, 2010 and incorporated
herein by reference).

Form of Mortgage, Fixture Filing and Security Agreement, dated as of May 3, 2010, granted by
FelCor/CMB Buckhead Hotel, L.L.C., FelCor/CMB Marlborough Hotel, L.L.C., FelCor/CMB
Corpus Holdings, L.P., FelCor/CMB Orsouth Holdings, L.P., FelCor/CMB SSF Holdings, L.P.,
FelCor S-4 Hotels (SPE), L.L.C., DJONT/CMB Buckhead Leasing, L.L.C., DJONT/CMB
FCOAM, L.L.C., DJONT/CMB Corpus Leasing, L.L.C., DJONT/CMB Orsouth Leasing,
L.L.C., DJONT/CMB SSF Leasing, L.L.C., and FelCor S-4 Leasing (SPE), L.L.C for the
benefit of Fortress Credit Corp. (filed as exhibit 10.33.4 to FelCor's S-11 filed May 13, 2010
and incorporated herein by reference).

Guaranty, dated as of May 3, 2010, granted by FelCor LP in favor of Fortress Credit Corp.
(filed as exhibit 10.33.5 to FelCor's S-11 filed May 13, 2010 and incorporated herein by
reference).

List of Subsidiaries of FelCor.

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. 1350).

----------------------
*Filed herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant 
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

 
 
 
 
 
Date: February 24, 2011

FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED
 
By:
 
 

 
/s/ Jonathan H. Yellen
Jonathan H. Yellen
Executive Vice President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by 
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

 
February 24, 2011
 

February 24, 2011
 

February 24, 2011
 

February 24, 2011
 

February 24, 2011
 

February 24, 2011

 

 

February 24, 2011

February 24, 2011
 

February 24, 2011
 

Date    
/s/ Richard A. Smith

Richard A. Smith
President and Director (Chief Executive Officer)

/s/ Andrew J. Welch
Andrew J. Welch

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ Lester C. Johnson
Lester C. Johnson

Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ Thomas J. Corcoran, Jr.
Thomas J. Corcoran, Jr.

Chairman of the Board and Director

/s/ Melinda J. Bush
Melinda J. Bush, Director

/s/ Glenn A. Carlin
Glenn A. Carlin, Director

Robert F. Cotter, Director

/s/Christopher J. Hartung
Christopher J. Hartung, Director

/s/ Thomas C. Hendrick
Thomas C. Hendrick, Director

/s/ Charles A. Ledsinger, Jr.
Charles A. Ledsinger, Jr., Director

Signature  

108



February 24, 2011

 
February 24, 2011

 
February 24, 2011

 
February 24, 2011

 

/s/ Robert H. Lutz, Jr.
Robert H. Lutz, Jr., Director

/s/ Robert A. Mathewson
Robert A. Mathewson, Director

/s/ Mark D. Rozells
Mark D. Rozells, Director

/s/ C. Brian Strickland
C. Brian Strickland, Director
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EXHIBIT 21
LIST OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF FELCOR LODGING TRUST INCORPORATED 

(as of December 31, 2010)

1

 

2

 

3

 

4

 

5

 

6

 

7

 

8

 

9

 

10

 

11

 

12

 

13

 

14

 

15

 

16

 

17

 

18

 

19

 

20

 

21

 

22

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name
BHR Canada Tenant Company

 

BHR Lodging Tenant Company

 

BHR Operations, L.L.C.

 

Brighton at Kingston Plantation, L.L.C.

 

DJONT Leasing, L.L.C.

 

DJONT Operations, L.L.C.

 

DJONT/Charlotte Leasing, L.L.C.

 

DJONT/CMB Buckhead Leasing, L.L.C.

 

DJONT/CMB Corpus Leasing, L.L.C.

 

DJONT/CMB Deerfield Leasing, L.L.C.

 

DJONT/CMB FCOAM, L.L.C.

 

DJONT/CMB New Orleans Leasing, L.L.C.

 

DJONT/CMB Orsouth Leasing, L.L.C.

 

DJONT/CMB SSF Leasing, L.L.C.

 

DJONT/EPT Leasing, L.L.C.

 

DJONT/EPT Manager, Inc.

 

DJONT/Indianapolis Leasing, L.L.C.

 

DJONT/JPM Atlanta ES Leasing, L.L.C.

 

DJONT/JPM Austin Leasing, L.P.

 

DJONT/JPM Austin Tenant Co., L.L.C.

 

DJONT/JPM Boca Raton Leasing, L.L.C.

 

DJONT/JPM BWI Leasing, L.L.C.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

State and Form of Organization
Nova Scotia, Canada - Unlimited Liability
Company

 

Delaware - Corporation

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Corporation

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company



23

24

25

26

 

27

 

28

 

29

 

30

 

31

 

32

 

33

 

34

 

35

 

36

 

37

 

38

 

39

 

40

 

41

 

42

 

43

 

44

 

45

 

46

 

47

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DJONT/JPM Hospitality Leasing Holdco (SPE), L.L.C.

 DJONT/JPM Hospitality Leasing (SPE), L.L.C.

DJONT/JPM Leasing, L.L.C.

DJONT/JPM Orlando Leasing, L.L.C.

 

DJONT/JPM Phoenix Leasing, L.L.C.

 

DJONT/JPM Wilmington Leasing, L.L.C.

 

E.S. Charlotte Limited Partnership

 

E.S. North, an Indiana Limited Partnership

 

EPT Atlanta-Perimeter Center Limited Partnership

 

EPT Austin Limited Partnership

 

EPT Kansas City Limited Partnership

 

EPT Meadowlands Limited Partnership

 

EPT Raleigh Limited Partnership

 

FCH/DT BWI Holdings, L.P.

 

FCH/DT BWI Hotel, L.L.C.

 

FCH/DT Holdings, L.P.

 

FCH/DT Hotels, L.L.C.

 

FCH/HHC Hotels, L.L.C.

 

FCH/HHC Leasing, L.L.C.

 

FCH/IHC Hotels, L.P.

 

FCH/IHC Leasing, L.P.

 

FCH/JVEIGHT Leasing, L.L.C. Co., L.L.C.

 

FCH/PSH, L.P.

 

FCH/SH Leasing, L.L.C.

 

FCH/SH Leasing II, L.L.C.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Partnership

 

Indiana - Limited Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Pennsylvania - Limited Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company



48

49

 

50

51

52

53

 

54

55

56

57

58

 

59

 

60

 

61

 

62

 

63

 

64

 

65

 

66

67

68

69

70

 

71

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FelCor Canada Co.

FelCor Canada Holding GP, L.L.C.

 

FelCor Canada Holding, L.P.

FelCor Chat-Lem, L.L.C.

FelCor Copley Plaza Leasing, L.L.C.

FelCor Copley Plaza, L.L.C.

 

FelCor Eight Hotels, L.L.C.

FelCor Escrow Holdings, L.L.C.

FelCor Esmeralda (SPE), L.L.C.

FelCor Esmeralda Leasing (SPE), L.L.C.

FelCor Holdings Trust

 

FelCor Hotel Asset Company, L.L.C.

 

FelCor Hotel Operating Company, L.L.C.

 

FelCor Lodging Holding Company, L.L.C.

 

FelCor Lodging Limited Partnership

 

FelCor Napa Development, L.L.C.

 

FelCor Omaha Hotel Company, L.L.C.

 

FelCor Pennsylvania Company, L.L.C.

 

FelCor S-4 Hotels (SPE), L.L.C.

FelCor S-4 Leasing (SPE), L.L.C.

FelCor St. Pete (SPE), L.L.C.

FelCor St. Pete Leasing (SPE), L.L.C.

FelCor TRS Borrower 1, L.P.

 

FelCor TRS Borrower GP 1, L.L.C.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Nova Scotia, Canada - Unlimited Liability
Company

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Partnership

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

Massachusetts - Business Trust

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

Delaware - Limited Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company
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73

 

74

 

75

 

76

 

77

 

78

 

79

 

80

81
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84

 

85

 

86
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95
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FelCor TRS Borrower 4, L.L.C.

 

FelCor TRS Guarantor, L.P.

 

FelCor TRS Guarantor GP, L.L.C.

 

FelCor TRS Holdings, L.L.C.

 

FelCor/Charlotte Hotel, L.L.C.

 

FelCor/CMB Buckhead Hotel, L.L.C.

 

FelCor/CMB Corpus Holdings, L.P.

 

FelCor/CMB Corpus Hotel, L.L.C.

 

FelCor/CMB Deerfield Hotel, L.L.C.

FelCor/CMB Marlborough Hotel, L.L.C.

 

FelCor/CMB New Orleans Hotel, L.L.C.

FelCor/CMB Orsouth Holdings, L.P.

 

FelCor/CMB Orsouth Hotel, L.L.C.

 

FelCor/CMB SSF Holdings, L.P.

 

FelCor/CMB SSF Hotel, L.L.C.

 

FelCor/CSS Holdings, L.P.

 

FelCor/CSS Hotels, L.L.C.

 

FelCor/CSS (SPE), L.L.C.

FelCor/Indianapolis Hotel, L.L.C.

 

FelCor/Iowa-New Orleans Chat-Lem Hotel, L.L.C.

 

FelCor/JPM Atlanta ES Hotel, L.L.C.

 

FelCor/JPM Austin Holdings, L.P.

 

FelCor/JPM Austin Hotel, L.L.C.

 

FelCor/JPM Boca Raton Hotel, L.L.C.

 

FelCor/JPM BWI Hotel, L.L.C.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

Delaware - Limited Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company
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101
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104

 

105

 

106

107

 

108

109

 

110

111

112

113

 

114

 

115

 

116

117

 

118

 

119

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FelCor/JPM Hospitality Holdco (SPE), L.L.C.

FelCor/JPM Hospitality (SPE), L.L.C.

FelCor/JPM Hotels, L.L.C.

 

FelCor/JPM Orlando Hotel, L.L.C.

 

FelCor/JPM Phoenix Hotel, L.L.C.

 

FelCor/JPM Wilmington Hotel, L.L.C.

 

FelCor/LAX Holdings, L.P.

 

FelCor/LAX Hotels, L.L.C.

 

FelCor/MM S-7 Holdings, L.P.

 

FelCor/MM S-7 Hotels, L.L.C.

FelCor/New Orleans Annex, L.L.C.

 

FelCor/St. Paul Holdings, L.P.

FelCor/Tysons Corner Hotel Company, L.L.C.

 

Grande Palms, L.L.C.

HI Chat-Lem/Iowa-New Orleans Joint Venture

Kingston Plantation Development Corp.

Los Angeles International Airport Hotel
Associates, a Texas Limited Partnership

Lovefield Beverage Corporation

 

Margate Towers at Kingston Plantation, L.L.C.

 

MHV Joint Venture

 

Napa Creek Residential, L.L.C.

Park Central Joint Venture

 

Plantation Laundry Services, L.L.C.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Partnership

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

Louisiana - General Partnership

Delaware - Corporation

Texas - Limited Partnership

Texas - Corporation

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Texas - General Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

Texas - General Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company
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122

 

123

 

124

 

125

 

126

 

127

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Promus/FCH Condominium Company, L.L.C.

 

Promus/FCH Development Company, L.L.C.

 

Promus/FelCor Hotels, L.L.C.

 

Promus/FelCor Lombard Venture

 

Promus/FelCor Manager, Inc.

 

Promus/FelCor Parsippany Venture

 

Promus/FelCor San Antonio Venture

 

Royale Palms Rental, L.L.C.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company

 

Illinois - General Partnership

 

Delaware - Corporation

 

New Jersey - General Partnership

 

Texas - General Partnership

 

Delaware - Limited Liability Company



Exhibit 23

February 24, 2011

Consent Of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S 3 (Nos. 333-04947, 
333-62599, 333-122221, 333-125040, 333-138102, and 333-155316) and Form S 8 (Nos. 333-102662, 333-126228, 
333-126230, and 333-151066) of FelCor Lodging Trust Incorporated of our report dated February 24, 2011 relating 
to the financial statements, financial statement schedules and the effectiveness of internal control over financial 
reporting, which appears in this Form 10 K.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 24, 2011

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Suite 1800, 2001 Ross Ave, Dallas TX 75201-2997
T: (214) 999 1400, F: (214) 754 7991, www.pwc.com/us



Exhibit 31.1

Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Richard A. Smith, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of FelCor Lodging Trust Incorporated;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements 
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly 
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as 
of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure 
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over 
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to 
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, 
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly 
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial 
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this 
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end 
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that 
occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the 
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the 
registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal 
control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of 
directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over 
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, 
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a 
significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 24, 2011 /s/Richard A. Smith
Richard A. Smith
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Andrew J. Welch, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of FelCor Lodging Trust Incorporated;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements 
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly 
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as 
of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure 
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over 
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to 
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, 
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly 
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial 
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this 
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end 
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that 
occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the 
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the 
registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal 
control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of 
directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over 
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, 
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a 
significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 24, 2011 /s/Andrew J. Welch
Andrew J. Welch
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32

Section 906 Certification

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. § 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the 
undersigned officers of FelCor Lodging Trust Incorporated (the “Company”) hereby certify, to such officers' 
knowledge, that:

(i) the accompanying Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 
2010 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;

and

(ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial 
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: February 24, 2011

/s/Richard A. Smith

Richard A. Smith

Chief Executive Officer

/s/Andrew J. Welch

Andrew J. Welch

Chief Financial Officer
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